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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 31 MAY 2021 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good af te rnoon Mr Myburgh,  good 

af ternoon everybody.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Good af te rnoon Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Are we ready? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes we are.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Let  us – good af te rnoon Mr  

Gigaba.  

MR GIGABA:   Good af ternoon Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Let  us do the oath again.  10 

REGISTRAR:   P lease state your  fu l l  names fo r  the record.  

MR GIGABA:   My names are Knowledge Malusi  Nkanyezi  

Gigaba.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any object ions to  tak ing the 

prescr ibed oath? 

MR GIGABA:   No I  do not .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you consider  the oath b ind ing on your  

conscience? 

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly swear that  a l l  the ev idence 20 

you wi l l  g ive wi l l  be the t ru th;  the  whole t ru th and noth ing  

but  the t ru th;  i f  so p lease ra ise your  r ight  hand and say,  so  

help me God.  

MR GIGABA:   So help me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Mr Gigaba h is  legal  
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representat ion is  the same as before is  i t  not?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes i t  is  Cha i rperson.   Mr Solomons is  

connected remote ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l l  r ight .   Okay le t  us cont inue then.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you.   Good af ternoon Mr  

Gigaba.  

MR GIGABA:   Good af ternoon S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Do you have the – the schedule that  

we were using las t  t ime of  the two aff idavi t s  before you? 

MR GIGABA:   Yes I  do.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .   Could I  ask you to  go to  

page 22 and to paragraph 34 on the  le f t  hand s ide.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes I  am there.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   When we ended last  t ime we were  

ta lk ing about  the t r ip  to  Maur i t ius  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You – could i t  be… 

CHAIRPERSON:   D id you say page 22? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   22 paragraph 34.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Where is  my Regist ra r.   You said  page 22 20 

paragraph 34.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So Chai rperson I  am referr ing to  

schedule.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   She has g iven me the b ig f i le .  I  

do not  th ink the schedule is  in  the b ig f i le  – i t  is  separate.   
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Unfor tunate ly  we have a d i f fe rent  Regist rar  today not  the 

one we had last  week.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Chai rperson I  th ink we have a spare  

copy can I  hand that  up to  you? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.   Okay thank you.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   22.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So when we broke last  t ime Mr  Gigaba 

we were  deal ing wi th  th is  Maur i t ius t r ip ,  which  you 

ment ioned Ms Mngoma had paid fo r.  10 

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  just  want  to  br ing to  your  at tent ion  

that  her  ev idence was a l though she refers to  i t  here as a  

honeymoon t r ip  to  Maur i t ius her  ev idence was that  i t  

occur red shor t ly  before your  wedding.   What  is  your  

comment  on that?  

MR GIGABA:   I  th ink she mistook the dates.   I t  happened 

af ter  the wedding.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .  Ms Mngoma then goes on at  

paragraphs 35 and 36 to  ment ion  that  again cont inu ing to  20 

deal  wi th  Ms Myeni  that  agreements between the two of  you 

– you and Ms Myeni  then began to emerge.   What  is  your 

comment  on that?  

MR GIGABA:   The – there were  – I  would not  ca l l  them 

disagreements I  would say there were issues that  maybe as  
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i t  was d isagreements but  i t  was w i th  regard to  a par t i cu lar  

issue at  SAA though I  do not  recal l  what  i t  was – I  

remember  that  i t  was covered br ie f ly  in  the media dur ing the 

t ime where I  spoke qui te  s t rongly  because I  fe l t  –  I  th ink  

th is  was – th is  must  have been around – ja  around 20 – 

e i ther  la te 2013 or  ear ly  2014 but  i t  was not  d isagreements  

on – on everyth ing.   I t  was just  on a speci f i c  issue which 

might  have ar isen dur ing the t ime when the new head of  the 

p i lo ts  was being appointed because I  th ink i t  was dur ing an 

in terv iew on that  date that  I  was asked a quest ion at  which I  10 

spoke qui te  s t rongly because I  fe l t  that  the  – the  

Chai rperson of  the board at  the t ime was tak ing a wrong 

d i rect ion.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then at  paragraph 37 Ms Mngoma 

says that  on Sundays the two of  would – I  beg your  pardon 

– regular ly  lunch in  Sandton and then when dr iv ing home 

she would overhear te lephone d iscussions that  you had wi th  

Ms Myeni  and tha t  you would somet imes share the deta i l  o f  

those d iscussions wi th  her  which inc luded that  you d id not  

understand why she had been appointed as the Chai r  a t  20 

SAA because you d id not  be l ieve she was competent  –  that  

she would feed in fo rmat ion to  the  former President  wi thout  

te l l ing  you and that  when you d id not  fo l low inst ruc t ions of  

A jay Gupta or  Ms Myeni  one or  other  of  them would phone 

the former President  to  compla in .   Ms Myeni  would then 
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pass on inst ruct ions f rom President  Zuma to you which 

would upset  you and you bel ieved that  you should have had 

a d i rect  l ine of  communicat ion to  the former President  and 

not  receive inst ruct ions v ia  Ms Myeni  because you d id not  

repor t  to  her.   Do you want  to  comment  on that  p lease? 

MR GIGABA:   Yes thank you.   I t  i s  a lso unt rue tha t  every  

Sunday or  regular ly  on Sundays we would have lunch in  

Sandton.   That  i s  unt rue.    

 And – now le t  me deal  wi th  the f i rs t  issue.   You know 

i t  would have been r id icu lous of  me Chai rperson to say I  d id  10 

not  understand why Ms Myeni  had been appointed  

Chai rperson of  SAA because I  appointed her.    

 Now i f  I  say I  d id  not  understand why she was 

appointed I  would have been referr ing to  mysel f  because I  

was Min is ter  o f  Publ i c  Enterpr ises when she was appointed  

f i rs t  act ing Chai rperson when the  board res igned – when 

the major i ty  o f  board members res igned and subsequent ly  

when we requested cabinet  to  appoint  a  new board and 

requested cabinet  to  approve her  appointment  as  

Chai rperson as one of  the people who were had sa t  in  the 20 

previous board which had been appointed I  th ink by  Min is ter  

Barbara Hogan.  

 So I  –  I  am the one who appointed  the new board –  

who appointed Ms Myeni  as the Chai rperson of  the board so 

I  could not  say I  d id  not  unders tand why she had been 
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appointed Chai rperson.   

 And so the issues of  my understanding of  her  – of  

the reasons fo r  her  appointment  as wel l  as quest ion ing her  

competency cannot  a r ise and wou ld not  have ar isen f rom 

me.  

 Secondly I  am not  aware of  any in format ion that  Ms 

Myeni  would feed to  the fo rmer President .   I f  I  needed to 

d iscuss issues wi th  the board of  SAA I  e i ther  convened the  

Chai rperson and the CEO of  the board and d iscussed issues 

wi th  them or  I  would request  specia l  genera l  meet ings of  10 

the board in  order  to  ra ise cer ta in  issues wi th  the board or  

the Department  would engage e i ther  the board  or  the – the 

execut ive management  of  SAA to d iscuss mat ters re la t ing to  

the a i r l ine.  

 Any other  th ing that  seeks to  suggest  that  there was 

in format ion that  Ms Myeni  fed to  the President  i s  – is  a  

fabr icat ion.   There was no such v iew f rom me and i f  the 

President  needed to d iscuss issues wi th  me which re la te to  

SAA – to  SAA or  other  s tate owned enterpr ises he would do  

so off i c ia l l y  e i ther  when we present  memos in  cabinet  or  –  20 

or  so.  

 Now i t  is  a lso not  t rue Chai rperson that  I  was 

expected to  fo l low inst ruct ions e i ther  f rom Mr A jay Gupta or  

Ms Dudu Myeni .   Ms Myeni  never  passed any inst ruc t ions to  

me f rom the Pres ident  and – and so the issue of  me being 
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upset  by th is  actual ly  does not  a r ise.  

 Ja and so – and so the rest  o f  37.3 is  just  inaccurate 

because there was no as I  have sa id – there was no 

in format ion passed to me f rom the President  through Ms 

Myeni .   The President  i f  he needed to ta lk  to  me as one of  

h is  Min is te rs he would ca l l  me d i rec t ly  and ta lk  to  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  see that  here at  –  in  th is  paragraph 

she does say which I  th ink she says e lsewhere as wel l  that  

there was a t ime when you d id  not  want  to  fo l low the 

inst ruct ions of  Mr A jay Gupta and I  know that  I  th ink on 10 

Thursday when you were here we refer red to  a par t  a lso 

where she was saying that  the re la t ionship between yoursel f  

and the Gupta fami ly  – wel l  she was speaking  I  th ink  

speci f ica l l y  about  A jay Gupta had cooled off  –  or  was 

cool ing off  because you fe l t  that  accord ing to  her  you fe l t  

that  A jay Gupta – Mr A jay Gupta  wanted you to  run your  

department  as he wanted and you wanted to  run the 

department  the way you thought  would be the r ight  way your  

wanted to  run i t .  

 Now the quest ion  I  want  to  ra ise i t  is  why do you 20 

th ink she would br ing  in  th is  par t  o f  the ev idence against  

somebody that  she real l y  wants to  put  in  a very bad l ight  

that  is  yoursel f  fabr icat ing a lo t  o f  s tor ies.   Why d id not  – 

why would  she not  s imply put  you in  her  vers ion as 

somebody who throughout  was just  fo l lowing the  Gupta 
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fami ly  inst ruct ions th roughout .   Why does she – why would  

she come to a point  where she says no f rom th is  po int  he  

was standing h is  ground.   He was in  effect  s ick and t i red of  

the in te r fe rence of  the Gupta fami ly  in  h is  work and as a 

resul t  o f  the stance he took then the re la t ionship between 

h im and the Gupta ’s  cooled off .  

MR GIGABA:   Chai rperson that  – that  puzzles me too and I  

th ink more than perhaps beyond what  the Chai rperson is  

asking what  puzz les me is  the ent i re  aff idavi t .   The f i rs t  – 

the decis ion to  approach the commission which d id not  s ta r t  10 

as a resul t  o f  a  desi re to  come to the commission.  

 I  mean the commission has been in  ex is tence s ince  

2018 – 2019  

CHAIRPERSON:   2018.  

MR GIGABA:   2018.   Thank you fo r  the cor rect ion.   She d id 

not  fee l  the need f rom then up unt i l  th is  t ime that  she d id 

when the d ivorce  issues were now coming to  the fo re and 

the issues per ta in ing to  the – the  damaged property  at  my 

res idence i t  i s  on ly then that  she fe l t  th is  edge – the f i re  to  

come to the commission.     20 

 Ms Mngoma d id  advise me that  she was being put  

under p ressure by cer ta in  people some of  whom are in  

government  others in  s tate secur i t y  –  in  the  state secur i t y  

department ,  o thers in  business to  depose an aff idavi t  to  

surrender me as she sa id because they wanted to  dest roy  
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me pol i t ica l l y  and to  that  extent  such a pol i t i ca l  dest ruct ion 

of  me would resul t  in  her  be ing f inancia l l y  rewarded and she 

ment ioned the types of  rewards tha t  she would receive as a  

resul t .  

 I  –  in  our  many d iscussions she had she would not  

accept  that  and she needed to th ink about  the fami ly  and 

put  the fami ly  f i rs t .   But  u l t imate ly  she d id come.  

 Now the aff idavi t  Chai rperson as I  have sought  to  

h igh l ight  on the number of  occasions conta ins some very 

ser ious cont radic t ions that  ind ica te that  th is  is  not  the 10 

aff idavi t  that  she wrote or  i t  is  based on media narrat ives 

which – which have exis ted a l l  a long which – to  which I  

have not  responded.   I  have sought  to  mainta in  a s i lence 

bel iev ing that  the opportuni ty  would come for  me to s i t  

before the Chai rperson and answer  to  the many a l legat ions.  

 And so I  do not  know which one of  the above many 

reasons or  prospect ive reasons I  have out l ined would have 

prompted her  to  – to  say a l l  o f  these th ings that  she has 

sa id because on the one hand I  was doing the b idd ing for  

the Gupta ’s  –  on the other  hand I  suddenly decided that  no I  20 

no longer want  the in te r fe rence.  

 But  the fact  o f  the mat te r  is  that  I  was not  receiv ing  

any inst ruct ions f rom anyone wi th  regard to  the work that  I  

was doing.   The work that  we d id  we d id co l lect ive ly.   On 

the one hand i t  is  cabinet  but  on the other  hand I  have 
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fo l lowing d iscussions and engagements in  the department  

which would resu l t  in  us tak ing cer ta in  posi t ions or  po l icy  

posi t ions,  submi t t ing them to cabinet  or  tak ing them forward 

in  the form of  the state owned enterpr ises i f  those decis ions 

d id not  requi re cabinet  approval .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  a lso another  aspect  where a  s imi lar  

issues may be ra ised would be  th is .   As I  recal l  she sa id  

that  she never  saw the Gupta ’s  g ive you cash herse l f  even 

though she went  wi th  you to  the  Gupta res idence many 

t imes.  10 

 But  she sa id that  there was a bag that  you used to  

carry and you would I  th ink ask one of  your  protectors i t  

would be  I  th ink g iven to  somebody in  the  Gupta fami ly  –  

res idence or  i t  would be g iven to  you or  you would g ive i t  to  

somebody – I  cannot  remember the deta i ls .   But  she then 

says when you went  to  Sandton I  do not  th ink she meant  a l l  

the t ime but  there were cer ta in  occasions I  th ink i t  is  more 

than one i f  I  am not  mistaken when you took cash f rom the  

bag that  had been g iven to  somebody in  the  Gupta  

res idence and when you le f t  i t  was brought  back.   You know.  20 

 Now I  –  I  may be inaccurate about  some deta i l s .   

When she says that  she saw cash in  the bag in  the  boot  at  

Sandton on one occasion or  she saw you tak ing cash out  i t  

can be accepted that  she is  suggest ing that  that  money 

have come – may have come f rom the Gupta ’s  okay.   But  



31 MAY 2021 – DAY 406 
 

Page 13 of 217 
 

the quest ion that  would ar ise would be – i f  she del iberate ly 

– i f  she was fabr icat ing the story that  you got  cash f rom the  

Gupta ’s  why wou ld she go about  i t  in  such a roundabout  

way why would she s imply not  l ie  d i rect ly  and say I  saw 

them give h im cash at  the res idence he put  i t  in to  th is  bag 

and therefore she would be speaking of  very d i rect  ev idence 

rather  than say no I  d id  not  see them give i t  to  h im but  

when we were at  Sandton he opened the boot  and opened 

the bag – I  saw the cash and I  am connect ing i t  w i th  the  

Gupta ’s  or  someth ing to  that  e ffect .  10 

 So one would have thought  that  somebody who 

real ly  want  to  impl icate you in  receiv ing cash wou ld say I  

saw – I  saw h im –  we went  to  the Gupta ’s  a number o f  t imes 

and on cer ta in  occasions they gave h im cash – I  saw i t  –  I  

was an eyewi tness to  i t .  

 Why – why do you th ink she would not  do i t  tha t  

way? 

MR GIGABA:   For  two reasons Chai rperson among others  

and perhaps I  could th ink of  more.   The f i rs t  one is  that  she 

– she never  saw th is  bag.   She never  saw th is  bag that  i s  20 

why in  her  own a ff idavi t  she shows one of  the – you know 

these smal l  men bags she took a p ic tu re f rom – she googled 

a p ic ture of  the smal l  men bag and says th is  is  the  bag to  

which I  am refer r ing.  

 The bag to which  she refers i s  a  smal l  man bag.   I  
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s t i l l  have i t  in  my car.   I t  puts  everyth ing that  I  car ry 

inc lud ing my cel l  phone,  hand sani t isers,  my hand lo t ions,  

everyth ing.   I  put  them in there so  that  I  do not  put  them in 

my pocket .   So she never  saw th is  bag and the  second 

reason is  that  because there is  a  mot ive – an u l te r io r  mot ive  

to  por t ray me in  a par t i cu la r  l ight  she then has to  fabr icate 

sto ry so carefu l l y  that  i t  does not  impl icate her.   Because i f  

she was there and saw me being g iven money that  was an –  

that  was i l l i c i t  i t  impl icates her  in  an i l legal i ty.   And so when 

she was being  coached about  her  aff idavi t  i t  wou ld say 10 

recuse yoursel f  you d id not  see the bag,  you d id not  see 

th is  money being  g iven to  h im you only saw i t  in  the  boot  

and so you do not  know where d id th is  money come f rom.   

But  you can only in fe r  that  i t  came f rom the Gupta ’s .   

 But  how much money would I  have been car ry ing in  

a bag?  Could i t  be R1000 – could  i t  be R2000 – could i t  be 

R10000 I  was a Min is ter  Honourable Chai rperson earn ing an 

income and you –you could for  some reasons inc lud ing 

paying for  the – the park ing t i ckets  and stuff  l i ke tha t .   You 

could wi thdraw money,  carry cash in  your  bag so that  you 20 

able to  pay fo r  those th ings.    

 So I  would not  be able to  te l l  the Chai rperson 

exact ly  her  mot ives or  why she cra f ts  her  s tatement  in  such 

carefu l  fashion but  a l l  I  can say to  the Chai rperson is  that  

the reason she never  saw the money being car  – being 
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g iven to  me or  be ing carr ied by me to the car  and t r ies to  

impl icate the pro tectors i t  i s  because there was no such 

money.  

 I f  you go to  the ev idence of  Wi tness 3.  Wi tness 3  

says the – Mr G igaba would go in  and would come out .  

There was no money.   But  two days la ter  I  saw – I  would 

see money in  the bag.   Now how would th is  money have 

ar r ived in  the boot  of  my car  un less e i ther  Ms Mngoma or  

Wi tness 3 have put  the money in  there themselves for  the i r  

own purposes because i f  the money is  be ing g iven to  me i t  10 

would be g iven to  me and i f  I  went  to  co l lect  money I  

cer ta in ly  would not  need company to go co l lect  money.  

 So th is  money would probably have been asked fo r  

by – by one of  them,  g iven to  them,  they would know what  

the money is  for  and now they are  t ry ing to  – to  paste or  to  

impl icate me by c la iming that  that  money belonged to me.  

 Insofar  as I  am concerned I  have never  seen in  the  

boot  of  my car  cash carr ied in  bags of  such an exten t  that  i t  

is  be ing a l leged I  th ink in  f ront  o f  the commission because 

cer ta in ly  in  my handbag you cannot  load that  much money.   20 

Even my purse cannot  load – i t  cannot  even f i t  R10 000.00.   

I t  is  just  a  smal l  purse that  can carry perhaps at  best  –  at  

most  R5 00000.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you.   And at  paragraph 38 Ms 
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Mngoma repeats  someth ing that  I  th ink you have a l ready 

commented on.  She says that  Ms Myeni  to ld  you that  i f  you 

d id not  do what  you were to ld  you would go back to  the  

Department  of  Home Affa i rs .   You want  to  comment  on that .  

MR GIGABA:   Chai rperson as I  ind icated in  the previous 

meet ing the Department  of  Home Affa i rs  is  not  punishment .   

In  actual  fact  in  many count r ies  to  be Min is ter  o f  Home 

Affa i rs  or  what  they refer  to  as Min is ter  o f  In te r io r  or  what  

they refer  to  in  the UK as the Home Secretary i t  is  qu i te  a  

prest ig ious posi t ion.   I t  is  not  punishment .  10 

 And so what  Ms Mngoma is  re fer r ing to  here is  what  

was in  the media immediate ly  af te r  the announcement  of  the 

new cabinet  in  2014.   I t  was sa id  that  I  am being sent  to  

Home Affa i rs  as  par t  o f  –  as punishment  because I  had 

fa i led to  per form my dut ies as e ffect i ve ly  as Min is te r  o f  

Publ ic  Enterpr ises and the whole range of  o ther  th ings were 

sa id.  

 So much so that  I  even took the l iber ty  to  – to  say to  

the President  because the a l legat ion at  the t ime was that  –  

or  a  second a l legat ion which came out  was that  I  was very 20 

b i t ter  about  th is .  

 So I  even on one occasion in formal ly  sa id to  

President  Zuma that  Mr President  i f  there i s  an a l legat ion 

that  I  am b i t ter  about  be ing made Min is te r  o f  Home Affa i rs  I  

want  to  a l lay tha t  that  concern immediate ly  and a l together  
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and assure you that  I  am actual ly  very happy to  be back at  

Home Affa i rs .   We actual l y  just  burst  out  laughing  about  i t  

because he knew i t  was a l ie  – I  knew i t  was a l ie  and so my 

return to  Home Affa i rs  I  took i t  no t  to  have anyth ing or  as  

not  having anyth ing to  do wi th  the a l legat ions which  had 

been made but  I  took i t  as having to  do wi th  the fac t  that  I  

had been in  the department  for  a  long t ime.   When Min is te r  

Mapisa-Nqakula was Min is ter  she star ted the turnaround –  

the tu rnaround st rategy of  the Department  of  Home Affa i rs .  

 Min is te r  Nkosizana Dlamin i  Zuma spent  a shor t  s t in t  10 

at  Home Affa i rs  dur ing  which t ime she a lso  t r ied to  cont inue 

wi th  the work of  t ransforming Home Affa i rs .  

 Min is te r  Pandor came in  and a lso t r ied to  do the 

same and so my return to  Home Affa i rs  in  2014 I  v iewed i t  

honest ly  as a desi re by President  Zuma to br ing in to the 

department  somebody who had a proper g rasp of  the  

turnaround of  the department  as  having as having been 

in i t ia ted by Min is te r  Mapisa-Nqakula and they wanted 

someone who was going to  be able  to  carry on that  work.  

 And I  th ink dur ing the t ime that  I  was there we d id  20 

t remendous work to  t ransform the department  – to  cont inue 

the t ransformat ion of  the department .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So Mr Gigaba perhaps I  can just  get  

your  d i rect  answer to  38.  Did Ms Myeni  te l l  you that  i f  you 

d id not  do what  you were to ld  you would go back to  the  
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Department  of  Home Affa i rs?  

MR GIGABA:   I  th ink – as I  have g iven a d i rect  answer last  

week no she d id not .   A l l  o f  th is  i s  not  t rue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .   Then under the heading  

Your Return to  the Department  of  Home Affa i rs  I  th ink you 

have deal t  wi th  much of  th is .   Ms Mngoma says at  

paragraph 40 that  you d id not  be l ieve that  the  former 

President  would t ransfer  you back to  the Department .   That  

you were shocked and hur t  when th is  t ransfer  was 

announced and that  were to ld  of  i t  in  f ront  o f  the  Top 6.   10 

You want  to  add to  that?  

MR GIGABA:   Chai rperson.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   What  was real ly  sa id.  

MR GIGABA:   Chai rperson you are  deal ing  here wi th  a –  a  

fabr icat ion.   To s tar t  wi th  I  th ink I  have sa id in  one of  my 

aff idavi t s  that  be ing appointed  – you know every  

admin ist rat ion serves i ts  tenure.   There is  no Min is ter  who 

has an expectat ion that  a t  the end of  the te rm I  w i l l  e i ther  

be reta ined in  the same por t fo l io  or  I  wi l l  be moved in to a 

por t fo l io  of  my preference.   Every new admin ist rat ion – that  20 

is  why the Pres ident  does not  – does not  when they 

const i tu te [word cut ]  admin ist rat ion they do not  s imply say 

we wi l l  on ly  ca l l  those who are being removed and those are 

being reta ined in  the same por t fo l ios wi l l  just  repor t  to  duty.  

 A l l  Min is te rs take  a new oath of  o ff ice  when the new 
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admin ist rat ion,  when the term of  the admin ist rat ion does,  so 

I  d id  not  have any expectat ion tha t  I  would  be reta ined as  

Min is te r  o f  Publ i c  Enterpr ises and I  d id  not  even have any 

expectat ion that  I  would be reta ined as a Min is te r,  the  

appointment  to  cabinet  is  the d iscret ion of  the President ,  

you serve at  the p leasure of  the President ,  i f  you have not  

been appointed or  reappointment  i t  is  s t i l l  the p leasure of  

the President ,  tha t  is  wi th  regards to  paragraph 14.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    . . . [break in  record ing]  the car  never  

returned,  perhaps I  could a lso just  ment ion to  you that  in  10 

her  ev idence Ms Mngoma said that  she drove th is  car  fo r  

about  a year  and a hal f ,  that  she had p ic tures of  i t  on her  

phone but  those were deleted,  and that  i t  was reg iste red 

then in to a f r iend’s name.  

 Now you s imply deny that ,  what  do  you have to say 

about  th is  car,  th is  BMW. 

MR GIGABA:    The BMW did not  ex is t  in  my opin ion,  when I  

met  Ms Mngoma I  had – she had a  number of  cars that  she 

used to come and v is i t  me on,  as I  ment ioned last  week 

they inc luded . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    D id you say when you met  her?  

MR GIGABA:  When I  met  her  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  she used to dr ive she used 

d i f ferent  cars.  

MR GIGABA:   Diffe rent  cars.   They inc luded an ML350,  
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they inc luded the BMW One ser ies,  she a lso ind icated to  me 

that  she or  her  uncle had an Aston Mart in ,  I  had never  seen 

that  one in  par t icu la r.    Now th is  whi te  BMW I  never  saw,  

th is  three ser ies.   When pr ior  to  my tak ing off ice as Min is te r  

o f  Publ ic  Enterpr ises I  had only recent ly  met  her  and I  was 

– I  had a Mercedes Benz ML430,  which was whi te ,  that  I  

had got  whi le  I  was serv ing as the President  of  the ANC 

Youth League and I  cont inued us ing that  car,  tha t  car  I  

never  got  i t  f rom the Guptas,  i t  had been handed to me to 

us by the ANC Youth League,  apparent ly  i t  had been 10 

donated by  Mr Tokyo Sexwale  to  the ANC Youth League and 

i t  was then handed to me to use as  one of  the pool  cars as 

President  of  the ANC Youth League,  so that  ML430 was in  

my possession.   Ms Mngoma cont inued using that  ML430 

unt i l  she took employment  at  Gaj ima Technologies at  which  

point  she bought  hersel f  a  b lack Mercedes Benz aga in.  

 So I  am not  aware of  the BMW three ser ies which  

was then registe red in  her  name,  but  what  a lso confused me 

about  th is  is  why would a car  that  needed l ights to  be 

repai red be sent  to  a  f r iend of  m ine so that  th is  f r iend,  I  20 

don’ t  know should probably f ix  the l ights but  then the car  

never  returned and she never  enqui red about  the car.  

 The so-cal led – I  th ink in  her  test imony the last  t ime 

she was at  the Commission  she made ment ion  of  Mr Joe 

Mbazo and said the car  was g iven to  Joe Mbazo.    Joe 
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Mbazo worked in  the secur i t y  indust ry,  he doesn’ t  f ix  cars,  I  

don’ t  Joe Mbazo even knows how to f ix  h is  own cars .  

 He works in  the secur i ty  indust ry and there is  no car  

that  I  gave to  h im in  order  that  he should f ix  i ts  l ights and 

so there is  no such – there is  no t ru th to  th is  s to ry.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So is  i t   your  vers ion,  just  so  that  I  

understand i t ,  that  Ms Mngoma drove a whi te  3  ser ies  

BMW? 

MR GIGABA:    I  never  saw her  dr iv ing a whi te  3  ser ies 

BMW, she may have had the car.   When I  met  Ms Mngoma,  10 

as  I  have sa id  aga in  prev ious ly,  she had many cars .   I  

never  quest ioned  the  ownersh ip  o f  those cars .   She had  

p len ty  o f  money and  tha t  she sa id  to  me  was  -  you know,  

was her  fami l y  wea l th  and she sa id  she had a  fa ther  l i v ing  

in  New York  C i t y  do ing  bus iness in  New York  C i ty  and 

subsequent ly  the  fa ther  passed on I  th ink  around  

2010/2011.   He le f t  her  a  lo t  o f  inhe r i tance tha t  she was 

s t ress ing  about  to  p ro tec t  because apparent ly  the  fa ther ’s  

g i r l f r iend wanted a  p iece o f  the  inher i tance and a  few o ther  

bus iness peop le ,  p rominent  South  A f r i can bus iness  peop le  20 

whose names I  request  no t  to  ment ion  who a l so  apparent ly  

wanted a  p iece o f  th is  inher i tance.  

 I  was to  learn  la te r  tha t  th is  so-ca l led  fa ther  was in  

ac tua l  fac t  her  f iancée,  so  a l l  a long I  had laboured under  

the  unders tand ing  tha t  th is  wea l thy  fa ther  was in  New York  
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on ly  to  f ind  ou t  la te r  tha t  no ,  i t  was her  f iancée who l i v ing  

here  in  Johannesburg  who was we l l - to -do  and le f t  her  

inhe r i tance.   So whethe r  she had the  BMW 3 Ser ies  or  no t  I  

cannot  conf i rm o r  deny but  a l l  I  can  say to  you i s  tha t  I  

never  saw her  d r iv ing  such a  wh i te  BMW and I  cer ta in l y  

never  gave such a  wh i te  3  Ser ies  to  anyone to  f i x  the  l igh ts  

so  tha t  i t  never  re tu rned.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  take  i t  you  unders tood tha t  he  was her  

fo rmer  f iancée?  

MR GIGABA:    He was a  fo rmer  and la te .   He is  la te  now.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  mean,  a t  the  t ime you heard .  

MR GIGABA:    Wel l ,  I  on ly  heard  las t  yea r  tha t  the  fa ther  

in  New York  was ac tua l l y  a  f iancée .   Whether  fo rmer  or  no t  

I  cannot  conf i rm or  deny but  when  the  fa ther  passed away 

–  when the  fa ther  passed away in  2010/2011  i t  was 

ment ioned to  me tha t  in  ac tua l  fac t  the  person who passed  

away was the  f iancée not  the  fa ther.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  take  i t  you  a t tended the  funera l?  

MR GIGABA:    No,  Cha i rpe rson,  I  was not  inv i ted ,  I  d id  no t  

a t tend i t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR GIGABA:    Maybe not  tha t  I  was not  inv i ted  bu t ,  you 

know,  the  re la t ionsh ip  was pre t ty  new and we d id  no t  how 

ser ious i t  wou ld  become.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  
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MR GIGABA:    So  I  thought  i t  wou ld  be  unwise  o f  me to  

impose myse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   A t  parag raph  50 Ms 

Mngoma goes on  to  say tha t  the  two o f  you were  marr i ed  

on  the  30  August  2014,  tha t  she d id  most  o f  the  wedd ing  

p lann ing  or  i nv i ted  bo th  the  fo rmer  pres ident  and the  

Guptas  bu t  none  o f  them a t tempted and Mr  Mole fe  was  

inv i ted  and d id  a t tend.   Now her  ev idence was tha t  you  

were  the  person who inv i ted  the  p res ident  and the  Guptas .   10 

What  do  you say to  tha t?  

MR GIGABA:    The word ing  inv i t a t ion  was –  the  word ing  

inv i ta t ions  were  done by  he r.   I  gave her  the  name o f  the  

pres ident  as  one  o f  the  peop le  who needed to  be  inv i ted  

bu t  there  were  many o ther  peop le  who were  inv i ted  so ,  I  

mean,  the  cho ice  o f  Mr  Zuma,  the  Guptas ,  Mr  Mole fe  i s  

we l l - ca l cu la ted .   There  were  many  o ther  peop le  who were  

inv i ted ,  they inc luded severa l  cab ine t  m in is te rs ,  no t  a l l  o f  

them,  bu t  I  inv i ted  some cab ine t  m in is te rs  bu t  the  work ing  

inv i ta t ions  were  be ing  done by  he r.  20 

 I  do  no t  reca l l  the  names o f  a l l  the  peop le  inv i ted ,  

you know,  you see,  because the  re la t ions  w i th  the  Guptas  

a t  the  t ime were  such tha t  I  do  no t  be l ieve  I  wou ld  have 

submi t ted  the i r  names as  pa r t  o f  the  peop le  to  be  inv i ted  to  

the  wedd ing .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    That  wou ld  be  on –  or  maybe tha t  wou ld  

be  on both  your  vers ion  and he r  ve rs ion .   Wel l ,  her  vers ion  

in  a  cer ta in  way because both  o f  you do say tha t  in  2014  

your  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  Guptas  had coo led  o f f  o r  was  

coo l ing  o f f .  

MR GIGABA:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  I  th ink  tha t  i s  the  one reason you are  

–  tha t  i s  the  one reason why you are  say ing  you  do not  

be l ieve  you wou ld  have inv i ted  them.  

MR GIGABA:    Cer ta in ly,  I  d id  no t  …[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Because the  wedd ing  was 30 August .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  the  second ha l f  o f  the  year.  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.   When they had pun ished  me by 

send ing  me back to  Home Affa i rs ,  acco rd ing  to  her  vers ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then what  Ms Mngoma goes on to  

say a t  paragraph 51 is  tha t  you  in fo rmed her  tha t  as  a  

wedd ing  g i f t  the  Guptas  gave you a  cash donat ion  towards 

the  cost  o f  the  wedd ing  in  add i t ion  to  pay ing  fo r  the  cost  o f  20 

a  honeymoon in  Duba i .    

“ I  do  no t  know how much money the  Guptas  in  fac t  

gave. ”  

What  i s  your  response to  tha t?  

MR GIGABA:    As  I  sa id  in  parag raph 108 tha t  there  was 
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no  -  you know,  Cha i rperson,  aga in  the  –  jus t  the  log ic  o f  a l l  

o f  th is ,  le t  us  take  her  vers ion  and use her  vers ion .   She 

says I  d id  no t  want  to  p ressured  by  them and to  do  the i r  

b idd ing ,  they pun ished me by i n f luenc ing  my re turn  to  

Home Affa i rs  and thereaf te r  reward  by  g iv ing  me cash 

benef i t s  fo r  the  wedd ing .   But  why wou ld  they do  tha t?  

Because the  re la t ionsh ip  has coo led  o f f ,  I  am no longer  

do ing  any b idd ing  fo r  them as,  as  I  sa id  in  my p rev ious  

response,  the  issue o f  the  na tura l i sa t ion ,  I  found i t  

underway in  the  depar tment ,  i t  d id  no t  need me.   I t  10 

cer ta in ly  was no t  in f luenced by  me.   I  found i t  a l ready 

underway in  the  depar tment ,  so  what  was the  need  fo r  th is  

cash incent ive  towards my wedd ing  a t  wh ich  they were  no t  

inv i ted?  So there  was  no cash donat ion  wh ich  was made  

by  the  Guptas  towards the  wedd ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So your  answer  i s  one,  there  was no  

cash wedd ing  g i f t  f rom the  Guptas  towards the  wedd ing .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And two,  the  ve rs ion  tha t  they gave you 

a  wedd ing  g i f t  in  the  fo rm o f  cash ,  you say i s  incons is ten t  20 

w i th  the  vers ion  tha t  in  2014 your  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  them 

had coo led  o f f  o r  was coo l ing  o f f  because you were  

res i s t ing  the i r  a t tempts  to  ge t  you  to  do  cer ta in  th ings in  

the  depar tment .  

MR GIGABA:    Wi th  a  s l igh t  rec t i f ica t ion ,  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  her  
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vers ion  tha t  I  was  res is t ing  to  do  cer ta in  th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  tha t  i s  what  I  am say ing ,  ja .  

MR GIGABA:    In  te rms o f  my vers ion  i t  was coo l ing  o f f  

because o f  o ther  reasons and my concerns  about  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

MR GIGABA:    …just  on  her  vers ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sor ry,  i t  was coo l ing  o f f  because o f  

your  concerns about  what?  10 

MR GIGABA:    About  g rowing –  I  mean,  about  h igh  pub l i c  

percept ions.   You know,  I  th ink  th ings he igh tened a f te r  the 

land ing  a t  the  Waterk loo f  A i r  Force  base and the re  were  

h igh  pub l i c  concerns about  the i r  ro le ,  the i r  in f luence,  

namedropp ing  and o the r  th ings and I  thought  tha t  I  a lso  

needed to  s tep  o f f  in  o rder  to  p ro tec t  me and my pr inc ip les  

and tha t  i s  why I  dec ided tha t  I  am coo l ing  the  re la t ionsh ip  

o f f .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  then why were  they inv i ted  to  

your  wedd ing?  20 

MR GIGABA:    I  beg your  pa rdon?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Why were  they inv i ted  to  your  

wedd ing  in  those c i rcumstances?  

MR GIGABA:    Who inv i ted  he r  –  who inv i ted  them? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  are  you suggest ing  tha t  Ms 
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Mngoma un i la te ra l l y  inv i ted  the  Guptas  to  your  wedd ing? 

MR GIGABA:    No,  Cha i r,  no ,  Cha i r,  I  d id  no t  say  tha t .   I  

sa id  I  wou ld  no t  have inv i ted  –  le t  me repeat ,  I  sa id  I  wou ld  

no t  have inv i ted  them o r  suggested tha t  they be  inv i ted  to  

the  wedd ing  because the  re la t ionsh ip  had coo led  o f f .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes bu t  then,  Mr  G igaba,  I  th ink  you 

and I  a re  say ing  the  same th ing .   Your  vers ion  is  tha t  Ms  

Mngoma un i la te ra l l y  inv i ted  the  Guptas  to  your  wedd ing ,  

she d id  so  he rse l f .  

MR GIGABA:    I f  she says –  no ,  no ,  no ,  Cha i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Or  a re  you say ing  they were  no t  

inv i ted?  

MR GIGABA:    Go to  paragraph 50 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    R igh t?  

MR GIGABA:    She says tha t  we inv i ted  bo th  the  p res ident  

and the  Guptas  bu t  none o f  them… 

CHAIRPERSON :    A t tended.  

MR GIGABA:    A t tended.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR GIGABA:    I  th ink  in  her  a f f idav i t  she says  tha t  I  20 

hand led  the  inv i ta t ions  to  the  pres ident  and the  Guptas  and 

tha t  i s  why I  sa id  tha t  i s  no t  t rue .   Both ,  I  mean,  the  fo rmer  

pres ident  and a l l  o ther  guests  and inv i tees to  the  wedd ing  

were  inv i ted  as  par t  o f  the  overa l l  inv i ta t ion  process and I  

am say ing  tha t  I  wou ld  no t  have suggested the  inv i ta t ion  o f  
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the  Guptas  because o f  the  re la t ions  tha t  were  coo l ing  and I  

d id  no t  want  to  resusc i ta te  those re la t ions .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  d id  you not  know tha t  the  Guptas  

were  inv i ted  to  your  wedd ing  then?  

MR GIGABA:    Wel l ,  i f  she  i nv i t ed  them i t  was based on 

her  own re la t ionsh ip .   I t  i s  my con tent ion  tha t  Ms Mngoma 

cer ta in ly  o r  p robab ly  had her  own re la t ionsh ip  w i th  them 

which  d id  no t  invo l ve  me because i f  you cons ider  a l l  the  

a l legat ions she makes about  cash,  the  a l legat ions she  

makes about  cars ,  the  a l legat ions  she makes abou t  be ing  10 

shown an ATM at  the i r  res idence,  I  was not  p resen t  when  

she was shown an ATM at  the i r  res idence.   I f  she  was 

there  she p robab ly  was there  on  her  own vo l i t ion  a t  her  

own in i t ia t i ve  wh ich  d id  no t  invo lve  me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you –  were  there  ever  occas ions 

when you got  to  know tha t  she had v is i ted  the  Gupta  

res idence w i thout  you?  

MR GIGABA:    No,  there  were  no  occas ions when I  go t  to  

know o f  such and  i t  i s  no t  necessar i l y  because i t  m igh t  no t  

have happened,  jus t  as  I  d id  no t  know tha t  he r  f iancée was 20 

her  fa ther ,  you know?  I  mean,  someone who cou ld  concea l  

tha t  f rom you fo r  so  many years  un t i l  2020,  tha t  i s  a  per iod  

o f  a  decade,  i s  capab le  o f  concea l ing  her  re la t ions  and 

f r iendsh ips .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  Mr  G igaba,  i s  i t  your  vers ion  
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then tha t  Ms Mngoma inv i ted  the  Guptas  to  your  wedd ing  

on account  o f  the  re la t ionsh ip  tha t  she pe rsona l ly  had w i th  

them? 

MR GIGABA:    Cha i rperson,  I  do  no t  know i f  they  were  

inv i ted  or  no t .   I f  she  says she  inv i ted  them then she  

inv i ted  them wi thout  my knowledge.   But  we had d rawn up 

a  l i s t ,  I  gave he r  a  l i s t  o f  my own peop le  who I  thought  

needed to  be  inv i ted  and they inc luded my f r iend ’s  fami ly  

and cab ine t  co l leagues.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    D id  you go on honeymoon to  Duba i?  10 

MR GIGABA:    I  beg yours?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    D id  you go on honeymoon to  Duba i?  

MR GIGABA:    We d id  go  on –  no ,  i t  was not  honeymoon in  

Duba i ,  i t  was jus t  ho l iday.   I t  was not  honeymoon,  

honeymoon was  in  Maur i t ius .   Duba i  we jus t  went  on 

ho l iday,  we had a i r l ine  c red i ts ,  I  had been f l y ing  around,  

we had some a i r l ine  c red i ts  and we went  on  ho l iday.   I  

th ink  we spent  about  two or  th ree  days and came back.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    She says …[ in tervenes]  

MR GIGABA:    I t  was not  honeymoon,  ce r ta in l y  no t  pa id  by  20 

the  Guptas .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    As I  reca l l  i t ,  she  says tha t  you 

s tayed in  the  Waldor f  Hote l .   

MR GIGABA:    I  do  no t  reca l l  the  name o f  the  ho te l  a t  

wh ich  we s tayed.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    And d id  you then pay fo r  th is  t r ip  to  

Duba i?  

MR GIGABA:    No,  I  used some o f  my –  what  do  you ca l l  

these th ings,  my f requent  f l yer  c red i ts .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    To  pay o f  the  accommodat ion  in  the  

Waldo r f  Hote l?  

MR GIGABA:    I  do  no t  know the  ho te l  where  we s tayed 

and I  do  no t  th ink  i t  –  i t  must  have been H i l ton  Hote l ,  

cer ta in ly  no t  the  Waldo r f .   I t  must  have been H i l ton  Hote l ,  

no t  the  Waldor f .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Why wou ld  i t  have had to  be  a  H i l ton  

Hote l?  

MR GIGABA:    Because I  th ink  tha t  i s  what  I  remember.   I  

th ink  tha t  i s  what  I  remember.   I  do  no t  even know whethe r  

there  is  a  Waldo r f  Hote l ,  I  mean,  fo r  a l l  the  t ime tha t  I  have  

been in  Duba i  on  o f f i c ia l  bus iness I  have never  s tayed a t  a  

Waldo r f  Hote l  bu t  in  my reco l lec t ion  was tha t  i t  was a  

H i l ton  Hote l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And can you remember  when  th is  t r ip  

was,  Mr  G igaba,  in  re la t ion  to  when you got  mar r ied? 20 

MR GIGABA:    I  th ink  the  pe rson who ta lked about  the  t r ip  

shou ld  remind the  Cha i rperson about  the  da te  o f  the  t r ip ,  I  

do  no t… 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  you  a re  ta lk ing  about  the  t r ip ,  

you say you went  to  Duba i ,  you pa id  w i th  a i r  m i les  and you  
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s tayed in  the  H i l ton  Hote l .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes bu t  I  do  no t  reca l l  what  da te  i t  was.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  do  you remember  the  year  in  re la t ion  

to  soon a f te r  you r  wedd ing  or  much la te r  o r  be fore?  Were  

you mar r ied  a l ready when you went  there?  

MR GIGABA:    I  th ink  we were  mar r ied  a l ready.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR GIGABA:    Bu t  I  do  no t  reca l l  exact ly  what  year ,  

whethe r  i t  was 2014 or  2015.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wou ld  i t  be  probab ly  one o f  those two  10 

years?  

MR GIGABA:    I t  w i l l  p robab ly  one o f  those two years .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then a t  paragraph 52 Ms Mngoma 

goes on to  say:  

“ I  es t imate  tha t  our  wedd ing  cost  be tween 4  m i l l ion  

to  5  m i l l ion .   I  pa id  a l l  the  wedd ing  expenses  

inc lud ing  ca te rers  and o ther  supp l ie rs  in  cash f rom 

bund les  o f  cash tha t  I  rece ived f rom Mr  G igaba. ”  

Now in ten t iona l l y  o r  o therw ise  your  a f f idav i t  conta ins  no  20 

response to  tha t  parag raph.   What  i s  you r  response? 

MR GIGABA:    My es t imate  o f  the  wedd ing  was tha t  i t  d id  

no t  cos t  R4 to  R5 mi l l ion .   That  wou ld  have been  qu i te  an  

ex t ravagant  wedd ing .   The wedd ing  was a t  the  Botan ica l  

Gardens in  Durban,  I  do  no t  th ink  i t  cos t  tha t  much.   I t  had 
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two marquees.   So th is  i s  how i t  happens,  how wedd ings in  

the  A f r i can contex t  happen.   The br ide  takes respons ib i l i t y  

fo r  the  wh i te  wedd ing ,  chooses every th ing ,  the  fami ly  pays 

fo r  i t .   I  have pa id  lobo la ,  I  have brought  –  I  have pa id  –  I  

have brought  i z ib izo .   Now I  do  no t  know how you ca l l  tha t  

in  Eng l ish .   I t  i s  g i f t s .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You can leave i t  as  i z ib izo  and exp la in  

what  they are .   Everybody w i l l  ca l l  them i z ib izo .  

MR GIGABA:    A f te r  you pay lobo la  you then are  supposed 

to  b r ing  g i f t s  o f  b lankets  and o ther  i tems.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    And o ther  i tems,  ja .  

MR GIGABA:    For  the  fami ly .   So I  b rought  tha t .   I  had  

done tha t .   Now the  respons ib i l i t y  fo r  the  wh i te  wedd ing  

be longs to  the  br ide ,  to  the  br ide ’s  fami ly  and I ,  as  the  

groom,  take  respons ib i l i t y  fo r  the  t rad i t iona l  wedd ing  a t  my 

home because th is  i s  when now cu l tu ra l l y  and customar i l y  

you are  we lcoming the  br ide  to  your  home and you w i l l  

conduct  you r  customs as is  requ i red .   I  was respons ib le  fo r  

the  customary  wedd ing .   A t  the  wh i te  wedd ing  she was  

respons ib le  fo r  the  payment .   I f  she  went  to  Guptas  to  ask  20 

fo r  money I  d id  no t  ask  he r  because I  took  i t  to  be  her  

respons ib i l i t y .   One,  I  knew her  to  have money.   I  knew her  

to  have money.  

Two,  i t  was respons ib i l i t y  o f  her  fami ly  to  pay fo r  

the  wh i te  wedd ing .   Even the  veh ic les  in  wh ich  I  a r r i ved a t  
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the  wedd ing  were  government  veh ic les  because a t  the  t ime 

I  had a  pr inc ipa l  car  w i th  a  backup car .   My groomsmen,  I  

f i t ted  them in to  these cars  so  tha t  we do not  incur  any 

add i t iona l  expenses.   I  pa id  fo r  my su i t .   My groomsmen 

pa id  fo r  the i r  own su i ts  because they were  suppor t ing  me 

in  tha t  regard .   I  d id  no t  ask  he r  where  d id  you get  the  

money to  pay fo r  th is ,  to  pay  fo r  tha t  and the  o ther  

because I  took  her  fami ly  and unders tood her  fam i ly  to  be  

wea l thy ,  I  unders tood he r  to  have  had money and she d id  

have money and  –  so  she took respons ib i l i t y  fo r  tha t .   I  10 

took respons ib i l i t y  fo r  the  customary  wedd ing  wh ich  is  very  

modest  a f fa i r  wh ich  invo l ves t rad i t iona l  s ing ing ,  you buy a  

cow wh ich  my fa ther  bought  fo r  me as  a  g i f t  and then you  

ar range lunch fo r  peop le  who a re  there .   In  the  customary  

wedd ing  men wou ld  usua l l y  focus on  the  meat  f rom the  

cow,  they wou ld  s i t  in  the  kraa l  and eat  there  and the  n ice  

th ings wou ld  be  reserved fo r  mos t ly  women,  ch i ld ren  and 

your  guests .   So the  4  to  5  m i l l i on ,  i f  tha t  i s  what  she pa id ,  

she pa id  fo r  i t  f rom her  own cash,  i t  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  

me.   I  was respons ib le  fo r  the  customary  wedd ing  a t  my 20 

home wh ich  is ,  every  Zu lu  pe rson wou ld  te l l  you ,  i s  rea l l y  a  

modest  a f fa i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  on  a  l igh t  no te  I  want  to  say we l l ,  

maybe you younger  genera t ion  now are  luck ie r  tha t  the 

wh i te  wedd ing  is  taken care  o f  by  the  br ide ’s  fami ly .   When  
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I  go t  marr i ed  many,  many years  ago,  you know,  the  

groom’s  fami ly ,  the  g room took respons ib i l i t y  fo r  most  o f  

the  th ings inc lud ing  the  wh i te  wedd ing  except  cer ta in  

spec i f i c  th ings tha t  the  br ide  wou ld  br ing  to  the  fami ly  bu t  

bas ica l l y  a  lo t  o f  th ings were  rea l l y  le f t  to  the  groom’s  

fami ly  to  take  ca re  o f  and maybe  tha t  wou ld  be  because 

the  idea wou ld  be  tha t  [speak ing  in  the  vernacu lar ] ,  Mr  

G igaba.   So tha t  i s ,  what  I  jus t  sa id  to  Mr  G igaba in  i s iZu lu  

i s  tha t  maybe tha t  i s  because you are  the  groom or  the  

groom’s  fami ly,  you i n i t ia ted  the  who le  t h ing  by  10 

approach ing  the  br ide ’s  fami ly  and sa id  you want  to  marry  

the i r  daughte r  so  you have to  pay more  than them.   So,  Mr  

Myburgh,  you may cont inue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  I  jus t  wanted to  ask  you,  d id  I  

unders tand you to  suggest  tha t  she,  Ms Mngoma,  m ight  

poss ib ly  have got  money f rom the  Guptas?  

MR GIGABA:    I  am not  suggest ing  tha t .   Ms Mngoma had  

her  own money.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    R igh t .  

MR GIGABA:    So  i t  was not  fo r  me to  ask  her.   Remember,  20 

I  am the  person who was –  who wanted us  to  be  marr ied  in  

te rms o f  the  an te  nupt ia l  cont rac t  w i th  no t  accrua ls .   I  

cou ld  no t  there fo re  a lso  be  seen to  be  someone who is  so  

in te res ted  in  her  money where  is  i t ,  how does she use i t ,  I  

le f t  i t  to  her  to  do  the  th ings tha t  she needed to  do .   I  
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cannot  suggest  tha t  she may have gone to  the  Guptas  to  

look  fo r  money.   I  do  no t  have any ev idence o f  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  le t  us  then …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  –  I  am sor ry ,  I  d id  unders tand on the  

f i rs t  day when you sa id  when you met  her  she crea ted th is  

impress ion  tha t  she was f rom a  wea l thy  fami ly  o r  

someth ing  to  tha t  e f fec t .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  a re  you now say ing  when you were  

marr i ed  to  he r  you got  to  know tha t  she had a  lo t  o f  money  10 

as  a  mat te r  o f  fac t  as  opposed to  the  impress ion  tha t  you 

sa id  she had created because I  go t  the  impress ion  f rom 

you tha t  you were  say ing  th i s  i s  the  impress ion  tha t  she  

gave you when you met  bu t  la te r  on  I  go t  the  impress ion  

tha t  you d id  no t  th ink  the  impress ion  was jus t i f ied .   But  

f rom what  you say,  I  am suspect ing  tha t  you may be say ing  

a t  some s tage you got  to  know tha t  she d id  have a  lo t  o f  

money.  

MR GIGABA:    I t  i s  what  I  be l ieved,  Cha i rperson,  and s t i l l  

do  even now tha t  she has a  lo t  o f  money and a t  some 20 

s tage she wou ld  have asked me to ass i s t  her  w i th  some 

a l lowances but  my unders tand ing  was tha t  she was  ask ing  

tha t ,  as  she c la imed,  tha t  the  husband has got  to  p rov ide  

a l lowances to  the i r  w ives bu t  no t  tha t  she d id  no t  have the  

money he rse l f ,  even the  l i fe  she cont inues to  lead  now is  
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qu i te  ex t ravagant ,  so  the  money is  there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  thank  you.   Cou ld  you  then go 

on to  paragraph 54?  Mr  G igaba,  th is  i s  someth ing  tha t  you  

have a l ready dea l t  w i th ,  i t  i s  where  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry ,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You den ied  tha t  your  wedd ing  cou ld  

have cost  the  k ind  o f  money tha t  she c la ims.   A re  you ab le  

to  g ive  an  ind ica t ion  o f  what  you r  own es t imate  m ight  be  o f  10 

what  was spent  fo r  your  wedd ing?    

MR GIGABA:    No …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    She is  ta lk ing  about  4  m i l l ion ,  5  m i l l ion .  

MR GIGABA:    No,  Cha i rpe rson,  I  cannot  g ive  an  

es t imat ion  o f  how much i t  wou ld  have cost .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GIGABA:    Bu t  I  doubt  ve ry  much tha t  i t  cos t  tha t  

much.   I  mean,  i f  I  t r ied  to  imag ine  what  wou ld  be  requ i red  

a t  a  wedd ing  o f  4  to  5  m i l l i on  you p robab ly  wou ld  have  

been a t  a  5  s ta r  ho te l ,  someth ing  l i ke  tha t .   We were  a t  the  20 

Botan ica l  Gardens in  Durban.   We had two marquees,  one  

fo r  the  wedd ing  and another  one fo r  the  recept ion  

ceremony.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And 1  m i l l ion?  Would  tha t  be  too  l i t t le ,  

too  low or  somewhere  be tween 1  m i l l ion  and 3  m i l l ion?  
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MR GIGABA:    You know,  Cha i r ,  she is  the  one who can  

te l l  you  bet te r  because she is  the  one who,  th rough he r  

fami ly ,  who took care  o f  tha t  respons ib i l i t y  and me,  I  can 

say a t  Manden i ,  Nqumeni ,  we probab ly  d id  no t  spend 

anyth ing  more  than 100 000 i f  you  cons ider  the  cos t  o f  the  

cow and ca ter ing  fo r  the  peop le  who were  there  and maybe  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Fo r  the  t rad i t iona l  wedd ing .  

MR GIGABA:    Ja ,  fo r  the  t rad i t iona l  wedd ing ,  i t  wou ld  no t  

have amounted to  even R100 000.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   So in  pa ragraph 54,  i t  i s  

her  vers ion  about  what  wou ld  happen a t  the  Gupta  

res idence,  you ca l l ing  fo r  a  lea ther  bag and i t  then been 

g iven to  you and re turn  to  your  veh ic le .   You have a l ready 

dea l t  w i th  th is ,  i s  there  anyth ing  e lse  you want  to  say in  

response to  tha t?  

MR GIGABA:    Cha i rperson,  the  issue,  as  I  sa id ,  I  mean,  

here  she submi t ted  as  annexures cop ies  o f  a  man pack.   A  

man pack ca r r ies  so  many th ings,  a t  leas t  fo r  me,  I  mean 20 

you can jus t  send someone to  the  car  w i thout  me be ing  

there  to  go  and look a t  my man pack,  they w i l l  f ind  a  who le  

lo t  o f  th ings.   Power  bank in  the re ,  who le  lo t  o f  th ings.   So  

the  man pack –  we l l ,  wou ld  no t  be  ab le  to  car ry  the  

amounts  o f  cash  wh ich  a re  p robab ly  a l leged in  he re ,  as  I  
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sa id ,  un less  i t  i s  a l leged tha t  tha t  cash was  maybe  

R10 000 and so  on .   I  do  no t  usua l l y  w i thdraw R10 000 

cash and jus t  ca r ry  i t  a round even i f  –  even when I  was 

s t i l l  the  m in is te r  I  d id  no t  do  tha t .   There  wou ld  have been  

a  few occas ions  and tha t  wou ld  have been to  pay fo r  

cer ta in  th ings wh ich  re la ted  to  the  househo ld  and  re la ted  

mat te rs ,  so  here  she says –  she  ta lks  about  th is  lea ther  

bag,  w i tness th ree  ta lks  about  e i ther  a  spor t s  bag or  a  

t rave l  bag,  they are  cont rad i c t ing  one another  in  regard  to  

th is  so-ca l led  bag because the  bag d id  no t  ex is t .   The bag 10 

d id  no t  ex is t .   Such bag tha t  used to  go  in to  the  Guptas  to  

fe tch  money and go back to  the  boot  d id  no t  ex i s t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then a t  parag raph  55 Ms  

Mngoma goes on to  say tha t :  

“ I  subsequent ly  learn t  tha t  the  lea the r  bags 

conta ined bund les  o f  cash notes . ”  

Jus t  to  repeat  the  po in t  tha t  the  Cha i rperson made,  i t  i s  

no t  her  vers ion  in  paragraph 54  tha t  she ac tua l l y  saw 

money in  the  bag a t  the  Guptas  bu t  she says she  

subsequent ly  learn t  tha t  the  lea ther  bags conta ined 20 

bund les  o f  cash notes .   She says a t  55 .1 :  

“There  were  severa l  occas ions when Mr  G igaba and 

I  wou ld  go  to  Sandton C i ty  immedia te ly  a f te r  v i s i t ing  

the  Gupta  res idence.   A t  Sandton C i ty ,  in  my fu l l  

v iew,  Mr  G igaba wou ld  take  bund les  o f  cash out  o f  
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the  same lea the r  bag tha t  he  had b rought  ou t  o f  the  

Gupta  res idence and wh ich  had been p laced in  the  

boot  o f  h is  veh ic le  fo r  hand ing  to  loans to  pay fo r  

su i t s . ”  

And then HTK Store ,  she says  tha t  when Mr  G igaba  

purchased su i ts  f rom the  s to re  su i t s  wou ld  be  kep t  as ide  

fo r  h im f rom which  he  wou ld  make a  se lec t ion ,  he  wou ld  

leave the  s to re  w i th  the  su i ts  and in fo rm the  sa lesperson 

tha t  one o f  h is  p ro tec to rs  wou ld  re turn  to  pay fo r  i t .    

 She says Mr  G igaba somet imes  shopped a t  the  10 

Fab ian i  s to re  in  Sandton C i ty  when I  was w i th  h im,  he  pa id  

in  cash fo r  c lo th ing  tha t  he  bough t  there .   She goes on to  

say on  severa l  occas ions I  had a lso  persona l ly  observed  

Mr  G igaba t ransfer r ing  money f rom h is  b rown bag.   Sor ry,  

h is  b rown and b lack  lea ther  bags  in to  h is  b rown lea the r  

persona l  bag.  

As I  reca l l ,  Cha i rperson Ms Mngoma’s  ev idence was  

tha t  she ac tua l l y  cor rec ted  tha t  and sa id  tha t  she had on ly  

seen tha t  once and…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  th ink  you a re  r igh t ,  yes .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    …she a t taches photographs.    She 

sa id  he  wou ld  l i ke  to  use the  cash f rom h is  persona l  ca r ry  

bag to  pay fo r  ou r  mea ls  a t  res tau rants  and then she ends  

o f f  by  say ing  apar t  f rom a  Lou is  Vu i t ton  handbag bought  in  

Sandton C i ty  wh ich  Mr  G igaba pa id  in  cash,  he  d id  no t  
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t yp ica l l y  buy a  g i f t  fo r  me wi th  the  cash co l lec ted  a t  the  

Gupta  res idence.   He to ld  me to use the  cred i t  ca rd  up  to  

no  more  than R100,000 month ly  c red i t  l im i t  wh ich  he  gave 

to  me years  be fore ,  th is  card  was l inked to  h is  money 

market  bank account  he  d id  however  g ive  me cash o f  

be tween 100 to  150,000 fo r  shopp ing  when ou r  ho l idayed 

overseas.   Do you want  to  dea l  w i th  tha t?   

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  thank you ,  the  s to ry  here  by  Ms  

Mngoma and Wi tness 3  they -  espec ia l l y  in  so  fa r  i s  55 .1  i s  

concerned,  they are  a l igned coached very  we l l .   You see  10 

Cha i rperson le t  me say I  have a l ready sa id  the re  was no 

cash in  my boot .   I  d id  no t  t rave l  w i th  cash,  imag ine  i f  you  

are  s topped by  t ra f f i c  o f f i cers  and there  is  a  bag o f  cash in  

your  boot .    

How do you exp la in  i t ,  where  do you say you got  i t  

f rom second ly,  th is  pe r iod  is  unspec i f ied  where  I  used to  

buy su i ts  a t  HTK ,  I  have sa id  tha t  I  am f r iends,  persona l  

f r iends w i th  the  owners  o f  HTK tha t  I  have bough t  a  few 

su i ts  f rom them.   Not  a  lo t ,  a  few I  do  no t  know how many 

f rom them most  o f  the  t ime I  wou ld  buy a  T sh i r t ,  I  wou ld  20 

buy shor ts  fo r  summer  and they  g ive  me those s tu f f  a t  

d iscounted pr ices and because we are  f r iends they a l low 

me to  abuse them and pay fo r  these th ings over  t ime.   

Th is  su i t s  you a re  ta lk ing  about  wou ld  amount  to  

about  R7000 or  someth ing  l i ke  tha t ,  someth ing  wh ich  I  
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cou ld  a f fo rd  as  a  Min i s te r  and they wou ld  a l low me to  pay 

fo r  these th ings over  t ime as  I  say  a t  d iscounted  pr ices .   

Now dur ing  the  per iod  2012 to  2013 I  embarked on a  

we igh t  loss  prog ram I  had ga ined  qu i te  s ign i f i can t  we igh t  

and because o f  tha t ,  I  -  my out f i t s  you know as  I  was  

los ing  the  we igh t  my out f i t s  needed to  be  a l te red .   They 

had an in  house ta i lo r,  they  had an  in  house ta i lo r  and one  

o f  the  ta i lo rs  o r  some o f  the  ta i lo rs  were  based a t  anothe r  

shop wh ich  has s ince c losed,  I  th ink  i t  has  been  c losed  

now fo r  about  f i ve  years  or  more .   10 

So I  used to  b r ing  my out f i t s  to  them and say guys,  

I  am in  a  rush,  can you p lease get  these th ings a l te red .   So 

a l te r ing  a  su i t ,  pants ,  a l te r ing  a  T sh i r t  cer ta in ly  does not  

need one to  car ry  loads o f  cash in  the  bag and i t  w i l l  cos t  

anyth ing  R200,  R250 someth ing  l i ke  tha t ,  tha t  you br ing  

you pay fo r  -  and  I  on ly  b rought  them g radua l ly  because I  

knew I  cou ld  no t  b r ing  every th ing  a l l  a t  once,  as  I  wou ld  be  

requ i red  to  wear  some o f  the  th ings.   

So,  I  wou ld  no t  have had to  pay fo r  these th ings a l l  

a t  once,  i t  w i l l  take  t ime fo r  me to pay fo r  them because as  20 

I  say,  I  wou ld  br i ng  them g radua l l y.   Obv ious ly,  du r ing  the  

t imes when I  was  not  p resent  I  wou ld  ask  my pro tec tors  to  

go  co l lec t ,  and when I  asked them to  go  co l lec t  the  su i ts  o r  

ou t f i t s  wh ich  have been a l te red ,  I  wou ld  no t  g ive  them 

money,  because I  wou ld  negot ia te  tha t  w i th  the  guys when  
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I  am there  as  I  come to  pay fo r  them.   

So,  th is  s to ry  o f  HTK buy ing  su i ts ,  pay ing  loads o f  

cash is  inaccura te .   Second ly,  s ince  I  met  Ms Mngoma I  

have not  shopped out f i t s  a t  Fab ian i ,  except  to  buy 

per fume,  f ragrances.   A f ragrance  cou ld  be  1800 to  1500,  

depend ing  on the  brand tha t  you a re  buy ing ,  bu t  you do not  

buy a  f ragrance every  month ,  you  buy them over  t ime,  and  

they s tay  fo r  long,  because you  do not  jus t  ge t  in to  a 

f ragrance and th row i t  in to  a  ba th tub  and swim in  i t .   You 

use i t  over  a  pe r iod  o f  t ime and then you w i l l  buy  i t  aga in  10 

the  next  few mon ths,  maybe s i x  o r  somet imes even  a  year  

and I  am qu i te  -  I  use  my f ragrances qu i te  spar ing ly.   

The f ragrances wh ich  I  bought  wh i le  I  was serv ing  

in  government ,  many o f  them I  s t i l l  have and I  have not  

bought  a  f ragrance s ince  I  le f t  government  in  2018.   So  

tha t  goes to  te l l  you  tha t  even when I  went  to  Fab ian i  and 

there  were  two f ragrances o r  th ree  a t  Fab ian i  tha t  I  l i ked  

and I  wou ld  come in  and buy those ,  tha t  d id  no t  requ i re  me  

to  car ry  a  bag,  a  b rown or  b lack  w i th  loads o f  money.   

The issue o f  these lea the r  bags in  55 .2 ,  b lack  20 

lea the r  o r  b rown  lea ther  persona l  bags.   No,  no  Cha i r  I  

have one persona l  bag,  on ly  one.   The o ther  bags  wh ich  I  

car ry  wou ld  be  work  -  we grew up  -  when we grew up they 

were  ca l led  br ie f cases someth ing  l i ke  th is ,  where  you car ry  

a l l  your  documents  and o the r  th ings wh ich  you use fo r  work  
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and i f  there  were  f i les  the  depar tment  needed you  to  s ign ,  

you do not  t rave l  a round w i th  those  f i les .   

One o f  the  th ings you are  taught  as  a  Min is te r  i s  

tha t  you do not  t rave l  a round w i th  cab ine t  f i l es  because –  

and even depar tmenta l  f i l es  because they  conta in  

c lass i f ied  in fo rmat ion  in  case any th ing  happens they must  

no t  ge t  los t  o r  fa l l  in to  wrong hands.   So the  f i les ,  the  

depar tment  wou ld  drop them o f f  a t  home,  a t  the  o f f i c ia l  

res idence.   You s ign  them and you  car ry  them back to  work  

or  i f  you  were  in  the  o f f i ce ,  they wou ld  hand them over  in to  10 

your  PA and who wou ld  hand them over  to  your  p ro tec to rs .   

They put  the  f i les  in  the  ca r,  you go home,  you s ign  

them the  fo l low ing day you b r ing  them back i f  you  cannot  

b r ing  them back they send someone to  come and co l lec t  

them.   So I  had  no empty  lea the r,  empty  brown or  b lack  

lea the r  bag tha t  was wa i t ing  fo r  s tashes o f  cash to  be  

loaded in to  so  tha t  they s tay  in  the  boot  o f  my ca r.  

And go ing  to  55 .3  when I  met  Ms  Mngoma I  had a  

Nedbank Visa  Card  w i th  a  w i thdrawal  l im i t  o f  R3000 and I  

had a  deb i t  card  wh ich  was l inked to  my Nedbank Visa 20 

Card .  I  then espec ia l l y  a f te r  she fe l l  p regnant  and  moved 

in  w i th  me,  I  then gave her  the  deb i t  card  and sa id  look in  

case I  am not  a round and you need to  buy  th ings,  

med ic ines and th ings l i ke  those because you a re  no t  ye t  on  

my medica l  a id ,  p lease use th is  card .   
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Bu t  tha t  card  cou ld  no t  w i thdraw more  than I  th ink  

the  deb i t  cards  w i thdrawal  l im i t  was even less ,  because I  

go t  the  deb i t  ca rd  when my v isa  card  go t  damaged and 

wh i le  I  was wa i t ing ,  I  needed a  deb i t  card .   I  d id  no t  have a  

c red i t  ca rd  w i th  Nedbank and even the  R100,000  month l y  

c red i t  l im i t  i s  a  l ie ,  a  b la tan t  l ie  because the  -  I  d id  no t  

have a  c red i t  ca rd .   So,  the  issue o f  a  c red i t  l im i t  on  a 

c red i t  card  fa l l s  o f f ,  I  d id  no t  have a  c red i t  card .   

The money I  had  on my v i sa  ca rd  wh ich  was in  a  

way a  cash ca rd ,  a  cheque card  was money on ly  to  the  10 

ex ten t  tha t  I  have been pa id  tha t  month  and pa id  my 

po l i c ies ,  pa id  my  deb i ts  and put  R10,000 in to  the  money  

market .  That  money market  account  was used by  me fo r  

var ious th ings,  wh ich  I  needed  to  take  care  o f  and 

there fo re  tha t  money market  account  hard l y  ever  had  

R100,000 jus t  s i t t ing  there  ava i lab le .  

And even then Ms Mngoma wou ld  never  have had  

access to  the  money market  account ,  because she was not  

the  pr inc ipa l  ho lder  o f  my account .   These th ings she says 

here  under  parag raph 55 is  a  l ie ,  b la tan t  l ie .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So jus t  go ing  back to  your  115 Mr  

G igaba wou ld  you  -  you say many ins tances…[ in tervene]  

MR GIGABA:    To  my 115?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Your  115,  yes  on  page 30.  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    You say in  many ins tances such 

su i ts  wou ld  be  sponsored by  loca l  des igners ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR GIGABA:     Yes,  some o f  them,  yes.   I  omi t ted  tha t  in  

my response now,  Cha i rpe rson,  because some o f  the  su i ts  

have been sponsored to  me because o f  my pub l i c  p ro f i le .   

Some loca l  des igners  wou ld  come to  me and say can we do 

a  su i t  fo r  you,  two su i ts  fo r  you .   Even the  su i t s  I  was  

wear ing  go ing  the  budget  day was  sponsored to  me  so  tha t  

-  and most  o f  the  su i t s  I  wou ld  wear  dur ing  the  S ta te  o f  the  10 

Nat ion  Address wou ld  be  sponsored jus t  so  tha t  I  adver t i se  

the  peop le  who have done the  su i ts .  

And I  was a  very  keen suppor te r  o f  loca l  des igners 

and tha t  i s  why you wou ld  never  have seen me wear ing  

your  b rand su i ts .   I  suppor ted  loca l  des igners  and they 

made me su i ts  and gave them to  me as a  resu l t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ms Mngoma says tha t  as  fa r  as  she 

is  concerned you on ly  had one sponsored su i t .  

MR GIGABA:    She is  l y ing  in  o rder  to  perpetuate  her  

nar ra t i ve .   I t  i s  a  l ie  and I  wou ld  no t  a lways have come to  20 

her  bu t  even i f  I  d id ,  she knows tha t  she is  l y ing  –  I  mean 

in  the  same way tha t  peop le  ask  her  to  adver t i se  the i r  

weaves they made they do  her  makeup in  o rder  to  

adver t i se  them,  g ive  her  f lowers  in  o rder  to  post  them on  

soc ia l  med ia .   
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The same app l ied  to  me and i f  you saw my soc ia l  

med ia ,  I  wou ld  have sa id  tha t  I  am wear ing  a  su i t  done by  

so  and so .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And how wou ld  you pay fo r  these 

su i ts  tha t  you bought  a t  the  HTK s tore?  

MR GIGABA:    I  th ink  I  have exp la ined tha t  I  wou ld  pay fo r  

these su i ts  over  t ime and they wou ld  be  d iscounted to  me 

and I  wou ld  pay fo r  them over t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wou ld  you pay in  cash or  wou ld  you 

pay w i th  your  deb i t  card?  10 

MR GIGABA:    Somet imes I  wou ld  pay cash,  somet imes I  

wou ld  use the  deb i t  ca rd  bu t  most  o f  the  t ime because i f  

you say to  me -  i f  I  buy  a  su i t  fo r  R7000 you g ive  me a  

d iscount  maybe  I  end up hav ing  to  pay R5000,  so  

somet imes I  wou ld  jus t  come and g ive  you 2500 and then  

g ive  you another  one or  maybe s tagger  tha t ,  even so .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then I  jus t  want  to  make sure  

tha t  I  capture  your  ev idence cor rec t l y  Mr  G igaba when i t  

comes to  the  c red i t  card  as  I  unders tand what  you  say is  

tha t  you never  gave Ms Mngoma a  cred i t  card .  20 

MR GIGABA:    Because a t  the  t ime I  met  her  I  d id  no t  have 

a  c red i t  card .   I  des t royed my Nedbank c red i t  card  long  

before  I  met  her  because o f  the  prob lems wh ich  -  I  had 

accumula ted  an  overdra f t  and I  was upset  w i th  them 

because I  though t  they needed to  cap i t  a t  the  l im i t  wh ich  I  
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had agreed w i th  them in  my cont rac t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  you -  on  your  vers ion  prov ided  

her  w i th  a  deb i t  card  w i th  a  3000 cash w i thd rawal  l im i t?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  tha t  was the  deb i t  card ,  and then tha t  

deb i t  ca rd  -  so  tha t  deb i t  -  tha t  was one account ,  wh ich  I  

used and I  gave her  the  deb i t  card .   So i f  she  needed to  

w i thdraw money,  she wou ld  ca l l  me because I  had the  main  

card ,  wh ich  cou ld  swipe and do many th ings.   The deb i t  

card  was jus t  fo r  a  cash w i thdrawal  in  o rder  to  pay fo r  

th ings tha t  she  needed to  buy in  the  ins tance tha t  10 

w i thdrawal  l im i t  o f  R3000 has been exhausted,  she wou ld  

then not  have access to  money i f  she needed money on an 

urgent  bas i s .   So the  deb i t  card  on ly  had A R3000  

w i thdrawal  l im i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So ,  jus t  so  tha t  I  unders tand i t ,  I  

mean,  a l l  these cards  have cash  w i thdrawal  l im i ts ,  what  

you are  exp la in ing  is  tha t  she cou ld  no t  use  the  ca rd  to  a 

va lue  in  excess o f  R3000.  

MR GIGABA:    Un less  she has made a  pr io r  a r rangement  

w i th  me,  so  tha t  I  do  no t  w i thd raw,  bu t  ra the r  I  sw ipe .   20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And th is  card ,  deb i t  ca rd  tha t  you gave  

he r,  do  you remember  fo r  how long she used i t ,  how long 

she kept  i t  o r  was i t  fo r  a  tempora ry  t ime –  a  pe r iod ,  o r  she  

had i t  -  o r  maybe she s t i l l  has  i t?  
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MR GIGABA:    No,  she does not  have i t  now,  i t  was fo r  a  

temporary  pe r iod  Cha i rperson.  I  cannot  reca l l  exact ly  

because i t  i s  way back in  2010,  2011.   I  do  no t  know how 

long she had the  ca rd  bu t  I  on ly  changed banks  around  

2016,  ja  a round 2016,  2017.   By  then she a l so  was -  she 

had been work ing  a t  K i j ima and she had her  own th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  you cannot  remember  how long 

she kept  i t  bu t  i t  wou ld  have been a t  leas t  some years?  

MR GIGABA:    No,  i t  wou ld  have been some months or  

maybe years ,  maybe some years ,  maybe two years .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe two years?  

MR GIGABA:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you,  then a t  paragraph  56 th is  

i s  someth ing  tha t  you a l so  dea l t  w i th ,  I  th ink  in  your  

in t roduct ion .   Th is  i s  Ms Mngoma’s  vers ion  about  v is i t s  to  

the  Gupta  res idence and then the  CPO’s  tak ing  bags f rom 

the  boot ,  p lac ing  them in  the  lounge and tha t  she then 

entered your  s tudy,  and saw you unpack ing  money f rom the 

bags in to  your  sa fe .  20 

MR GIGABA:    Cha i rperson,  was  th is  one week a f te r  the 

Gupta  wedd ing  or  was i t  a f te r  -  o r  she says tha t  we v is i ted  

the  res idents ,  and then I  wou ld  re turn  the  CPO’s  took the  

bags f rom the  boot .   How many bags were  these,  and what  

was the  payment  fo r?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  le t  me perhaps jus t  f in ish  o f f  

her  vers ion  and then le t  me ask you to  comment :  

“ I  was shocked,  she says over  the  page,  to  see a l l  

the  money and asked h im what  the  money was fo r.  

He to ld  me tha t  A jay  Gupta  gave the  money to  h im  

and tha t  was to  ass is t  the  ANC in  i t s  upcoming  

e lec t ion  campaign. ”  

So tha t  i s  -  as  I  say  i t  someth ing  you have dea l t  w i th  

a l ready,  bu t  you  are  more  than we lcome to  te l l  us  your  

vers ion .   10 

MR GIGABA:    Indeed,  as  I  say  in  my response,  you  know,  

the  issue o f  these bags,  you know,  i f  you  want  to  donate  

money to  t he  ANC you do not  g ive  i t  to  the  head o f  

e lec t ions.   

 You can ca l l  Mr  Mba lu la  r igh t  now,  he  is  the  head o f  

the  ANC e lec t ions campaign and ask h im i f  peop le  wou ld  

donate  money to  the  ANC for  the  campaign do so ,  to  h im.   

He w i l l  te l l  you ,  no ,  they do  not  because as  the  head o f  the 

e lec t ion  campaign,  you run  the  p rogram o f  e lec t ions Cha i r.  

You have got  a  number  o f  sub-commi t tees tha t  20 

repor ts  to  you,  inc lud ing  the  F inance and Fundra i s ing  Sub-

commi t tee ,  wh ich  has a  d i rec t  l ine  w i th  the  Treasurer  

Genera l  o f  the  ANC,  and the  do t ted  l ine  w i th  you,  because 

in  the  end,  the  Treasurer  Genera l  does not  g ive  the  

e lec t ions campa ign management ,  cash,  o r  money,  o r  
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access to  money fo r  the  campaign.   

I f  you  have prog rams you are  runn ing ,  the  ra l l ies ,  

the  va r ious campaign i tems,  the  adver t i s ing  market ing ,  you 

submi t  invo i ces to  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Treasurer  Genera l  and 

they ge t  pa id  f rom the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Treasurer  Genera l .   

I t  i s  no t  g iven to  you as  an  ind iv idua l  and we are  

no t  a l lowed to  go  a round ra i s ing  cash as  ind iv idua ls  

because there  w i l l  be  dup l i ca t ion ,  o r  they wou ld  have been 

dup l i ca t ions,  the  leg is la t ion  has changed now in  te rms o f  

a l l  o f  th is .   There  wou ld  have been dup l i ca t ion  in  te rms o f  10 

who the  money i s  ra i sed f rom,  the  Pres ident  wou ld  ra i se  

money,  the  SG,  the  TG,  the  head o f  e lec t ions,  o r  some 

o ther  ind iv idua ls  f rom the  same peop le ,  tha t  wou ld  have  

caused p rob lems fo r  the  ANC because peop le  wou ld  then  

wonder  whether  they a re  donat ing  money to  the  ANC or  

g iv ing  i t  to  ind iv idua ls .   

So we a re  no t  a l lowed,  we were  no t  a l lowed to  do  

tha t ,  I  there fore  wou ld  never  have gone around  ra is ing  

money.   I f  th is  money was be ing  ra ised,  because the  head  

o f  the  e lec t ions campaign does no t  go  around w i th  s tashes 20 

o f  cash tha t  you need to  use to  pay fo r  whatever.   

Every  prov ince has i t s  own budge t ,  fo r  T sh i r t s ,  fo r  

ra l l ies ,  fo r  vo lun teers ,  fo r  t ranspor t ,  fo r  b rand ing ,  fo r  

every th ing .  Every  prov ince has  i t s  budget ,  i t  has  i t s  

a l loca t ions f rom head o f f i ce ,  much o f  the  money they  
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ra ised themse lves th rough loca l  means and then  those 

ac t iv i t ies  a re  pa id  th rough those mechan isms.   

The head o f  the  e lec t ions campaign does not  go  

around ra is ing  money fo r  the  e lec t ions campaign,  because 

a l l  o f  the  i tems tha t  need -  even i f  I  ra ise  tha t  money,  tha t  

money wou ld  go  to  the  head o f f i ce  o f  the  ANC to  the 

Treasurer  Genera l ,  fo r  i t  to  be  reg i s te red there ,  i t  does not  

come in to  your  boot  and then go  in to  your  sa fe  and you 

use i t  f rom there ,  tha t  i s  no t  t rue ,  i t  i s  no t  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    But  Mr  G igaba is  i t  no t  -  we l l ,  le t  me 10 

put  i t  th is  way.   I  mean,  perhaps you were  caught  in  the  ac t  

–  I  w i l l  ask  you to  comment  on  th is ,  o f  s tash ing  cash in to  

your  p r iva te  sa fe  and then you made up th is  exp lanat ion .  

What  wou ld  you say to  tha t?  

MR GIGABA:    I  wou ld  say Cha i rperson tha t  tha t  i s  

inco r rec t .  I  th ink  i f  I  use  my in ten ts ,  i t  i s  incor rec t .   I  was 

never  caught  –  I  was never  seen o r  caught  in  the  ac t  by  Ms 

Mngoma s tash ing  money anywhere ,  because read her  

a f f idav i t .  The con t rad ic t ions  and incons is tenc ies  conta ined 

in  tha t  a f f idav i t .   A l l  tha t  she is  t ry ing  to  say is  tha t  you 20 

rece ived money.   

You rece ived money in  b lack  bags,  you rece ived  

money in  b rown bags,  you rece ived  money in  your  persona l  

ma i l  bag and you  took th is  money to  your  account .   Inso far  

as  I  am concerned,  there  was no such money tha t  was 
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g iven to  me by  the  Gupta ’s  o r  by  anybody.   So i f  Ms 

Mngoma had money herse l f  o r  so  money i t  cer ta in ly  was  

not  in  my possess ion  and i t  had not  been co l lec ted  by  me 

anywhere .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Do you have a  -  o r  d id  you  have a  

sa fe  in  you r  s tudy in  th is  house?  

MR GIGABA:    The sa fe  in  th i s  s tudy is  p rov ided in  a l l  

Min is te r i a l  res idences.  I t  i s  fo r  the  sa fekeep ing  o f  the 

documents ,  o f  the  conf ident ia l  documents  o f  Cab ine t  

Commi t tees and depar tments  and those are  the  th ings tha t  10 

you s tore  in  there  and you do not  s to re  any money in  them.  

Yes,  I  had the  sa fe  bu t  i t  was fo r  the  purpose,  wh ich  I  have  

jus t  ou t l ined.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And can you reca l l  an  inc ident  where  

she came to  your  s tudy to  te l l  you  tha t  one o f  your  ch i ld ren  

were  i l l  and tha t  you needed to  go  to  hosp i ta l?  

MR GIGABA:    No,  I  do  no t  reca l l  tha t  inc ident .   I  mean,  i f  

ch i ld ren  are  i l l  -  o r  le t  me jus t  say  I  do  no t  reca l l  tha t  

inc ident .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  and then le t  us  dea l  w i th 20 

Noz ipho Gigaba…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  Mr  Myburgh,  can I  take  both  

o f  you back to  the  quest ion  o f  the  card  tha t  Mr  G igaba sa id  

he  gave to  her.   You may or  you may not  have covered th is  

e i ther  Mr  Myburgh or  now but  I  th ink  i t  was in  regard  to  
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your  vers ion  tha t  the  card  you gave her  had a  l im i t  o f  

R3000,  i f  I  am not  m is taken.   

I  th ink  i t  was in  response to  tha t  vers ion ,  tha t  she  

sa id  when she appeared the  las t  t ime here  tha t  she sa id ,  

what  cou ld  she  do w i th  R3000  rounds.   Now,  i f  I  am 

mis taken,  Mr  Myburgh,  you must  remind me but  I  know tha t  

she sa id ,  what  cou ld  I  do  w i th  R3000?  

And my unders tand ing  was tha t  -  tha t  may have 

been sa id  in  response to  th is  to  say,  he  cou ld  no t  g ive  me 

R3000 because I  cou ld  no t  do  anyth ing  w i th  R3000.   Mr 10 

Myburgh is  my reco l lec t ion…intervene]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.   

CHAIRPERSON:    What  do  you say to  her  respond ing  in  

tha t  way,  to  your  vers ion  in  th is  regard?  

MR GIGABA:    Cha i rperson,  Ms Mngoma probab ly  was use  

-  and is  use  to  an  ex t ravagant  l i fes ty le ,  where  R3000 does 

not  mean anyth ing .   For  many peop le ,  fo r  many househo lds 

in  South  A f r i ca  R3000 wou ld  be  a  luxury  and in  th is  

ins tance,  she had her  own money and a l l  tha t  I  d id  was to  

say to  her  use th is  in  case you need to  buy th ings re la ted  20 

to  your  p regnancy,  the  med ic ines,  o r  whatever  e lse  or  

some househo ld  th ings tha t  you  need fo r  you to  have  

maybe wh i le  I  am not  away,  I  mean ,  wh i le  I  am not  a round.  

So i f  she though t  tha t  the  R3000  was noth ing ,  bu t  

tha t  i s  what  was  in  the  card  as  a  w i thdrawal  l im i t ,  wh ich  
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w i thdrawal  l im i t  was shared between he r,  herse l f  and I  and 

fo r  many househo lds  in  South  A f r i ca  R3000 is  qu i te  a 

luxu ry.  I t  i s  money tha t  they w ish  to  have but  do  no t  have.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.  I f  we cou ld  tu rn  to  

parag raphs 57 and 58 re la t ing  to  Noz ipho Gigaba.   Ms  

Mngoma says:  

“That  dur ing  2013  your  fa ther  ca l led  us  to  a  meet ing  

a t  you r  fami ly  home in  Mend in i  in  Kwazu lu  Nata l  

fo l low ing a  pr iva te  d iscuss ion  tha t  Mr  G igaba he ld  10 

w i th  h is  fa the r,  he  to ld  me tha t  h is  fa ther  had asked  

h im to  ass i s t  h i s  s i s te r.   Ms Noz ipho Gigaba to  

se t t le  her  R850,000 bad debt  in  her  name.   Mr  

G igaba to ld  me tha t  when we re turned home,  he  

wou ld  ask  Mr  A jay  Gupta  fo r  the  money.   A t  a  la te r  

s tage,  th is  i s  pa ragraph 58,  Mr  G igaba to ld  me tha t  

A jay  Gupta  had agreed to  g ive  h im  the  850,000 and 

tha t  Mr  Mah langu  wou ld  co l lec t  the  in i t ia l  amount  o f  

425,000 fo r  payment  towards the  debt .   He a lso  to ld  

me tha t  Mr  Mah langu wou ld  ass i s t  the  fami ly  w i t h  20 

the  process to  have h i s  s i s te r 's  name removed f rom 

an adverse  l i s t ing  by  cred i t  bureaus.   I  was  

in fo rmed tha t  the  name was removed f rom cred i t  

l i s t ing . ”  

You want  to  respond to  tha t?  
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MR GIGABA:    Th is  i s  a lso  no t  a  l ie ;  I  mean sor ry  i t  i s  a  

l ie .  I f  my fa ther  –  you know my fa ther  was a  t rad i t iona l  

man.   I f  my fa ther  wanted to  d iscuss issues re la t ing  to  my 

s is te rs  or  the  fami ly,  he  wou ld  ca l l  me as  h i s  e ldest  son.   

He wou ld  ca l l  me,  s i t  me down -  and he d id  no t  d iscuss 

those th ings on  the  phone he wou ld  ca l l  me home,  s i t  me 

down and d iscuss those th ings.   So my father  never  ca l led  

Ms Mngoma and I  to  d iscuss my s is ter ’s  bad debt .   Yes she 

had accumulated  bad debt  at  some stage and she – she 

needed assis tance wi th  advice on how to deal  wi th  the –  10 

wi th  the b lackl i s t ing – the – ja  wi th  – wi th  adverse l is t ing by 

credi t  bureaus wh i ls t  she so ld off  her  assets and l iqu idated 

her  company so that  she can set t le  the debts.  

 So the bad debt  d id  not  accumulate in  – in  the  

absence of  assets being avai lab le  for  my s is ter  to  se l l  and 

to  set t le  those – to  set t le  those debts and that  is  what  she 

d id.  

 What  she asked – what  I  asked Mr Mahlangu to do 

was to  advise me on how to deal  wi th  – how to advise her.   I  

asked h im to adv ise me how to advise her  on deal ing wi th  20 

the credi t  bureaus.   And I  d id  not  ask h im to  help  remove 

my s is ter ’s  name f rom the  cred i t  bureaus because our  

understanding was that  the l iqu idat ion process and the  

se l l ing of  assets would take t ime but  u l t imate ly  i t  would be 

done and she would be able to  c lear  her  name f rom the 
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credi t  bureaus.  

 Now you wi l l  see in  the – in  the emai l  that  is  the – 

that  is  in  the possession of  the commission which was f rom 

s is ter  to  me that  she says in  that  emai l  that  I  cont inued to 

engage var ious sources to  assis t  me to ensure the 

set t lement  of  th is  debt .  

 She d id not  say to  me thank you for  how you helped 

me or  for  o ffe r ing  to  help me.   I  suggest  you go ta lk  to  so  

and so – she sa id I  cont inued to engage var ious sources to  

help me set t le  th is  debt .   But  the debt  was set t led in  large 10 

measure  through the l iqu idat ion process and sel l ing  of  the 

assets.   

 Where I  would have helped would have been on 

occasion when – because her  pract ices at  some point  

ground to a hal t .  So I  would assis t  wi th  here is  some money 

for  you to  buy grocer ies because she was ra is ing our  la te  

s is ter ’s  son.   So i t  was necessary for  us to  assis t  in  –  in  – 

wi th  the grocer ies so that  the ch i ld  and my s is ter  would 

have food.  

 I t  would have been i r responsib le of  me not  to  help  20 

her  in  some regard.   But  I  d id  help her  wi th  regard to  a 

month ly  a l lowances and even then i t  was not  every  month.   

I  probably would have helped her  two or  three t imes 

because the greatest  burden of  th is  responsib i l i ty  was 

borne by my parents.   Even though they were ret i red –  
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c lose to  ret i rement  but  the greatest  burden of  th is  

responsib i l i t y  was borne by my parents.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The – the – tha t  is  the burden o f  do ing 

what?  

MR GIGABA:   Of  assis t ing wi th  l i v ing – l iv ing  

CHAIRPERSON:   Expenses.  

MR GIGABA:   Expenses yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Not  for  –  not  to  set t le  the debt .  

MR GIGABA:   No – they could not  a fford set t l ing the debt .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  10 

MR GIGABA:   And that  is  why we – we said – because my 

s is ter  a t  the t ime I  th ink had about  three pract ices – 

optometry pract ices so our  decis ion was i f  you se l l  your  

assets and l iqu idate the company i t  puts you in  a  bet te r  

posi t ion and tha t  is  what  she d id for  –  l iqu idate the  

company – se l l  the assets off  = get  out  o f  the optometry  

pract ice.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So she l iqu idated those pract ices – do  

you say she had three of  them? 20 

MR GIGABA:   Ja  I  th ink she had – I  th ink she had three of  

them.   Probably the th i rd  one was not  fo rmal  but  there were  

– there were two formal  one in  Por t  Shepstone another  one 

I  th ink in  Mount  Ayl i f f  or  someth ing l ike that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Por t  Shepstone and Mount  
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Edgecombe.  

MR GIGABA:   Mount  Edgecombe – no.   Mount  Ayl i f f .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sor ry I  have – Mount  what?  

MR GIGABA:   Mount  Ayl i f f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mount  Ayl i f f .  

MR GIGABA:   I  th ink i t  was Mount  Ayl i f f  I  could be  wrong 

wi th  the second one.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mount  Ayl i f f .  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .    10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  that  the Eastern Cape.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And perhaps I  could just  for  the sake 

of  completeness ask you fo r  the f i rs t  t ime to turn to  your  –  

your  exhib i t .   Exhib i t  BB24 th is  i s  Transnet  Bundle 7(a) .   

Could you p lease go to  page – you know there is  a  ser ies of  

documents Mr Gigaba fo l lowing page 996.   Could you turn 

up 996.14.  

CHAIRPERSON:   P lease just  repeat  which – is  i t  a  bundle? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes Bundle  – Transnet  Bundle 7(a)  20 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And we are at  Exhib i t  BB24.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

MR GIGABA:   Yes I  am there – I  am there.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Page 996.14 Chai r.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So what  we have here is  an emai l  

f rom your  s is te r  to  you and she says:  

CHAIRPERSON:   One second Mr Myburgh.   I  see that  we 

have gone past  four  but  I  do not  see Mr Anoj  S ingh and her  

legal  team as yet .    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  am sure they are probably  s i t t ing 

just  outs ide Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja so  maybe – maybe we wi l l  go  on  wi th  10 

Mr Gigaba unt i l  ha l f  past  four  or  what  a re you suggest ing? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  I  th ink that  Mr Gigaba may have 

to come back in  any case.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no he wi l l  –  ja  – he wi l l  have to  – we 

wi l l  not  be able to  f in ish.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So I  –  hal f  past  four  i s . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hal f  past  four  should be f ine.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   F ine.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  Mr Gigaba we wi l l  go wi th  you up to  

hal f  past  four.   I  know that  on Thursday I  th ink we – we a l l  20 

thought  we would  f in ish today but  I  do not  th ink that  we can 

f in ish today wi thout  do ing in just i ce  to  the issues because i t  

is  important  that  you a lso get  an opportuni ty  to  deal  wi th  a l l  

the important  issues.   So okay a l l  r ight .   99? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   996.14 Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So Mr Gigaba th is  is  the emai l  that  

you speak about  as I  understand i t .  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I t  is  f rom your  s is ter  to  you,  the  

subject  is  ITC Debt  and you then fo rward that  on to  Mr 

Mahlangu.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you say:  

“Herewi th f ind at tached the issue we spoke 10 

about  regard ing my s is te r. ”  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you say you wanted h im to do  

what?  

MR GIGABA:   I  wanted h im to g ive us advice f rom a legal  

po int  o f  v iew.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .   And then… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry Mr Myburgh.   996.4? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   14 Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh 14.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   14.  

CHAIRPERSON:   14.   Okay I  am there.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you then you see at  996.15 that  

is  e ffect i ve ly  a l is t  o f  her  debts,  is  that  correct?  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   So the one th ing that  Ms Mngoma gets  

a lmost  r ight  i s  that  she was indebted to  the tune o f  about  

R850 000.00.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So I  take i t  then you deny that  A jay  

Gupta gave you any money.   You deny that  Mr Mahlangu 

would have gone and received the f i rs t  par t  payment .  

MR GIGABA:   Chai rperson i f  you read the emai ls  because 

th is  i s  the tangib le ev idence before the commission.   

Nowhere do I  say  to  Mr Mahlangu go fe tch money f rom Ajay.   10 

Nowhere does my s is ter  say you commit ted to  get t ing  

money f rom Mr A jay Gupta.   Here my s is ter  says I  am 

ta lk ing to  people I  can par tner  wi th  that  is  996.14 –  

“ I  am ta lk ing to  people I  can par tner  wi th  

regard ing business opportuni t ies so I  can 

pay money – so  that  I  can earn  money to  

pay off .   Obviously I  wi l l  be carefu l  because 

I  work where I  work or  do I  see no opt ion 

other  than to  do work on the s ide. ”  

 My s is te r  was commit t ing herse l f  in  addi t ion to  20 

l iqu idat ion and se l l ing of  o ff  assets  to  t ry ing to  ra ise  money 

to business on the s ide fo r  her  to  able to  pay th is  money 

off .   And – and she says on – in  996.15 

“ I  wi l l  do  whatever  I  need to do to  sor t  th is  

out .   I  am consider ing some opt ions. ”  
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 So there is  no ta lk  here other  than the lud ic rous 

a l legat ions by Ms Mngoma.   There is  no ta lk  here of  ta lk ing 

to  Mr Gupta and so l i c i t ing money f rom them.   Th is is  a  

conversat ion between a brother  and a s is ter  about  how to  

deal  wi th  th is  and she is  commit t ing to  doing whatever  she 

can in  order  to  do  these th ings.  

 I f  you look at  some of  these issues the – the – many 

of  these th ings would be sor ted out  by just  se l l ing them off  

and ensur ing tha t  whoever is  – whichever  bank is  be ing  

owed takes care of  –  of  i ts  debts.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now at  58 she says at  the end.  

“He a lso to ld  me – and that  is  a  re ference to  

you – that  Mahlangu would assis t  the fami ly  

wi th  the process to  have h is  s is ter ’s  name 

removed f rom an adverse l i s t ing by  credi t  

bureaus.    I  was in fo rmed that  the name was 

removed f rom credi t  l is t ing. ”   

 Is  that  correct  or  incorrect?  

MR GIGABA:   I t  is  incor rect .   The only advice I  asked for  Mr 

Mahlangu as in  re la t ion to  what  needs to  be done in  o rder  20 

to  remove the names f rom – to  remove her  name f rom the 

ITC.  

 But  what  Mr Mah langu advised us  was what  I  have 

sa id.   We d id not  ask Mr Mahlangu to get  the name removed 

because I  d id  not  th ink he had any in f luence wi th  the credi t  
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bureaus so that  through h is  in f luence my s is ter ’s  names 

would – my s is te r ’s  name would therefore be removed as a  

consequence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  have seen Mr Mahlangu’s aff idavi t  which 

deals wi th  I  th ink some of  the mat ters deal t  wi th  by Ms 

Mngoma.   I  have seen that  he denies that  you asked h im to 

co l lect  money f rom… 

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Gupta and I  th ink he a lso says that  you 

never  asked h im to actual l y  he lp her  to  c lear  her  name wi th  10 

the credi t  bureau.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you – you – he – what  he says he d id 

is  to  advise her  to  approach an at torney I  th ink in  regard to  

the b lackl is t ing.   I  th ink that  i s  what  he says.  

MR GIGABA:   That  is  what  he sa id .   That  is  what  he  sa id to  

us yes.   And I  was not  asking  h im to have her  name 

removed because as I  say I  d id  not  th ink he had in f luence 

at  the credi t  bureau.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Wel l  when – when I  read Ms 20 

Mngoma’s vers ion  insofar  as she may have been say ing that  

you sa id you had asked Mr Mahlangu to assis t  to  remove 

her  name or  c lear  her  name wi th  the credi t  bureau I  thought  

because i t  i s  the type of  work that  would be done by 

at torneys and he was a non-pract ic ing at to rney tha t  would  
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have been the context  to  say she knows exact ly  what  to  do  

– what  should be  done.   But  he does say you d id not  ask 

h im to do that .  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Mr Gigaba could we 

go then to  paragraph 59.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I t  reads accord ing to  Ms Mngoma.  

“The Gupta ’s  had a lso employed Ms Nazipo 

Gigaba in  a market ing posi t ion a t  Sahara 10 

Computers.   As far  as I  know she d id not  

work there for  very long before leaving the i r  

employ. ”  

You say:  

“My s is te r  worked at  Sahara Computers for  a  

per iod of  no more than four  months an 

employment  she got  hersel f  wi thout  my 

assis tance. ”  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Is  that  –  would that  have been four  20 

months around about  th is  t ime –  the t ime when she was 

having a bad debt  problem? 

MR GIGABA:   I  –  I  do not  exact ly  recal l  what  per iod i t  was 

but  she had a l ready le f t  her  pract ices – her  optometry  

pract ices.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   So what  work d id she do at  Sahara 

Computers?  

MR GIGABA:   I  do not  know Chai r  I  d id  not  ask.   She got  

the employment  hersel f .   I t  was not  my – I  do not  go around 

asking my s is te rs  or  my re lat ives to  expla in to  me what  they 

do – where – how they appl ied – how they knew about  

vacancies.  They are adul t  ind iv iduals and legal  personas.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .   So th is  was af te r  she had 

le f t  her  pract ice.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And d id  she work for  Sahara 

Computers here in  Johannesburg? 

MR GIGABA:   Yes I  th ink so.   I  am not  sure.   I  –  no le t  me 

not  say yes I  am not  sure.   I  am not  sure whether  i t  was in  

Johannesburg or  Durban I  am not  very sure.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you know whether  she knew the  Gupta  

fami ly  or  any member of  the Gupta fami ly  at  any stage 

before she got  employed there – before she may have 

in teracted wi th  them wi th regard to  get t ing a  job.   Would  

you know whether  she had known them? 20 

MR GIGABA:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Before that .  

MR GIGABA:   No Chai rperson.   To my knowledge she d id  

not  know them and as you can see a lso she d id not  s tay  

long because she got  a  job at  COPTA and she then moved 
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to  work there.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So you d id not  he lp her  secure th is  

employment .  

MR GIGABA:   Absolute ly  not .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You d id help your  other  s is te r  secure  

employment  at  Transnet .  

MR GIGABA:   Absolute ly  not .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  you at  least  fo rwarded her  CV to  

Mr Buthelez i .  10 

MR GIGABA:   The – wel l  except  – except  Chai r  by  

forward ing the CV but  there is  no  other  he lp.   I  th ink i f  I  

understand the quest ion to  mean bare your  in f luence or  

br ing your  in f luence to bare in  order  to  secure the  

employment  – no I  d id  not  do that .   Just  as I  d id  not  he lp Ms 

Mngoma hersel f  get  employment  at  Gi j ima.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Let  me see i f  I  can in  the next  or  we 

can Mr Gigaba in  the next  s ix  or  seven minutes f in ish  th is  

other  top ic  deal ing wi th  the renovat ions and then we can –  

we can stop at  the money counter.  20 

 So what  Ms Mngoma says is  that  dur ing your  tenure  

as Min is ter  o f  DPE you to ld  her  that  you wanted to  extend 

your  two bedroom f la t  s i tuated in  f ront  o f  the main house on 

the fami ly ’s  p lo t  in  Mandin i  KwaZulu Nata l  –  a b igger  house 

would bet te r  accommodate our  fami ly  and manage pol i t i cs.   
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She goes onto say that  Mr Gigaba cont racted h is  brother - in -

law who she refers to  as the bu i lder  to  do the bui ld ing 

renovat ions.  She says that  she learnt  that  Mr A jay Gupta 

funded the bui ld ing renovat ion when one day Mr Gigaba to ld  

me that  he was going to  get  the money f rom Ajay Gupta to  

pay the bui lder.   He la te r  ca l led the same day to  te l l  me that  

he was f l y ing to  KwaZulu Nata l  immediate ly  to  pay the  

bui lder.   I  do not  know the cost  o f  the bui ld ing renovat ions 

but  the completed st ructure which took a few months to  

bui ld  consisted o f  three bedrooms,  two bathrooms and a 10 

lounge area.  She goes on to  say that  she was present  on at  

least  th ree occas ions when Mr Gigaba paid the bu i lder  in  

bundles of  cash for  the t i l ing and p lumbing.   I  do not  know 

how much money was g iven.   And she then concludes by 

saying despi te  assurances that  Mr  Gigaba gave to me I  do  

not  know i f  he off ic ia l l y  declared any g i f ts ,  cash etcetera.  

 You want  to  deal  wi th  that  p lease.  

MR GIGABA:   Chai rperson the – the extension  of  th is  – the  

– our  res idence at  Mandin i  was bui l t  by my parents.   The 

extension of  the two bedroom that  was – which is  descr ibed 20 

here was a lso my father ’s  idea g iven the fact  that  Ms 

Mngoma was pregnant  wi th  our  f i rs t  son and my father  

thought  we needed – actual l y  I  do not  th ink i t  was dur ing 

the f i rs t  son I  th ink i t  must  have been when the second son 

was to be  born when my father  wanted to  extend the house 
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so that  the ch i ld ren inc lud ing my nephew and my daughter  

would – you know when they are home have ample rooms to  

s leep and I  a lso  needed to have a room because I  was 

get t ing marr ied again and the fami ly  was extending.  

 My father  undertook those renovat ions h imsel f  to  the  

extent  again that  I  he lped h im would have been – because I  

–  you know when your  fa ther  says I  am going to  do  th is  for  

you you do not  s i t  back and say oh okay go ahead.   To  the  

extent  that  I  made any cont r ibut ion  I  remember very wel l  

go ing to  buy the t i les,  paying for  the t i les,  paying for  some 10 

of  the th ings that  needed to be put  in to the house as they 

were doing the house and bui ld ing those rooms.  

 There is  no money you know that  we got  f rom the 

Gupta ’s  for  th is .   The nar rat i ve that  Ms Mngoma keeps 

repeat ing is  you went  to  fe tch money,  you went  to  fe tch 

money but  I  d id  not  see the money but  I  saw you pay ing off .   

She says in  paragraph – in  paragraph 61 that  I  to ld  her  that  

I  was going to  get  money to  pay the bui lder.   I  then sa id 

la ter  I  was f ly ing  down to pay the  bui lder  in  KZN but  then 

she says subsequent ly  she was present  at  least  three t imes 20 

– on th ree occasions when I  pa id the bui lder  in  bundles of  

cash fo r  the t i l ing and p lumbing and I  do not  know how 

much money was g iven.  

 Ti les and p lumbing – t i l ing and p lumbing is  no t  

expensive.   I f  you work as  a Min is ter  you know as a Min is te r  
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look at  th is .   You do not  pay for  your  f l ight .   You do not  pay 

for  the cars.   You do not  – I  do not  h i re  a  car  when I  get  to  

Durban.   I  have got  two res idences.   I  pay rent  very  

d iscounted rent  a t  one of  those res idences and you choose 

which one whether  i t  is  Cape Town or  Pretor ia .   You do not  

pay fo r  pet ro l .   Your  fami ly  can f ly  wi th  you – you do not  

pay.   So your  income actual l y  is  there and avai lab le 

because you – and therefore you are able to  use i t  for  

cer ta in  th ings.   Cer ta in ly  p lumbing and t i l i ng does not  need 

money f rom the Gupta ’s .   I t  is  money which I  cou ld afford 10 

mysel f  as a person who was work ing in  that  posi t ion at  the  

t ime.    

 So the – the under ly ing  nar rat i ve  of  th is  is  an  

unt ruth.   What  is  t rue is  that  there were extensions.   They 

were undertaken by  my father.   I  asked my la te brother - in -

law to oversee th is  because my father  was o ld and you need 

someone who is  more hands on to  oversee the bui lder  when 

they are doing the bui ld ing so that  I  do not  expect  my father  

to  be doing – to  be doing that  on a constant  basis.  

 And there was no occasion not  even one where Mr 20 

Mngoma was present  when I  pa id the bui lder.   To the extent  

that  I  would have paid for  t i l ing and so on or  p lumbing what  

the bui lder  would  say to  me is  that  look I  have found th ings 

which are qui te  reasonable d iscounted.   I  work wi th  the –  

wi th  the var ious hardware shops and therefore I  am able to  
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get  th ings cheaper f rom them.    

 I f  you go d i rect ly  to  them they are going to  charge 

you an arm and a  leg – go th rough me.   I  wi l l  get  – I  wi l l  get  

the stuff  you wi l l  pay me or  you pay me in  advance and then 

I  wi l l  go get  the stuff .   Qui te  reasonable stuff  –  qui te  

reasonable extensions so that  we are able  to  be 

accommodated as  the fami ly  i s  extending.  

 This money d id not  come f rom the Gupta ’s .    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr Gigaba.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  a re you – I  am sor ry.   Are you saying  10 

that  i t  was your  fa ther  who paid.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Most  of  the expenses requi red for  the 

extension of  the house.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And whatever  you paid would have been 

for  a  few i tems.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  just  –  perhaps I  can just  p ick up  on 20 

that .   I  understood f rom your  paragraph 132 that  any… 

MR GIGABA:   Paragraph? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   132.  

MR GIGABA:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So that  is  opposi te  Ms Mngoma’s 
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paragraph 60.   I  understood your  vers ion to  be that  any 

extensions and renovat ions that  may have been done at  the 

proper ty  were funded by your  la te fa ther.   I  d id  not  

understand your  vers ion to  be that  you paid for  them or  par t  

o f  them.  

MR GIGABA:   I  s t i l l  say – wel l  I  d id  pay for  par ts  of  the – of  

the renovat ions but  the greatest  par t  o f  the extensions and 

renovat ions Chai rperson were paid for  by my father.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And i f  you have a look at  paragraph 

61 at  the end.   Is  i t  common cause between you and Ms 10 

Mngoma that  the completed st ructure – the competed 

renovat ions cons isted of  three bedrooms,  two bathrooms 

and a lounge area.   Is  that  correct?  

MR GIGABA:   Wel l  the second bed – bathroom to the  extent  

that  i t  is  an en-sui te  in  my bedroom yes that  is  t rue .   So ja 

th is  i s  consistent .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So Ms Mngoma says that  or  as you 

have ment ioned your  fa ther  was a ret i red reverend or  

pastor.   He – accord ing to  her  d id  not  have a lo t  o f  money in  

fact  he could not  a t  the t ime affo rd h is  own medica l  b i l l s  20 

and i t  rea l ly  was on that  basis  that  she denied qui te  

categor ica l l y  that  these renovat ions could have been funded 

by h im.  You want  to  comment  on that?  

MR GIGABA:   Chai rperson you know I  – I  honest ly  s incere ly  

and wi th  great  pa in regret  the  insu l t ing of  my father  in  th is  
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fashion.   The dragging of  my la te fa ther  to  th is  p la t form to  

insul t  h im in  th is  fashion is  rea l l y  very painfu l  to  me.    

 My father  worked and my mother  they worked and 

broke the i r  backs bui ld ing us that  res idence.  That  p roper ty  

when my father  d ied he le f t  that  p roper ty  in  the custody of  

h is  grandchi ld ren not  even us.  

 He bui l t  the house for  h is  grandchi ldren not  even us .   

As a pr iest  as he was anybody would say to  you that  a  

pr iest  could not  a fford a proper ty  l ike that  but  my parents 

worked hard to  af ford i t  –  to  bui ld  i t .   And my parents would 10 

do many other  th ings in  order  to  earn an income.   At  one 

stage my father  had a t ractor,  had two t ra i lers,  a  number of  

th ings I  do not  know thei r  names in  Engl ish to  assis t  people 

wi th  agr icu l tu ra l  p rograms and he charged them.   He earned 

an income out  o f  that  which he saved both to  bui ld  us that  

proper ty  and to  bui ld  us – and to save fo r  the fu ture.  

 We went  – my parents had f i ve  ch i ldren.   We went  to  

univers i t y  a l l  f ive of  us and they used the i r  meagre incomes 

and whatever  they generated on the s ide.   There were 

moments when my mother  had to  bear  the burden of  20 

provid ing food fo r  us because father ’s  – my dad’s  income 

was spent  on educat ing us.  

 Come someone who jo ins my fami ly  in  2014 who 

does not  know how hard th is  fami ly  has worked and insul t  

my parents and demeans the i r  e ffor ts  in  o rder  to  00:28:37 
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out  –  to  00:28:39 a marr iage – a d ivorce set t lement  out  o f  

me.   Not  on ly – I  would be happy i f  she – i t  was me she was 

dest roy ing and demeaning.   I  wou ld be okay i f  I  – i f  i t  was 

me she was at tack ing.   But  my father  in  h is  deathbed to be  

to ld  he  could not  a ffo rd h is  own medica l  b i l l s .   My fa ther  

had medica l  a id .   My father  had ch i ld ren that  could look 

af ter  h im.   I f  my fa ther  could not  a f ford any medic ines I  was 

there to  provide those medic ines for  h im as I  cont inue to  do 

so fo r  my mother  today.   My mother  was a nurse.   My 

mother  worked.   She had an income.  She had pension.   She 10 

had medica l  a id .   This is  an insul t  that  is  very painfu l  to  me 

and my fami ly  and I  am sorry Chai rperson for  ra is ing my 

voice but  i t  is  –  i t  is  –  I  mean no d isrespect  towards the  

Chai rperson or  the commission.   I t  is  just  the pain and the  

anger wh ich  I  then fe l t .   I t  i s  how my fee l ing  –  i t  i s  be ing  

dragged in to  th is ,  when they do  no t  deserve  i t .   To  say tha t  

my fa the r  cou ld  no t  a f fo rd  med ica l  b i l l s ,  i t  i s  no t  jus t  

un t rue ,  i t  i s  insu l t ing .   But  Cha i rperson i t  i s  my submiss ion  

tha t  my fa ther  and my mother  cou ld  –  had a lways  looked  

a f te r  ou r  fami ly  even f rom the  modest  incomes o f  a  nu rse  20 

and  a  pr ies t .   Were  ab le  to  do  what  they needed to  do  to  

look  a f te r  us .    

 And tha t  i s  why I  even –  when we  got  marr i ed ,  my  

parents  wou ld  say to  me:   Son,  we are  no t  go ing  to  le t  you 

bear  the  fu l l  respons ib i l i t y.   I  w i l l  buy  the  cow.   Son,  do  no t  
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wor ry  about  par t s  o f  what  you need to  buy as  th i s  fo r  the  

br ida l  pa r ty.   We wi l l  p rov ide  fo r  t ha t .   I  never  asked them 

why cow(?) .   I  took  tha t  to  becoming f rom the i r  hear ts .    

 They have looked a f te r  us  a l l  the i r  l i ves .   And I  

apprec ia te  what  my parents  have  done fo r  them.   And we 

w i l l  never  a l low anyone to  insu l t  them.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Cha i rman,  i f  th is  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cha i rpe rson,  i f  th is  i s  a  good t ime to 

ad journ  . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . .Mr  G igaba ’s  ev idence?  We can 

p ick  up  then a t  the  Gupta  money accounts  when we  

reconvene.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Mr  So lomon.    

ADV SOLOMON :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We have not  spoken to  h im th roughout  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SOLOMON :    Aga in ,  Mr  Cha i rperson,  I  am here .    

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   Okay a l r igh t .   We 20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    S t i l l  awake.  [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    Unfor tunate l y,  we are  no t  ab le  to  

comple te  Mr  G igaba ’s  ev idence.   I  th ink  we –  when we a l l  

par ted  on  Thursday,  we thought  i t  was go ing  to  be  poss ib le  
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bu t  I  th ink  i f  we were  –  i f  we t r ied  to  do  tha t ,  we wou ld  do  

in jus t i ce  on  some o f  the  impor tan t  i ssues.   I  w i l l  have to  –  

we w i l l  have to  –  I  w i l l  have to  f i x  another  da te .   I f  i t  i s  too 

c lose ,  then we w i l l  negot ia ted  i t  bu t  i f  we th ink  i t  i s  

reasonab le ,  we w i l l  jus t  impose  jus t ,  as  we have been  

do ing  and then –  so  tha t  we can f in ish .   I  am sure  we w i l l  

f in ish  next  t ime.   So i t  shou ld  be  poss ib le  fo r  you to  know 

the  da te  w i th in  the  next  few days . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SOLOMON :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .what  the  da te  wou ld  be  but ,  as  I  say,  i f  10 

i t  i s  too  c lose ,  t here  wou ld  be  d i scuss ions.   Mr  Myburgh 

w i l l  ta lk  to  you.   

ADV SOLOMON :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  we th ink  i t  i s  a  reasonab le  no t ice ,  then 

we w i l l  jus t  impose the  da te .    

ADV SOLOMON :    I  hope we w i l l  be  ab le  to  f ind  each o ther  

w i th  the  best  su i tab le  –  huge ly  su i tab le  da te .   Thank you,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.   Thank you,  Mr  So lomon.   

Thank you,  Mr  G igaba.   We are  go ing  to  ad journ  fo r  about  20 

ten  m inutes  to  enab le  the  Transnet  work  s t ream and to  –  

we l l ,  bas ica l l y,  Mr  Ano j  S ingh and h is  lega l  team to  come in  

and in fo rm Mr  Myburgh to  be  ready.   We ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 
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CHAIRPERSON :    Good a f te rnoon,  aga in ,  Mr  Myburgh.   

Good a f te rnoon,  everybody.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Good a f te rnoon.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Good a f te rnoon,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Good a f te rnoon.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rpe rson,  jus t  be fore  my 

c l ien t  ge ts  sworn  in .   Based on some o f  the  quest ions tha t  

my learned  f r iend has asked on the  las t  occas ion  tha t  we  

were  here  on  Fr iday,  my c l ien t  has co l la ted  some ev idence 

and he w ishes to  p lace  tha t  be fore  you –  be fore  tha t  l ine  o f  10 

quest ion ing  is  f in ished.   So i f  he  may,  p lease,  be  g iven an  

oppor tun i ty  to  dea l  w i th  those issues?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  leave i t  to  Mr  Myburgh because  

he is  aware  o f  i t  and then a t  the  r igh t  t ime i t  can be  

handed –  they can be –  I  can re fer  to  them.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And they can be handed up.   I  have the  

reg i s t ra r  today who d id  th is  job  fo r  a  long t ime,  somet ime 

back,  bu t  she has no t  done recent ly.   So she has put  a l l  o f  

these f i les  in  such a  way tha t  I  do  no t  see her.   I  th ink  she  20 

does not  want  me to  ca l l  her  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    [ Ind is t inc t ]   [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    She does not  want  me to  see her  and  

ca l l  her  –  ca l l  upon her  to  do  anyth ing .   [ laughs ]   Okay.   

P lease admin is te r  the  oa th  or  a f f i rmat ion  to  Mr  S ingh.   I  
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th ink  i t  i s  the  oa th .  

REGISTRAR:    P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

WITNESS:    Ano j  S ingh.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you have any ob jec t ion  in  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

WITNESS:    No,  I  do  no t .  

REGISTRAR:    Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

WITNESS:    I  do .  

REGISTRAR:    Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence 10 

you w i l l  g ive ,  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th?   I f  so ,  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and say,  

so  he lp  me God.  

WITNESS:    So  he lp  me God.  

REGISTRAR:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.    

ANOJ SINGH :   (d .s .s )  

EXAMINATION BY ADV MYBURGH SC (CONTINUES) :    

Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   These documents  tha t  we have 

been prov ided w i th ,  they have  been pag ina ted w i th  20 

handwr i t ing .   We wi l l  then endeavour  to  ge t  them formal ly  

added to  the  bund le  bu t  i f  I  m igh t  hand them up.   They w i l l  

go  a t  the  end o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    A re  those the  new documents?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  Transnet  Bund le  5(c )  f rom page 
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2205,  wh ich  is  r igh t  a t  the  end,  th rough to  2266.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    There  i s ,  apparent ly,  one o ther  

document  tha t  i s  in  the  process o f  be ing  pag ina ted wh ich  

shou ld  be  added  to th is .   I t  looks  a  lo t  bu t  as  I  see i t ,  

Mr  S ingh,  i t  i s  f i ve  or  s ix  separa te  documents .   I s  tha t  

r igh t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   A re  these a l l  re la t ing  to  

th ings tha t  you have a l ready dea l t  w i th  in  your  ev idence? 10 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  hang on one second,  Mr  Myburgh.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  no t  know i f  th is  f i l e  i s  becoming too  

fu l l .   Do they go  r igh t  a t  the  end? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  they shou ld .   We wi l l  have to  

ge t  then punched  and added to  your  bund le ,  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   They have a l ready been handed –  

inc luded?  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No?  Okay.   I  th ink  I  w i l l  keep them 

outs ide .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  th is  f i l e  is  too  fu l l .   Maybe  one or  
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o ther  par t  o f  i t  i s  no t  work ing  proper ly.   Okay.   Jus t  to  say,  

we had hoped to  s ta r ted  a t  four  o ’c lock .   We were  to  ab le  

to  s ta r t  a t  four  o ’c lock  bu t  le t  us  do  the  best  we can .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  course ,  be tween Fr iday and  today,  

someth ing  has changed and the  Pres ident  has announced 

tha t  the  cur few s tar ts  a t  e leven o ’ c lock  now.   I  th ink  f rom 

today . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . i f  I  am not  m is taken.   So le t  me a f fec t  10 

the  t ime we wanted to  go  up  to .   Maybe I  shou ld  f ind  ou t  

f rom the  Commiss ion ’s  Lega l  Team and Mr  S ingh and h is  

lega l  team.   I f  we were  to  s top  a t  ten ,  wou ld  everybody be 

ab le  to  ensure  tha t  they are  no t  in  b reach o f  the  cur few? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cha i rperson,  I  know tha t  a t  leas t  one 

member  o f  our  Invest iga t ion  Team . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Needs more  t ime? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . l i ves  in  P re tor ia .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  have been to ld  i t  m igh t  requ i re  a  20 

l i t t le  b i t  more  t ime and tha t  I  am not  sure  exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   And le t  me check  w i th  the  

techn ic ians and the  s ta f f .   What  i s  the  la tes t  we  shou ld  

leave here  to  make su re  you w i l l  reach home before  

cur few?  
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ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  f rom our  s ide .   In  

any event ,  we are  go ing  to  need more  than an hour  fo r  my  

c l ien t  to  go  back.   So. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    So  tha t  i s  –  so  ten  o ’c lock  is  

go ing  to  be  too  la te  fo r  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The techn ica l  s ta f f  say  the  la tes t  

shou ld  be  n ine  o ’ c lock  o r  wou ld  be  n ine  o ’c lock ,  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay.   Then le t  us  make n ine  10 

o ’c lock  the  la tes t  and then we take i t  f rom there .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Have you admin is te red the  oa th?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  she has,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   Mr  S ingh,  I  thought  

perhaps before  we go fo rward ,  le t  us  ra ther  go  back  and i f  

you want  to  dea l  w i th  these documents  now,  you a re  f ree  to  

do  so .   As  I  have  asked you.   I f  you  cou ld  jus t  make  i t  very  

c lea r  what  top i c  you are  dea l ing  w i th  and then i f  you can  20 

t ry  and get  as  qu ick l y  to  the  po in t  as  poss ib le  bu t  you are  

more  than a t  l iber ty  to  go  th rough these documents .  

MR SINGH :    Thank you,  Mr  Myburgh.   Good even ing ,  

Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Good even ing ,  Mr  S ingh.  
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MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  these –  there  are  two top ics  tha t  I  

in tend to  dea l  w i th  re la t ing  to  the  documents  tha t  we have  

jus t  handed up to  you.   The f i rs t  one,  i f  we dea l  w i th  tha t  

2205,  re la tes  to  a  quest ion  tha t  Mr  Myburgh had put  to  me,  

re la t ing  to  the  a l leged 21%,  o r  what  d id  you ca l l  i t ,  the  

bus iness,  I  th ink .   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    . . .o r  a  k i ckback,  a l leged k ickback tha t  had 

been pa id  th rough the  locomot ive  process.   And I  th ink  the  

issues was.   How as i t  poss ib le  tha t  these k i ckbacks cou ld  10 

s t i l l  be  pa id  v is-à-vis us  s ign ing  a  process and you know 

coming a t  a  p r ice  tha t  we thought  was fa i r  and reasonab le  

and jus t i f iab le .    

 Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  look a t  2205,  i t  i s  a  document  tha t  

was prepared and put  on to  the  i n te rnet  o r  I  th ink  a  t ra in  

d is t r ibu t ion  magaz ine .   And you w i l l  see  i t  i s  headed as :   

CRRC remains  th read to  ra i l  and car  supp l ie rs .   And 

Mr  Cha i r,  maybe jus t  by  way o f  a  l i t t le  b i t  o f  h is to ry.   CRRC 

is  ac tua l l y  a  new ent i t y  tha t  has been c reated in  Ch ina  

wh ich  is  a  merger  be tween CNR and CSR.   And both  CNR 20 

and CSR,  pr io r  to  the  merger,  were  s ta te-owned compan ies  

and CRRC,  by  v i r tue  thereof ,  i s  a lso  a  s ta te-owned  

company.  

 Mr  Cha i r,  the  ar t i c le ,  bas ica l l y  -  i f  I  cou ld  read?  I t  

wou ld  probab ly  be  jus t  se l f -exp lanatory?  
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CHAIRPERSON :    What  i s  the  da te  o f  the  ar t i c le?  

MR SINGH :    I t  i s  posted  by  a  –  by  Mr  B i l l  S tephens  and i t  

was dated January  15 ,  2020.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay and what  i s  the  –  i s  i t  in  a  

par t i cu la r  pub l i ca t ion?  

MR SINGH :    I t  i s  jus t  –  i f  you  look a t  i t ,  i t  says :   

Observa t ion  Tower.   A b log  f rom t ra ins  cont r ibu tors .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  I s  tha t  the  name o f  the  pub l i ca t ion  

where  i t  i s  to  be  found or  what?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .  

MR SINGH :    I f  we go to  the  pa rag raph tha t  i s  o f  in te res t  to  

us ,  d i rec t l y.   I  th ink  i t  i s  paragraphs 2  and 3 .   And i f  I  jus t  

read,  Mr  Cha i r,  fo r  the  record ,  i t  wou ld  –  and then  we can 

exp la in  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    . . . the  na ture  the reof  o r  the  s ign i f i cance 

thereof .   I t  says :  

“CRRC’s  co rpora te  parent  i s  a  s ta te-owned 

enterpr i se  tha t  has used subs id ies  f rom Be i j ing  20 

to  he lp  i t  w in  near ly  th ree  b i l l i on  in  federa l  and  

s ta te  cont rac t s  to  supp ly  mere l y  750 cars  fo r  

t rans i t  p ro jec ts  in  Boston ,  Ch icago,  

Ph i lade lph ia  and Los Ange les .  

They have own those cont rac t  in  some cases 
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by  coming in  20% to  30% be low the  next  

lowest  b idder,  says Mike  O ’Mal ley,  P res ident  

o f  the  Ra i lway  Supp ly  Ins t i tu te ,  the  t rade 

assoc ia t ion  tha t  represents  more  than 200 ra i l  

indust ry  supp l ie rs . . . ”  

 That  i s  pa ragraph  2 .   Paragraph 3 :  

“Underb idd ing  the  compet i t ion  by  tha t  much is  

unheard  o f .   

So indust ry  ins iders  suspect  CRRC’s  b ids  are  

we l l  be low the  product ion  costs  or  i t s  10 

product ion  costs .  

Th is  means,  CRRC’s  s t ra tegy i s  no  d i f fe ren t  to  

fo re ign  count r ies  dumping a lumin ium or  s tee l  

in  the  US.  

The goa l  i s  pu t  domest ic  use rs  ou t  o f  bus iness  

and then corner  the  market .  

CRRC d isputes  th is  and says i t  p rov ides good 

h igh  pay ing  jobs fo r  Amer icans. . . ”  

 So,  Mr  Cha i r,  th is ,  bas i ca l l y,  g ives  an  ins igh t  in to  

the  s t ra tegy adop ted by  CRRC in  te rms o f  i t s  p r ic ing .   As  I  20 

sa id  to  you when  the  quest ion  was posed to  me.   What  the  

OEM’s  do  beyond the  supp ly  agreements  tha t  they have 

conc luded w i th  us ,  we have no v iew o f .    

 Bu t  as  you can  see,  i t  i s  a  p robab ly  a  –  no t  

p robab ly  –  i t  i s ,  based on th is  a r t i c le ,  a  de f ined s t ra tegy 
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tha t  they wou ld  underb id  or  p r i ce  cu t  to  be  ab le  to  secure  

the  b idd ing  and  then they wou ld  ge t  a  subs idy  f rom 

government  to  make up the  shor t fa l l .  

 So  there ,  Mr  Cha i r,  i s  the  s t ra tegy  tha t  CRRC has  

employed but  I  wou ld  no t  th ink  i t  i s  any d i f fe ren t  in  our  

case because in  our  case,  South  A f r i ca  i s  the  b iggest  

ra i lway consumer  o f  p roducts  fo r  t ra ins  i n  A f r i ca .   So by  

cont ro l l ing  the  South  A f r i can market ,  bas ica l l y,  CRRC 

cont ro ls  the  A f r i can market ,  jus t  l ike  how they are  t ry ing  to  

cont ro l  o r  take  cont ro l  o f  the  Amer i can market .  10 

 So th is  i s  a  d i rec t  –  I  th ink  ind i rec t  response to  a  

quest ion  tha t  was  posed to  –  by  Mr  Myburgh in  te rms o f  the  

a l leged k ickback  and how i t  was f inanced.   So tha t  dea ls  

w i th  the  f i rs t  par t ,  Mr  Cha i r.    

 The second par t  i s .   Mr  Cha i r,  you wou ld  reca l l  

tha t  Mr  Myburgh had presented to  us  a  ser ies  o f  

conf ident ia l  conf i nements .   That  McK insey had. . .  Oh,  sor ry.   

That  Mr  Mole fe  and myse l f  had approved.   And tha t  re la ted  

to  the  NNP Pro jec t ,  the  Kumba I ron  Ore  Pro jec t ,  the  Coa l  

L ine  Opt im isa t ion  Pro jec t ,  as  we l l  as ,  the  –  there  was one 20 

o ther  –  Manganese.  

 Mr  Cha i r,  the  documents  tha t  s ta r t  a t  2211,  i s  

bas ica l l y  a  se r ies  o f  documents  tha t  re la te  to  those  

conf inements ,  Mr  Cha i r.   That  we had s igned o f f ,  be tween  

Mr  Mole fe  and myse l f .   Mr  Cha i r,  what  you w i l l  see  is  tha t  
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the  conf inement  tha t  was s igned by  Mr  Mole fe  and myse l f  

re la tes  to  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  emanated f rom the  Money-

F low work  s t ream and I  th ink  i t  was the  four  conf inements  

in  four  days tha t  we had a l luded to .  

 Mr  Cha i r,  those conf inements  were  approved on  

the  bas i s  o f  u rgency and the  fac t  tha t  McK insey had the  

exper t i se  and knowledge o f  these  –  o f  Transnet  and had 

worked a t  Transnet  p rev ious ly.   The issue o f  the 

conf ident ia l  na ture  o f  the  conf inement  was not  the  ground 

fo r  conf inement .   The conf ident ia l  na ture  o f  the 10 

conf inement  on l y  a l lowed us  no t  to  ge t  a  fu l l  l i s t  o f  

s ignator ies  tha t  one wou ld  no rmal ly  expect  to  ge t  on  a  

conf inement .  

 Mr  Cha i r,  what  has –  and these documents  f rom 

2211,  bas ica l l y,  takes you th rough  the  s teps tha t  happened  

subsequent  to  the  conf inement .   And what  you w i l l  see  

there ,  Mr  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  a l l  o f  the  ind iv idua ls  tha t  needed to  

have been invo lved in  the  award  o f  the  bus iness,  

subsequent ly,  there  f rom was,  ac tua l l y,  invo lved.  

 And i f  I  may,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  w i l l  take  you th rough each  20 

o f  the  documents  and the  s ign i f i cance the reof .   Mr  Cha i r,  

a t  2211,  you w i l l  see  tha t  i t  i s  a  le t te r  tha t  i s  addressed to  

–  I  th ink  we have addressed Mr  F ine  bu t  I  th ink  i f  he  is  a  

doctor.   So i t  i s  Dr  F ine  o f  McK insey and you w i l l  see  i t  i s  

headed up:   In i t ia l  D iscuss ion  w i th  Consu l t ing  Serv i ces  
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requ i red .  

“Th is  le t te r  serves to  in fo rm you tha t  the  

Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  o f  Transnet  has  

approved a  number  o f  consu l t ing  ass ignments  

to  McK insey and the i r  consor t ium sub jec t  to  a 

successfu l  conc lus ion  o f  a  master  serv ices  

agreement . . . ”  

 Now the  master  serv i ces  ag reement  i s  the  –  

Mr  Cha i r,  jus t  cont rac t  be tween McKinsey and Transnet .   

What  i s  impor tan t ,  Mr  Cha i r,  here  is  tha t  the  conf inement  10 

d id  no t  resu l t  in  an  award  o f  work  because sub jec t  to  th is  

p rocess tha t  we have out l ined in  th is  le t te r  to  enab le  work  

to  be  awarded.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  repeat  tha t  po in t?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  the  conf inement  tha t  we have dea l t  

w i th  o r  tha t  Mr  Myburgh had dea l t  w i th  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    D id  no t  resu l t  in  the  award  o f  work .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    I t  –  the  conf inement ,  bas ica l l y,  enab led  you 20 

to  approach a  supp l ie r  fo r  the  purpose o f  de termin ing  

whethe r  work  can  be awarded.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    Okay?  So th is  le t te r,  bas i ca l l y,  se ts  ou t  the 

process tha t  w i l l  enab le  work  to  e i ther  be  awarded or  no t .    
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CHAIRPERSON :    In  tha t  context ,  what  wou ld  be  the  

purpose o f  conf inement?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  conf inement ,  bas ica l l y,  wou ld  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because no rmal ly,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  

con f inement  i s  re fe r red  to ,  normal ly,  in  regard  to  

p rocu rement  mat te rs  where  the  idea is  tha t  e i ther  tha t  

par t i cu la r  en t i t y  wou ld  be  the  on ly  one.   I  do  no t  know 

whethe r  somet imes i t  can be two or  th ree  but  i t  i s  d i f fe ren t  

f rom open compet i t i ve  tender.  10 

MR SINGH :    You  are  cor rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  t ransparent .  

MR SINGH :    You  are  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    The idea wou ld  be  tha t  the  award ing  o f  

the  cont rac t  wou ld  happen in  the  contex t  o f  conf inement .  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Now in  the  contex t  in  wh ich  you 

exp la ined th i s .   I t  seems tha t  the  conf inement  wou ld  no t  

happen or  the  award ,  the  award ing  o f  the  cont rac t  wou ld  

no t  happen dur ing  conf inement  bu t  conf inement  wou ld  20 

happen befo re .   So tha t  i s  the  reason why I  am say ing ,  

p lease exp la in  what  i t s  purpose wou ld  be .  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    The conf inement  i s  a  p rocess tha t  p recedes 
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award .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    So,  bas ica l l y,  a  con f inement ,  bas ica l l y  –  as  

you co r rec t l y  have sa id ,  a l lows you not  to  approach the  

open market .   So as  the  word  says conf inement .   I t  i s  

l im i ted  to  a  smal le r  number  o f  peop le  compared to  the  

open market  and  i t  cou ld  be  one,  i t  cou ld  be  two,  i t  cou ld  

be  f i ve / ten ,  depend ing  on the  number  tha t  you requ i re .  

 But  Mr  Cha i r,  in  th is  case i t  was bas i ca l l y  conf ined  

to  McK insey and  then a  process  thereaf te r  fo l lowed to  10 

enab le  the  award  o f  the  bus iness to  happen.   So i t  was not  

a  conf ined an award .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  bu t  in  tha t  case,  my quest ion  is .   

What  i s  the  purpose o f  conf in ing  where  the  dec is ion  to  

award  is  no t  go ing  to  be  taken dur ing  the  conf inement  

per iod?  Because f rom what  you are  te l l ing  me,  I  ge t  the  

impress ion  tha t  in  th is  contex t  tha t  you are  ta lk ing  about ,  

one has conf inement  and then la te r  on  a f t e r  the  

conf inement  pe r iod ,  one then does ce r ta in  th ings.  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  in  the  context  o f  your  quest ion .   20 

You cou ld  have a  non-award  post  conf inement .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    Because in  te rms o f  the  procurement  

p rocedure  manua ls  o r  in  te rms  o f  genera l  p rocurement  

ru les .   There  is  no  mechan ism to  engage w i th  a  supp l ie r  fo r  
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po ten t ia l  se rv i ces  or  po ten t ia l  goods i f  you  do no t  –  you  

have an open tender  o r  p re -conf inement .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    So  the  on ly  way to  l eg i t imate ly  engage w i th  a 

supp l ie r  i s  to  immedia te ly  go  ou t  and open a  RFP wh ich  

then goes th rough our  eva lua t ion  process and then  award  

the  bus iness or  you go th rough  a  conf ined process to  

approach cer ta in  supp l ie rs  bu t  you s t i l l  then have to 

th rough an eva lua t ion  process and  then award  bus iness.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  guess maybe what  you are  say ing  does 10 

not  necessar i l y  ta lk  to  two separa te  pe r iods.   The  

conf inement  means noth ing  more  than tha t  you w i l l  no t  go  

to  open . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .open market .  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  no th ing  more  than tha t .  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  you do not  go  to  open market .   When  

you do not  go  to  open market  tha t  i s  conf inement .  20 

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And whatever  you do,  as  long you d id  

no t  go  to  open market ,  i t  i s  l im i ted  to  whatever  en t i t ies .   

So –  okay –  no ,  I  unders tand.  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .    
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR SINGH :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.   So,  Mr  Cha i r,  the 

documents  then tha t  fo l low exp la ins  the  p rocess tha t  then  

unfo lded re la ted  to  each one o f  those fo r  t enders  tha t  we  

ment ioned or  con f inements  tha t  we ment ioned.   Mr  Cha i r,  

by  way o f  example  and fo r  the  sake o f  exped iency,  we have 

on ly  used the  Kumba I ron  Ore  con t rac t  as  an  example .   We 

in tend to ,  ac tua l l y,  submi t  to  the  Commiss ion  the  

documenta t ion  re la t ing  to  the  o the r  th ree  conf inements  as  

we l l .   So  we w i l l ,  cer ta in ly,  do  tha t  in  due course .    10 

 So M Cha i r,  in  te rms o f  the  le t te r  tha t  you see tha t  

i s  addressed to  m is ter  –  to  Dr  F ine  and i t  i s  da ted  the  

9 t h  o f  Apr i l  2014.   We,  bas i ca l l y,  in fo rm McKinsey tha t  the  

Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  has approved a  number  o f  

consu l t ing  ass ignments  sub jec t  to  the  successfu l  

conc lus ion  o f  the  masters  serv i ces  agreement .  

 We a lso  h igh l igh t  to  McK insey to  t ha t  they a re  –  in  

parag raph 2 :  

“ . . . tha t  there  a  number  o f  regu la tory  po l i cy  and  

procedure  issues  re la t ing  to  p rocurement  tha t  20 

needs to  be  fo l lowed. . . ”  

 And the  fac t  tha t  these –  th is  award  w i l l  be  sub jec t  

to  those procedures and requ i rements .   And aga in ,  sub jec t  

to  the  f ina l  masters  se rv i ces  ag reement  be ing  conc luded.   

And approves –  rece ived f rom the  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  
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fo r  the  fo l low ing consu l tan t  serv i ces .   And bas ica l l y  we got  

the  coa l  l ine ,  the  manganese execut ion ,  the  NNP as  we l l  as  

the  Kumba I ron  Ore  cont rac t .  

 And we then,  Mr  Cha i r,  say  tha t  wh i le  we –  ou r  

teams exped i te  the  issu ing  o f  the  request  fo r  p roposa l .   So 

Mr  Cha i r,  you w i l l  then see the  next  document  i s  ac tua l l y  

the  request  fo r  p roposa l .  

“ . . . fo r  the  above  ass ignments ,  we inc lude the  

urgency o f  the  se rv ices .  

I  k ind ly  request  tha t  you mob i l i se  the  10 

McKinsey cons t ruc t ion  to  have in i t ia l  

d iscuss ions w i th  our  teams.  

In  the  un l i ke l y  event  o f  tha t  we may not  

successfu l l y  conc lude the  abovement ioned 

ass ignments ,  Transnet  w i l l  re imburse  a l l  cos ts  

incu r red  by  yourse l f  re la t ing  to  the  prepara t ion  

o f  the  documents ,  the  RFP’s . . .  

 And a l l  o f  tha t  re la t ing  to  the  content  o f  th is  le t te r,  

Mr  Cha i r.   So tha t  i s  2211.   Mr  Cha i r,  a t  2211.   You w i l l  

then see a  memo tha t  i s  da ted  the  9 t h  o f  May 2014.   I t  i s  20 

f rom a  gent leman,  Mr  Moosa,  who was a  sen io r  buyer  a t  

Transnet  and i t  is  addressed to  Mr  P ia ,  the  Group Ch ie f  

Supp ly  Cha in  Off i ce r.   And the  sub jec t ,  you w i l l  see ,  Mr  

Cha i r,  i s :   Go to  market  approva l .   And i t  i s  fo r,  as  you w i l l  

see  in  the  head ing  in  the  th i rd  l ine :   Renegot ia t ion  o f  the  
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Kumba I ron  Ore  cont rac t  fo r  a  per iod  o f  12-months fo r  

R 230 mi l l ion .  

 So,  bas i ca l l y,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  purpose o f  th is  

document  i s  to  now say tha t  fo l low ing the  conf inement  and  

the  le t te r  tha t  we have sent  to  McK insey,  we now have  

prepared an RFP document  tha t  conta ins  the  requ i rements  

tha t  Transnet  be l ieves we wou ld  requ i re  to  meet  the  

ob jec t i ves  o f  renegot ia t ing  the  Kumba I ron  Ore  con t rac t .    

 You w i l l  see  there ,  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  a t  paragraph 4  o f  

the  document ,  Mr  Cha i r,  you w i l l  see  tha t  we record  tha t :  10 

“The RFP was prepared and rev iewed and 

per fo rmed by  the  fo l low ing s takeho lders :  

-  Mr  Moosa.    

-  And then we have got  the  Procurement  

Manager.  

-  Ms Fe l i x  

-  And Mr  Yusuf  Mohammed f rom Group 

F inance.  

-  Mr  Ca l lan  f rom Group Commerc ia l . . . ”  

 Now,  Mr  Cha i r,  G roup Commerc ia l  i s  bas ica l l y  the  20 

market ing  d iv i s ion  o f  Transnet  w i th in  the  Corpora te  Cent re .   

And then we have got  f rom a  governance perspect ive ,  

Mr  Wynand Esterhu izen.   And Mr  Cha i r,  when we ta lk  about  

governance,  we  are  now ta lk ing  about  Supp ly  Cha in  

Governance.     
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 So  the  po l i c i es ,  p rocedures,  the  l ega l  aspects  o f  

p rocu rement  wou ld  have been  taken care  o f  by  

Mr  Esterhu izen,  and  Mr  Esterhu izen was a  –  I  th ink  an  

ind iv idua l  w i th in  Mr  P i ta  ho ld ings (?)  team a t  the  t ime.   And 

then you have go t  Supp ly  Deve lopment  tha t  was taken care  

o f  by  Ms T jekhe(? ) .    

 Mr  Cha i r,  then you go on and you w i l l  see  tha t  on  

22113,  bas ica l l y,  the  document  i s  s igned by  the  re levant  

ind iv idua ls  on  the  26 t h  o f  May 2014 wh ich  then resu l ted ,  

Mr  Cha i r,  in  the  RFP be ing  issued to  McK insey.   A t  2215,  10 

Mr  Cha i r,  you w i l l  f ind  the  s igna tor ies  o f  the  ind iv idua ls  

tha t  were  re fer red  to  in  the  memo as be ing  par t  o f  the  

process o f  compi l ing  the  RFP.  

 And you w i l l  see  there ,  Mr  Cha i r,  as  l i s ted ,  

Mr  Moosa has s igned –  Mr  Mohammed s igned.   Mr  Ca l lan  

has no t  s igned but  there  is  an  a t tached emai l  a t ,  I  th ink  a t  

2214 tha t  serves as  h is  approva l .   Ms Fe l i x  has then 

s igned.   Mr  Este rhu izen has s igned.   Mr  T jekhe has  s igned.   

Mr  P i ta  has no t  s igned but  tha t  i s  because o f  the  fac t  tha t  

he  has ac tua l l y  s igned the  memo.   Oh,  sor ry.   I s  –  there  20 

was a  person ac t i ng  in  h is  pos i t ion  a t  the  t ime.  

 And a t  2216,  Mr  Cha i r,  you w i l l  see  the  RFP tha t  

was then sent  to  McK insey to  respond to .   Mr  Cha i r,  a t  

2244,  you then . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   The RFP goes f rom? 
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MR SINGH :    I t  goes f rom Transne t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  mean,  2216,  i s  i t  two pages?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.   I t  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    2216 r igh t  th rough to  2243.  

CHAIRPERSON :    2243.   Oh,  so  tha t  i s  –  so  the  ba lance o f  

the  document  i s  par t  o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    The  RFP.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  Par t  o f  the  RFP? 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   H ’m? 

MR SINGH :    Then a t  2244,  Mr  Cha i r,  you w i l l  then f ind  

another  memo tha t  i s  addressed  to  Mr  Mole fe  and i t  i s  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   I  see  the  res t  o f  the  

documents  –  I  d id  no t  rea l i se  tha t  there  was s t i l l  2244 and  

–  tha t  i s  on ly  up  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    2243.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  tha t  i s  the  RFP tha t  goes up to  tha t .  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay 2244?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  2244  is  then a  document  to  

Mr  Mole fe .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    The  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive .   From myse l f .  



31 MAY 2021 – DAY 406 
 

Page 95 of 217 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    The Group Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Of f i ce r.   And the  

sub jec t ,  aga in  Mr  Cha i r,  i s  bas ica l l y  the  Kumba I ron  Ore  

cont rac t  fo r  a  per iod  o f  12-months bu t  Mr  Cha i r  th is  i s  now 

the  memo tha t  e f fec t i ve ly  awards the  bus iness.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    In  be tween th is  memo,  Mr  Cha i r,  and the  RFP 

there  wou ld  have  been a  response  tha t  was rece ived by  o r  

f rom –  tha t  was rece ived by  Transnet  f rom McKinsey.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Wel l ,  then tha t  means we –  I  10 

must  cor rec t  fu r ther  what  I  sa id  then because tha t  means  

tha t  be tween –  what  was the  page?  2216?  Where  the  RFP 

s tar t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  means,  be tween 2216 and 2243,  

tha t  i s  no t  a l l  the  RFP?  There  is  a lso  a  response to  the 

RFP in  tha t  –  in  those pages?  

MR SINGH :    No,  no  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

MR SINGH :    That  was the  RFP tha t  was sent  f rom 20 

Transnet  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    . . . to  McK insey.   On rece iv ing  tha t  RFP,  

Mr  Cha i r,  McK insey wou ld  have p repared a  response.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  bu t  I  thought  you had jus t  sa id  the  
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response wou ld  be  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    No,  no  i t  i s  no t  inc luded in  he re .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  i t  i s  no t  inc luded.  

MR SINGH :    I  am say ing ,  in  be tween the  issuance o f  th is  

document  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .have rece ived? 

MR SINGH :    And. . .   Yes.   And the  prepara t ion  o f  th is  

document   . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR SINGH :    . . . there  wou ld  have been a  . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR SINGH :    . . .  a  response tha t  was rece ived f rom 

McKinsey.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

MR SINGH :    And  I  th ink  i t  i s  p robab ly  in  my bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR SINGH :    So ,  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  response tha t  we  wou ld  

have rece ived f rom McKinsey . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    . . .wou ld  have been summar i sed in to  th is  20 

document .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    And os tens ib le ,  Mr  Cha i r,  th is  document  

wou ld ,  bas ica l l y,  be  the  document  tha t  awards the  work .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  wou ld  –  th is  memorandum wou ld  take  
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in to  account  wha t  the  request  fo r  p roposa ls  sa id  and what  

the  response was  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    From McKinsey.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .   And then eva lua te  what   

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .was requ i red  and what  was  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    What  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    And see i f  you peop le  a re  happy and 

then when whether  the  dec is ion  is  to  award  or  no t  to  10 

award .  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  th is  case i t  was to  award?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR SINGH :    I f  you  look a t  2245,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR SINGH :    Under  pa ragraph you ac tua l l y  see what  you 

jus t  desc r ibe  is  recorded in  the  tab le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR SINGH:    I t  says  scope o f  requ i rements ,  RFP response 

and whether  Transnet  has ac tua l l y  accepted tha t  response 

or  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    And then you a l so  look a t  the  s ta te  o f  the 
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work ,  the  pr i c ing  fo l lows the  same pr inc ip le .   You then  

have some pre requ is i tes  on  2247.   2248 covers  some – the  

supp ly  deve lopment  commi tment  and tha t  i s  be tween,  as  

you can see the re ,  Reg iments  and McKinsey.   And then 

2249 is  a  recommendat ion ,  Mr  Cha i r,  and tha t  i s  bas ica l l y  

s igned by  myse l f ,  Mr  Pete r  and Mr  Mole fe .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  2248 on mine,  the  

recommendat ion ,  you sa id?  

MR SINGH:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    On mine th is  2248?  I  thought  you sa id  10 

2249.  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  I  have 2249.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You mean tha t  page,  tha t  has go t  you as  

the  compi le r  and Mr  Gary  Pete r.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Who s igned recommending and then Mr  

Mole fe  approv ing .  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  on  m ine i t  i s  2248.  

MR SINGH:    Okay,  I  th ink  we jus t  need to  check the  20 

numbers .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  2249 is  another  document .  

MR SINGH:    Okay.   Oh,  I  see tha t ,  Mr  Cha i r.   I  th ink  I  have  

an ex t ra  page but  i t  i s  f ine .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR SINGH:    Bu t  fo r  a l l  in ten ts  and  purposes,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  

document  s ta r t ing  a t  2249 is  bas ica l l y  the  document  tha t  

then awards the  work  to  McK insey re la t ing  to  Kumba I ron  

Ore  cont rac t .   Mr  Cha i r,  the  document  tha t  s ta r ts  a t  2249,  

Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  you have there  shou ld  be  a  document  tha t  

says:  

“Opera t ing  D iv i s ion ,  Transnet  Corpora te  Cent re ,  

TCC”  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    The name o f  p ro jec t  H igh  Va lue  Tender  10 

Conf inement ,  the  ga teway rev iew process in  the  second  

l ine .  

CHAIRPERSON :    GSM/14/04/10.38,  tha t  i s  what  i t  says :  

“Conf inement  descr ip t ion  Kumba I ron  Ore  cont rac t . ”  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  tha t  i s  the  one,  S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And:  

“Per iod  o f  rev iew 10 Apr i l  2014  to  13  June 2014.   

I ssue date  13  June 2014,  repor t  s ta tus ,  acqu is i t ion  

ga teway repor t  conf inement . ”  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  S i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    So ,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  purpose o f  th is  document  i s  

th is  i s  Transnet  in te rna l  aud i t  document ,  Mr  Cha i r,  and 

Transnet  in te rna l  aud i t  was charged by  the  aud i t  commi t tee  

to  rev iew as the  document  says,  a l l  h igh  va lue  tenders .   
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Now h igh  va lue  tenders  were  de f i ned,  I  th ink ,  a t  tha t  t ime 

as  been –  I  know a t  one t ime i t  was 50 mi l l ion  and then we 

increased i t  to  100 mi l l ion  bu t  tha t  was the  de f in i t ion  o f  

h igh  va lue  tenders .   So any tender  tha t  was more  than  

e i ther  50  m i l l ion  or  100 mi l l ion  depend ing  on the  cu t -o f f  

wou ld  have had  to  have in te rna l  aud i t  rev iew.   The 

procurement  p rocess re la t ing  to  tha t  tender.    

 And,  Mr  Cha i r,  one o f  the  th ings tha t  the  aud i t  

commi t tee  ins i s ted  on  is  tha t  these  rev iews d id  no t  happen 

re t rospect ive ly  because i f  i t  happened re t rospect ive ly  i t  d id  10 

no t  have any we igh t .   So they ac tua l l y  …[ in tervenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  tha t  mean they shou ld  happen a f te r  

the  dec is ion  to  award  is  made but  be fore  the  en t i t y  i s  

no t i f ied ,  the  supp l ie r,  o r  they needed to  happen a f te r  the  

supp l ie r  has been  not i f ied  o f  the  ou tcome? 

MR SINGH:    So ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  i t  ac tua l l y  was des igned to  

p revent  exact ly  tha t ,  i s  tha t  i t  was ac tua l l y  requ i red  to  be  

rea l - t ime assurance.   So as  we  were  go ing  th rough the  

process you needed an in te rna l  aud i t  pe rson to  ho ld  your  

hand to  move f rom one process to  the  next  so  tha t  when  20 

you ac tua l l y  i ssue th is  repor t  a t  the  end tha t  the  repor t  i s  

no t  in  conf l i c t  w i th  the  award .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  so  as  the  process was progress ing .  

MR SINGH:    Unfo ld ing ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Then somebody or  a  team were  
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supposed to  be  watch ing  every  s tep .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  tha t  i f  you  do not  do  someth ing  r igh t  

they can a le r t  you.  

MR SINGH:    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you co r rec t  i t  wh i le  there  is  t ime.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then when you comple te  the  journey 

the i r  repor t  i s  l i ke ly  to  say eve ry th ing  has been compl ied  

w i th  p roper ly .  10 

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  S i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR SINGH:    So  i f  you  look a t  the  repor t  c lass i f i ca t ion ,  Mr  

Cha i r ,  on  the  top  le f t  hand corner  o f  the  document… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  bu t  i t  i s  –  I  cannot  see what  i s  

wr i t ten  because i t  i s  b lack .  

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  –  i t  i s  shaded.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  i t  i s  shaded.  

MR SINGH:    Bu t  the  word  in  the  shaded b lock  is  ac tua l l y  

sa t is fac tory .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

MR SINGH:    And you w i l l  see  i t  in  the  document  i t se l f ,  Mr  

Cha i r ,  I  w i l l  take  you th rough tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  see  tha t  someth ing  seems to  be  wr i t ten  

bu t  I  cannot  te l l  what  i t  says .   Okay.   So but  you a re  say ing  
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tha t  the  ou tcome o f  th is  rev iew was tha t  the  process had  

been done sa t is fac tor i l y?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR SINGH:    Okay.   And,  Mr  Cha i r ,  you w i l l  a l so  have 

regard  fo r  –  I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  f ind  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    The peop le  who wou ld  do  th is  rev iew,  

wou ld  i t  be  a  par t i cu la r  commi t tee  w i th  a  pa r t i cu la r  name or  

wou ld  i t  be  a  par t i cu la r  ind iv idua l  o r…? 

MR SINGH:    So ,  i f  you  tu rn ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  to  my 2250,  wh ich  10 

is  the  next  page.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR SINGH:    You w i l l  see  there ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  tha t  the  repor t  

was issued to  Mr  Edward  Thomas,  execut ive  manager  

supp ly  cha in  management  by  Dr  Andre  Botha,  who was a  

d i rec tor  o f  Transnet  in te rna l  aud i t  .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wou ld  tha t  mean he was the  person who  

conducted the  rev iew?  Would  tha t  mean he was one o f  a  

number  o f  peop le?  

MR SINGH:    Ja ,  I  am jus t  …[ in te rvenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Who are  do ing  the  rev iew,  tha t  i s  what  I  

am look ing  fo r  and whether  they had a  fo rmal  name,  

par t i cu la r  rev iew commi t tee  or  wha t?  

MR SINGH:    So ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  i f  you  tu rn  to  my page 2246,  I  

th ink  i t  i s  headed  up Sect ion  4 ,  D is t r ibu t ion  L is t .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry ,  d id  you say 2246?  

MR SINGH:    I  am sor ry ,  S i r ,  2264.   I t  i s  the  same 

documents .   Sor ry ,  I  apo log i se .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Ja ,  I  am there .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r ,  th is  i s  –  and i f  you look a t  –  there  

is  two b locks  the re ,  i t  says  Transnet  Corpora te  Cent re  and 

you see Transnet  In te rna l  Aud i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Transnet  Corpora te  Cent re  a t  the  top  

and then a t  the  bo t tom,  Transnet  In te rna l  Aud i t ,  yes .  

MR SINGH:    Yes and then you  w i l l  see  the  respect ive  10 

ind iv idua ls  to  whom th is  document  wou ld  have been  sent  to  

Mr  Cha i r  and in  your  quest ion  you are  look ing  fo r  Transnet  

in te rna l  aud i t ,  you see there  is  –  I  th ink  i t  i s  Ms Je le ,  who 

was the  h igh  va lue  tender  OD manager .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    Ms Desa i ,  who was the  h igh  va lue  tender  

p rocess owner  and then Mr  Andre  Botha was  a  TIA 

d i rec tor .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    So  these ind iv idua ls  were  par t  o f  Transnet  20 

in te rna l  aud i t ,  Mr  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    A t  the  t ime I  th ink  the  Transnet  in te rna l  aud i t  

–  we l l ,  a t  the  t ime i t  was –  Transnet  in te rna l  aud i t  was  

outsourced to  –  I  th ink  a t  th is  po in t  in  t ime i t  was,  i f  I  
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reca l l  cor rec t l y,  i t  was e i ther  Erns t  &  Young or  KPMG,  I  am 

not  sure .   But  those wou ld  have been the  ou tsource  

par tners  tha t  conducted these rev iews on beha l f  o f  the 

aud i t  commi t tee  o f  Transnet .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  ord inar i l y  the  funct ion  be longed to 

the  Transnet  in te rna l  aud i t .  

MR SINGH:    Who repor ts  to  the  aud i t  commi t tees.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay and then  the  ac tua l  rev iew cou ld  10 

be done by  one person f rom tha t  un i t .  

MR SINGH:    One  or  two or  th ree ,  depend ing  on the  s ize  o f  

the  cont rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So ,  Mr  Cha i r,  th is  bas ica l l y  –  and as  I  

sa id ,  Mr  Cha i r,  our  in ten t ion  is  to  supp ly  the  documents  

re la t ing  to  the  o ther  th ree  con f inements  in  the  same 

manner.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    So,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  conc lus ion  on  th is  mat te r  i s  20 

tha t  the  conf inements  d id  no t  in  i tse l f  au tomat ica l l y  resu l t  

in  award ing  o f  work ,  the re  was a  s ign i f i can t  p rocess tha t  

had been fo l lowed f rom the  conf inement  s tage r igh t  

th rough to  the  award ing  o f  the  work ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  what  does tha t  mean?  Based on 
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my d iscuss ion  ea r l ie r  on ,  I  unders tood tha t  we were  agreed  

tha t  in  the  –  in  c i rcumstances where  Transnet  wou ld  have  

thought  o r  wou ld  have conc luded tha t  conf inement  was 

jus t i f ied ,  a l l  tha t  –  the  on ly  dec i s ion  tha t  needed  to be 

taken fo r  i t  to  be  sa id  tha t  there  was conf inement  was to  

say th is  job  is  no t  go ing  to  be  pu t  to  the  open market  fo r  

tender.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Once tha t  dec i s ion  is  made then tha t  job  

is  conf ined.  10 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And i t  can be conf ined to  one en t i t y,  two 

or  th ree  or  whatever  bu t  i t  i s  conf ined to  spec i f i c  en t i t ies .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Now you sa id  tha t  the  fac t  tha t  i t  i s  

conf ined does not  mean tha t  va r ious processes such as  

eva lua t ion  is  no t  go ing  to  happen.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  w i l l  happen?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  cor rec t ,  S i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    So  w i th  tha t  unders tand ing ,  my quest ion  

is ,  why is  i t  impor tan t  to  say the  award  d id  no t  –  was not  

the  ou tcome o f  conf inement  o r  conf inement  d id  no t  resu l t  

in  an  award?  I  am not  sure  tha t  I  fo l low because  as  long 

as  a  dec is ion  has  been taken not  to  sub jec t  th is  to  th is  the  
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open market ,  wha tever  award  is  g i ven in  the  end,  i t  w i l l  no t  

be  an  award  tha t  invo l ved the  open  market .  

MR SINGH:    No,  no ,  I  agree w i th  tha t ,  Mr  Cha i r.   A l l  I  am 

say ing  is  tha t  the  content ion  was  tha t  we approved fou r  

conf inements  in  four  days.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    Which  resu l ted  in  the  McKinsey consor t ium 

be ing  awarded the  work  in  four  days.   That  was  not  the  

ou tcome o f  the  process because there  was a  who le  host  o f  

eva lua t ions tha t  were  done and so  on  tha t  these  10 

documents  ac tua l l y  he lped out l ine .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  so  your  on ly  po in t  rea l l y  i s  var ious 

s teps were  taken.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  S i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  led  to  the  award .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR SINGH:    And a l l  the  requ is i t e  ind i v idua ls  tha t  needed 

to  be  invo lved in  the  award  was …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  wa i t ing  fo r  i t .  20 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  thank  you.   I  unders tand there  

is  another  document  tha t  was go ing  to  be  pag ina ted and 

added,  maybe you can dea l  w i th  tha t ,  Cha i r .  
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MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r ,  post  2266,  wh ich  is  the  las t  page o f  

the  h igh  va lue  tender  document ,  there  i s  ac tua l l y  an  

agreement  tha t  then fo l lows a t  2267 th rough to  2306 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    A re  those the  add i t iona l  pages?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  S i r .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Does th i s  then re la te  to  a l l  four  o f  

the  cont rac ts?  

MR SINGH:    No,  no ,  th is  i s  jus t  one.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Jus t  one,  r igh t .  

MR SINGH:    For  Kumba.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay,  so  a f te r  the  award  then i t  ge ts  

embod ied in  a  fo rmal  agreement .   So th is  i s  the  k ind  o f  

Kumba board  pack.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :   And th is  i s  the  ag reement ,  the  las t  

document .  

MR SINGH:    That  i s  the  agreement  tha t  was s igned 

between Transnet  and …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  tha t  i s  f ine .  20 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  as  my c l ien t  has 

a l ready ind ica ted ,  fo r  each o f  these agreements ,  the  four  

tha t  my learned f r iend dea l t  w i th ,  th ree  o f  them I  th ink  he  

ind ica ted  –  he  made re ference to  ev idence tha t  sa id  i t  was 

done on a  conf ident ia l i t y  bas is .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    We wi l l  p rov ide  the  necessary  

documents  in  each -  in  respect  o f  a l l  four  tha t  fo l lowed the  

same process.  I  th ink  tha t  i s  the  po in t  tha t  the  c l ien t  made.   

Jus t  fo r  t ime const ra in t s  today we  d id  no t  have the  t ime to 

do  a l l  o f  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  tha t  i f  f ine .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   So,  Mr  S ingh,  I  am not  

sure  tha t  we have ac tua l l y  –  you have answered the  

quest ion  tha t  I  asked you to  cons ider  bu t  we w i l l  come to  10 

tha t  bu t  le t  me jus t -  i f  we go back to  2211,  jus t  so  tha t  I  

make sure  I  unders tand i t ,  these a re  the  four  cont rac ts  you  

are  dea l ing  w i th .  

CHAIRPERSON :    2211?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    2211.   So these are  fou r,  coa l  l ine ,  

manganese,  MNPP and Kumba I ron  Ore ,  r igh t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then the  pack tha t  you  put  up 

re la tes  to  Kumba I ron  Ore .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   I  jus t  wanted to  take  you to  –  

perhaps we cou ld  ca l l  i t  award  memo.   That  i s  a t  2244.   So  

th is  i s  compi led  by  you,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SINGH:    I  am recorded as  the  compi le r,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you then send i t  to  Mr  Mole fe ,  
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cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So i f  you  go to  the  d i scuss ion  a t  

2255 a t  parag raph 5 :  

“The rev iew o f  the  RFP was under taken. ”  

I  assume then you rev iewed the  RFP.  

MR SINGH:    2255?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    2245,  parag raph 5 .  

MR SINGH:    2245.   Was under taken,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  beg your  pardon?  10 

MR SINGH:    I  sa id  the  rev iew o f  the  RFP was under taken.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes bu t  you  under took i t .  

MR SINGH:    No.   No,  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  you  are  the  compi le r.  

MR SINGH:    Yes ,  Mr  Cha i r,  bu t  aga in  I  th ink  the  document  

I  s igned as  the  compi le r  bu t  I  d id  no t  phys ica l l y  s i t  and 

compi le  th is  document .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Where  wou ld  the  document  be  tha t  wou ld  

be  wr i t ten  by  those who ac tua l l y  under took the  rev iew? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  wou ld  be  par t  o f  the  20 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  i t  the  one wr i t ten  by  Dr  Botha?  

MR SINGH:    No,  S i r.   He is  a  separa te  independent  guy.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  wou ld  be  ove r look ing  what  the  team was  
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ac tua l l y  do ing .   The p rocurement  team,  the  eva lua t i on  team 

wou ld  probab ly  be  the  guys tha t  ac tua l l y  have the  ac tua l  

phys i ca l  eva lua t i on  tha t  they have conducted and tha t  

document  wou ld  have been presented to  the  Transnet  

acqu is i t ion  counc i l  fo r  them to  cons ide r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t ,  I  mean,  Mr  S ingh,  su re ly  you 

are  re f lec ted  as  the  compi le r,  you are  wr i t ing  to  Mr  Mole fe .   

A re  you say ing  tha t  you d id  no t  look  a t  the  RFP yourse l f?  

MR SINGH:    No,  S i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  i f  we jus t  go  back to  the  ac tua l  

quest ion ,  can I  ask  you perhaps go to  …[ in te rvenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Myburgh.   But  how cou ld  

you wr i te  –  comp i le  a  document ,  a  memorandum tha t  says  

to  the  Group CEO,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  we are  request ing  

your  approva l  o f  th is  in i t ia t i ve  or  t h is  job  be ing  g i ven to  so 

and so  when you have not  looked a t  the  RFP because I  

imag ine  tha t  in  p rocu rement  mat te rs  where  an  RFP has  

been issued,  tha t  i s  a  very  impor tan t  document  because i t  

i s  l i ke  the  foundat ion  document  and those who respond to 20 

i t  must  comply  w i th  i t s  requ i rements .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And I  wou ld  imag ine  tha t  i f  you  a re  go ing 

to  wr i te  to  somebody who must  make a  dec i s ion  to  award  

th is  tender,  one o f  the  th ings you must  do  is  go  back to  the  
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RFP,  read i t  and  unders tand what  i t  requ i red  in  o rder  fo r  

you to  look  a t  the  response to  the  RFP and be ab le  to  say  

the  response d id  dea l  o r  respond o r  comply  w i th  the  RFP.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  the  reason why we have the  

procu rement  teams as we l l  as  the  –  how can  I  say,  

bus iness representa t i ves .   In  th is  case,  Mr  Cha i r,  you 

wou ld  see tha t  Group Commerc ia l  was invo lved,  so  Group  

Commerc ia l  wou ld  be  the  –  th is  –  okay,  le t  me put  i t  to  you 

th is  way,  Cha i r.   As  you can see,  the  head ing  fo r  th i s  was:  

“Renegot ia t ion ,  the  Kumba I ron  Ore  cont rac t . ”  10 

So bas ica l l y,  we wanted to  renego t ia te  a  cont rac t  tha t  we  

had a l ready s igned and the  owners  o f  th is  cont rac t  o r  the  

revenue s t ream o f  Transnet  i s  Group Commerc ia l  o r  Group  

Market ing ,  as  you wou ld  no rmal l y  have i t  in  a  company and  

they wou ld  be  the  peop le  to  unders tand how th i s  shou ld  

occu r  and what  shou ld  be  in  the  RFP as they unders tand i t  

and those ind iv idua ls ,  as  I  exp la ined to  you,  in  the  go  to  

market  memo,  was ident i f ied  and they had g iven the  inputs  

in to  the  RFP.  

 Mr  Cha i r,  once the  response to  t he  RFP i s  made,  20 

the  response to  the  RFP goes then to  the  eva lua t ion  team.   

The eva lua t ion  team cou ld  be  the  same peop le  tha t  have 

put  together  the  RFP o r  i t  cou ld  be  o ther  ind i v idua ls .   In  

th is  case,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  have the  documenta t ion  so  I  

am not  su re  who  the  eva lua t ion  team was but  they wou ld  
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then eva lua te  the  tender.   Once –  and tha t  wou ld  be  made 

up o f  aga in  commerc ia l  peop le ,  f inance  peop le ,  

p rocu rement  peop le ,  governance peop le  f rom p rocurement ,  

I  am not  sure  who e lse  bu t  there  wou ld  have been a  cross-

funct iona l  team tha t  wou ld  have  been put  together  to  

eva lua te  the  tender.    

 Once they have eva lua ted the  tender,  Mr  Cha i r,  they  

wou ld  then prepare  a  memo to  the  Transnet  acqu is i t ion  

counc i l  who wou ld  bas i ca l l y  then endorse  tha t  

recommendat ion .   Th i s  memo then,  Mr  Cha i r,  ge ts  p repared 10 

f rom those documenta t ions in to  say ing  l i s ten ,  we have now 

eva lua ted the  tender,  th is  i s  the  ou tcome o f  th is  

eva lua t ion ,  you are  the  de legated –  or  the  Group Ch ie f  

Execut ive  i s  the  de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y  to  award  th is  work  

so  p lease,  here  i s  the  Transnet  requ is i t ion  counc i l ,  there  i s  

the  Transnet  in te rna l  aud i t  repor t  tha t  bas ica l l y  sa id  i t  has  

been a  sa t is fac to ry  p rocess,  summar i se  and submi t  to  the 

Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  the  s ignature  he re .   So tha t  i s  how 

the  process wou ld  work .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  what  wou ld  have happened is  tha t  20 

you wou ld  have rece ived a  memo f rom lower  down f rom 

another  commi t tee  o r  somebody  e lse  wh ich  wou ld  have 

summar ised every th ing  tha t  had happened up to  tha t  po in t .   

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then ask ing  you to  do  a  memo to the 
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Group CEO ask ing  fo r  approva l  o r  maybe they wou ld  –  

wou ld  they even prepare  th is  k ind  o f  document  fo r  you and  

i f  you are  sa t is f ied  you jus t  s ign?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  tha t  -  Mr  Cha i r,  the  eva lua t ion  team 

wou ld  p repare  a  separa te  memo for  the  Transnet  

acqu is i t ion  counc i l  to  e i ther  endorse  or  no t  endorse  the  

recommendat ions  tha t  wou ld  have come to  tha t .   From 

those documents  we wou ld  have prepared the  summary.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR SINGH:    And then tha t  summary wou ld  have been 10 

e levated to  whoever.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR SINGH:    Even i f  needed to  go  to  the  board ,  Mr  Cha i r,  

i t  wou ld  have fo l lowed the  same process.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So are  you say ing  because the  peop le  

who wou ld  have  looked a t  the  issues before  the  mat te r  

came to  you sa id  eve ry th ing  had  gone we l l  you d id  no t  

have to  look  a t  the  RFP yourse l f?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  Mr  S ingh …[ in tervenes]  20 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rpe rson,  jus t  be fore  my 

learned f r iend cont inues maybe i t  i s  impor tan t  jus t  to  p lace  

on record ,  these documents  tha t  my c l ien t  managed to  f ind  

over  the  weekend ,  th is  i s  jus t  por t ion  o f  the  documents  tha t  

i s  re levant  as  Cha i rperson yourse l f  m ight  have seen now 
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and we respect fu l l y  po in t  o r  w ish  to  submi t  tha t  these were  

documents  tha t  were  supposed to  be  found  by  the  

invest iga to rs .    

Documents  tha t  my c l ien t  has no t  had w i th in  h i s  

pos i t ion  a t  th is  s tage,  we wou ld  suggest  tha t  you  g ive  a  

d i rec t i ve  tha t  those documents  be  found and a lso  p laced  

before  you,  so  –  because,  as  my  c l ien t  has po in ted  out ,  

th is  has been a  who le  process,  no t  jus t  one document  tha t  

you were  re fer red  to  las t  week but  a l l  o f  these documents  

f rom par t  o f  the  p rocess and  we th ink  tha t  those 10 

documents ,  a l l  o f  them is  impor tan t .   We wi l l  p rov ide  what  

we can but  inso far  as  there  is  documents  m iss ing ,  tha t  my 

c l ien t  has re fe r red  you to ,  we be l ieve  tha t  the  invest iga tors  

shou ld  be  ab le  to  f ind  those.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  … 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    We wi l l  dea l  w i th  tha t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  r igh t  now I  need to  j us t  ask  

some s imple  quest ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  mean –  so  do  I  unders tand i t ,  you  

rep resented and presented th i s  document  on  the  bas is  tha t  

you compi led  i t  when you ac tua l l y  d id  no t  compi le  i t?   I t  i s  

as  s imp le  as  tha t .  

MR SINGH:    But ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  th is  i s  a  normal  p rocess tha t  
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we wou ld  have been …[intervenes] 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh,  I  have l i s tened to  you fo r  

a  long t ime.   You s igned th i s  document  represent ing  tha t  

you compi led  i t  and you presented i t  on  tha t  bas is  when  

you ac tua l l y  d id  no t  compi le  i t ,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Perhaps my next  quest ion  i s ,  what  

a re  you ac tua l l y  do ing  even invo lved in  th is?   Why d id  your  

s ignature  have to  be  here?  Why d id  you have to  compi le  

th is  document?  10 

MR SINGH:    Because as  you s tar ted ,  Mr  Myburgh,  by  

say ing  tha t  we went  th rough a  process o f  con f ident ia l  

conf inement  tha t  d id  no t  requ i re  s ignatures .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay,  so  tha t  i s  why you are  

invo l ved because i t  t races back to  the  conf ident ia l  

conf inement?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Oh then tha t  makes sense to  me.   So 

le t  us  go  to  conf ident ia l  conf inement .   So –  and I  th ink  tha t  

th is  has become c lear  th rough the  quest ion ing  f rom the  20 

Cha i rperson,  le t  us  go  to  one o f  these conf ident ia l ,  jus t  to  

make i t  –  o r  conf inements  to  make i t  p rac t ica l .   I f  you  go to  

Vo lm ink ,  EXHIBIT  BB2.1(d) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Reg is t ra r ,  d id  you hear?   What  page? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Page 1289.   A re  you there ,  Mr  
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S ingh?  

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  I  th ink  tha t  i s  the  las t  page o f  the  

coa l  conf inement ,  1289.   So I  th ink… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  thank you,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So I  th ink  i t  i s  –  you have s ta ted  as  

much,  i f  you  look a t  paragraph 47:  

“Go ing  the  conf ident ia l  rou te  enab led  Mr  Mole fe…” 

On your  compi la t ion .  

“…to  conf ine  and  award  se rv i ces  in  suppor t  o f  the  10 

in te rna l  team to  McK insey and Company and i t s  

BEE consor t ium par tne r . ”  

He cou ld  do  tha t  h imse l f .  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry ,  S i r ,  I  d id  no t  hear  the  las t  b i t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    By  go ing  to  conf ident ia l  rou te ,  he 

cou ld  make tha t  dec i s ion  h imse l f .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  in  o the r  words –  and I  th ink  you  

have exp la ined th is ,  what  tha t  meant  i s  look ,  i t  i s  go ing  to  

be  on  conf inement ,  you a re  no t  go ing  to  the  open  market  20 

bu t  then there  is  a  p rocess tha t  i s  fo l lowed.   But  i t  was h is  

dec is ion  on  your  compi la t ion  tha t  t r iggered the  conf inement  

p rocess.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And not  go ing  to  the  market .  
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MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Every th ing  tha t  happened a f te r  tha t  

d id  no t  rev is i t  tha t  dec is ion ,  i t  fo l lowed f rom tha t  dec is ion .   

MR SINGH:    We l l ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  i f  you  look a t  the  h igh  va lue  

tender  p rocess,  the  h igh  va lue  tender  p rocess wou ld  have 

s tar ted  f rom here .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    And does make re ference to  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cor rec t  bu t  I  mean i t  fo l lowed f rom 

th is  p rocess.  10 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t ,  so  then we go back to  the  

quest ion  tha t  I  ac tua l l y  asked you to  cons ider  overn igh t  

because every th ing  tha t  you have to ld  us ,  we  accept  

en t i re l y  bu t  i f  you  then go to  BB2.1A,  tha t  i s  the  o ther  

Vo lm ink  f i le ,  the  f i rs t  one.   Cou ld  you tu rn  up  page 64 

p lease?  Page 64 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  ment ion  the  bund le  f i rs t ,  Mr  

Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  i s  BB2 .1(a) ,  Mr  Vo lm ink  has go t  20 

two f i les ,  i t  i s  the  f i rs t  f i l e .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR SINGH:    64?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I f  you  go to  page 64 and i f  you can 

go back to  parag raph 148.   So:  
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“The 2013 PPM s ta ted  tha t  in  c i r cumstances where  

a  conf inement  i s  conf ident ia l  the  GCE may approve  

such conf inement  w i th  the  conf inement  request  

be ing  rou ted  v ia  o ther  au tho r i t ies . ”  

So we have seen  tha t  i s  what  happened.   But  the  quest ion  

tha t  I  ask  you to  cons ide r  i s  why was th is  con f ident ia l  

because o f  course  he can on ly  do  th is  h imse l f ,  i f  i t  i s  

conf ident ia l .   Now tha t  i s  no t  a  quest ion  tha t  I  have seen  

you address.   So what  i s  the  answer  to  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r ,  i f  you  do  look a t  the  conf inement  10 

documenta t ion  i t se l f  i t  does a l lude –  yes,  conf inement  

document  i t se l f ,  i t  does a l lude to  the  conf ident ia l  

in fo rmat ion   tha t  McK insey or  p ropr ie ty  in fo rmat ion  tha t  

McK insey had in  te rms o f  fo r  example  the  coa l  l ine ,  they  

had -  I  th ink  i t  i s  somewhere  here .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  le t  me take you to  i t .   Perhaps 

we can go to  the  f i le ,  i f  i t  he lps .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I f  we go to  the  o ther  f i l e  and we go 

back to  PSV1287.   I  th ink  there ,  as  you say,  there  is  a  20 

re ference.   So th is  i s   -  go  to  BB2.1(d ) .  

MR SINGH:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And to  page 1287.   There  i t  re fe rs  

to ,  a t  1287 –  l i ke  we see under  each one o f  these  

schedu les  the re  is  a  pa ragraph 29 in  th is  case.  
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MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I s  tha t  what  you mean?  Add i t iona l l y  

due to  the  conf ident ia l  na ture  o f  the  in fo rmat ion? 

MR SINGH:    Yes.   But ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  I  th ink  we need to  

d is t ingu ish  be tween two th ings he re .   The f i rs t  i s  tha t  the 

conf inement  was  bas ica l l y  mot iva ted  on grounds (a)  and 

(d)  wh ich  bas ica l l y  i s  u rgency and the  fac t  tha t  we have 

s im i la r  se rv i ces  and the  spec ia l i sed  nature  o f  the  work  tha t  

was be ing  conduc ted …[ in tervenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh,  I  am sor ry  to  in te r rup t ,  I  10 

am not  ask ing  you tha t  now,  I  am jus t  look ing  a t  how do 

you sa t is fy  the  requ i rements  o f  the  2013 PPM at  pa ragraph 

148.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  i t  re la tes  to  the  issue o f  –  i f  you  

look a t  parag raph –  i f  you  look a t  the  tab le  on  page 12 – 

1286.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    I f  you  see grounds  there  is  the  tab le  there  

and there  is  A and then there  is  D.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    And there  is  two D ’s ,  ac tua l l y  i f  you  look a t  

the  f i rs t  D.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:   And then you look a t  paragraph 23 –  oh  the  
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4 t h  bu l le t  po in t  in  the  second tab le .    

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    These were  the  conf ident ia l  na tu re  o f  the  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  re la ted  to  the  con f ident ia l  conf inement  Mr  

Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  beg your  pardon,  what  bu l le t  po in t?  

MR SINGH:    The  bu l le t  po in t  4 ,  i t  says  -  under  D,  i t  says:   

“McK insey has propr ie ta ry  coa l  demand and supp ly  

mode ls ,  as  we l l  as  key opera t ing  ph i losoph ies  tha t  10 

Transnet  can use . ”  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So why does i t  keep,  a  con f ident ia l  

conf inement?   

MR SINGH:    Because o f  the  conf ident ia l  na ture  o f  

th is…[ in tervene]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Because McKinsey has go t  

conf ident ia l  in fo rmat ion ,  i s  tha t  what  you say ing?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Because the  serv ice  prov ider  has  

go t  conf ident ia l  in fo rmat ion ,  th is  becomes a  con f ident ia l  20 

conf inement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  o ther  words,  what  Mr  Myburgh is  

look ing  fo r  Mr  S ingh,  wh ich  is  what  I  th ink  I  have been  

want ing  to  check w i th  you a lso  is  in  te rms o f  these 

po l i c ies ,  when  they say ta lk  about  conf ident ia l  
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conf inement ,  leave out  conf inement .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The conf ident ia l  ask ,  what  must  be  

conf ident ia l  and conf ident ia l  to  whom – who must  no t  know 

what?  

MR SINGH:    Wel l  Mr  Cha i r,  in  th is  case I  be l ieved i t  to  be 

the  fac t  tha t  th is  in fo rmat ion  re la t ing  to  the  propr ie ta ry  

too ls  wou ld  be  the  conf ident ia l  aspects  re la t ing  to  th is  

conf ident ia l  conf i nement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  jus t  repeat  tha t?  10 

MR SINGH:    I  sa id  tha t  in  my v iew,  the  conf ident ia l  and 

propr ie ta ry  in fo rmat ion  tha t  i s  re la ted  to  the  de l i ve ry  o f  the  

serv i ces  by  McK insey was what  I  regarded as  conf ident ia l  

in fo rmat ion .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  so  what  I  jus t  want  you  to  –  we 

can move on because I  suppose i t  i s  someth ing  tha t  can be 

debated in  t ime.   But  le t  me jus t  g ive  you an example  -  I  

mean,  so  i n  o ther  words,  the  quest ion  I  suppose  to  the  

DCJ’s  inqu i ry.   Does the  conf ident ia l i t y  re la te  to  Transnet  20 

or  does i t  re la te  to  the  se rv i ce  p rov ide r?   

So a  good examp le ,  I  jus t  want  you to  comment  on ,  

le t  us  assume you want  to  ins ta l l  cove r t  cameras,  fo r  some 

reason.   Now,  you do not  want  everyone to  know about  

tha t ,  you want  i t  to  be  done on a  conf ident ia l  bas i s  
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because i f  you go in  normal  conf inement  g roup,  there  is  

more  layers  o f  peop le  invo lved.  I f  you  go the  RFP rou te  a  

lo t  more  peop le  may come to  learn .   

So there  is  a  c lass ic ,  conf ident ia l  conf inement ,  what  

you do is  the  CEO bas ica l l y  au tho r ises  i t  h imse l f ,  bu t  tha t  

i s  conf ident ia l i t y  in  favour  o f  Transnet .   You want  to  

comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    I  can  see your  po in t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you see,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  fo r  next  

po in t ,  there  is  no  conf ident ia l i t y  o f  tha t  sor t  in  any o f  these 10 

cont rac ts .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  as  I  say…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  o ther  words,  Mr  Myburgh is  say ing ,  i f  

one approaches i t  in  the  way tha t  Mr  Myburgh is  pu t t ing  i t  

to  you the  po in t  wou ld  be  the  prov is ions re la t ing  to  

conf ident ia l i t y,  conf ident ia l  conf inement ,  fo r  whose  benef i t  

were  they pu t  in to  the  po l i cy?   And Mr  Myburgh is  

suggest ing  to  what  he  has pu t  to  you is  tha t  you must  be  -  

you are  expected  to  be  look ing  a t  us ing  conf ident ia l i t y  in  

tha t  contex t ,  to  p ro tec t  the  in te res ts  o f  Transnet ,  do  you  20 

unders tand?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r  and maybe,  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  I  am 

a l lowed to  e labora te  on  th is  i ssue o f…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe before  you say tha t ,  Mr  Myburgh 

am I  in  l ine  w i th  what  you have in  m ind?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  i t  i s  and DCJ and I  w i l l  remind 

you to  a  s im i la r  debate  you had w i th  Mr  Mole fe .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  was rea l l y  fo r  whose bene f i t  i s  the 

conf ident ia l i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  i f  I  may e labora te  on  th i s  po in t  Mr  

Cha i r  a round th is  p ropr ie ta ry  in fo rmat ion .  Mr  Cha i r,  the 

issue re la t ing  to  th is  i s  aga in ,  maybe a  po in t  tha t  i s  needed  

to  be  debated o r  cou ld  be  deba ted.   The on ly  way fo r  10 

Transnet  to  unders tand and ac tua l l y  ge t  to  eva lua te  the  

va lue  o f  the  propr ie ta ry  in fo rmat ion  tha t  McK insey  had or  

d id  no t  have,  cou ld  on l y  be  done  th rough a  p rocu rement  

p rocess and the  procurement  p rocess tha t  was then 

adopted  was  th is  one.   Th is  conf ident ia l  conf inement  

p rocess in  te rms  o f  no t  ge t t ing  a l l  o f  the  s ignatures  tha t  

were  requ i red ,  fo r  us  to  in i t ia l l y  unders tand whe ther  th is  

p ropr ie ta ry  in fo rmat ion  tha t  they ac tua l l y  had wou ld  a l low  

us  to  be  ab le  to  engage th rough the  process I  jus t  took you 

th rough.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  bu t  assuming Mr  S ingh tha t  wou ld  

no t  make sense wou ld  i t ,  because  you remember,  you and I  

had an engagement  ear l ie r  on  and you ag reed tha t  in  

conf inements ,  the  dec is ion  no t  to  go  to  open market  

happens f i rs t ,  you know and then  var ious s teps a re  then 
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taken w i th  regard  to  the  ident i f ied  en t i t y  o r  en t i t ies .   

So,  bu t  the  dec i s ion  to  say,  th is  w i l l  be  a  

conf inement  i s  taken f i rs t  and o f  course ,  i t  must  be  so  tha t  

even whethe r  i t  i s  go ing  to  be  a  conf ident ia l  conf inement ,  

tha t  dec is ion  is  t aken f i rs t  and you cannot  -  on  what  you  

are  say ing  you wou ld  be  expected  as  o f f i c ia ls  o f  Transnet  

to  make those dec is ions be fore  you get  a l l  the  in fo rmat ion .   

Whereas on the  approach tha t  Mr  Myburgh is  

pu t t ing  to  you,  when you make the  dec is ion ,  tha t  i t  shou ld  

be  a  conf ident ia l  conf inement ,  you  wou ld  be  hav ing  a l l  the  10 

in fo rmat ion  because i t  i s  about  Transnet .   You can get  

whatever  in fo rmat ion  you need to  see whether  in  o rder  to  

p ro tec t  the  in te res ts  o f  Transnet  the  conf inement  shou ld  be  

conf ident ia l  o r  no t .  

MR SINGH:    We l l ,  hence,  Mr  Cha i r.   I  th ink  the  example  

tha t  Mr  Myburgh used is  qu i te  c lear  cu t .   In  th is  case,  Mr  

Cha i r,  what  I  am say ing  is  tha t  we  d id  no t  want  to  go  in to  

an  ent i re  p rocess and then  f igure  ou t  tha t  these  

conf ident ia l  in fo rmat ion  -  o r  th is  p ropr ie ta ry  in fo rmat ion  

tha t  they ought  to  have was ac tua l l y  they d id  no t  have.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    But  you wou ld  be  look ing  a t  the  -  you 

wou ld  be  approach ing  the  issue wrong ly,  on  Mr  Myburgh ’s  

approach,  because as  I  unders tand what  you a re  say ing ,  

you wou ld  be  seek ing  to  p ro tec t  the  supp l ie rs ,  the  in tended 

supp l ie r ’s  in te res ts .   Whereas on th is  approach,  you wou ld  
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be  look ing  a t  whe ther  you need a  conf ident ia l  conf inement ,  

no t  to  p ro tec t  a  supp l ie r ’s  i n te res ts ,  bu t  to  p ro tec t  

Transnet ’s  in te res t ,  your  own employer  and obv ious ly,  i f  

you  need any in fo rmat ion ,  tha t  in fo rmat ion  is  w i th in  

Transnet .  

MR SINGH:    Bu t  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  we are  look ing  a t  

sa feguard ing  Transnet ’s  in te res ts  w i th  a l l  due respect ,  Mr  

Cha i r,  I  th ink  the  conf ident ia l  con f inement  was a  process 

tha t  was adopted .   But  i f  you  look  a t  the  process tha t  then  

unfo lded,  I  th ink  tha t  p rocess bas ica l l y  sa feguarded and 10 

demonst ra tes  tha t  we ac tua l l y  answers  in  tha t  ins tance,  

tha t  p rocess.  In  my v iew,  the  con f ident ia l  conf inement  Mr  

Cha i r  i s  re la t i ve l y  a  mood po in t ,  hav ing  gone th rough the  

process tha t  we went  th rough.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No i t  i s  no t  a  mood po in t ,  because i t  

enab led  Mr  Mole fe  to  dec ide  i t  h imse l f  on  your  comp i la t ion .  

MR SINGH:    And,  Mr  Cha i r,  we went  back to  Mr  Mole fe  

w i th  the  ou tcomes o f  the  process fo r  h im to  then have the  

benef i t  o f  be ing  ab le  to  say,  shou ld  I  award  or  shou ld  I  no t  

award .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  I  th ink  rea l l y  the  las t  po in t  I  want  

to  make is  what  Mr  Forming says,  you see you  us ing  

conf ident ia l i t y  tw ice .   You are  us ing  i t  to  jus t i f y  

conf inement ,  and then you are  us ing  i t  to  jus t i f y  the 

conf ident ia l  conf inement  and those are  two very  d i f fe ren t  
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th ings.   

MR SINGH:    No,  we do not  use  i t…[ in te rvene]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No you a re ,  because the  f i rs t  one 

might  go  to  the  c l ien ts ,  to  the  serv ice  prov ider ’s  

conf ident ia l i t y,  bu t  a  conf ident ia l  conf inement  I  pu t  to  you 

must  be  fo r  the  –  tha t  conf ident ia l i t y  i s  fo r  the  benef i t  o f  

Transnet .  

MR SINGH:    No,  no  I  agree.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  i s  an  ex t rao rd inary  s tep  tha t  one 

wou ld  very  se ldom take,  because i t  t r ims down the  process 10 

qu i te  rad ica l l y.  

MR SINGH:    I  agree w i th  you,  Mr  Cha i r,  bu t  i t  does t r im  

down the  p rocess bu t  hav ing  demonst ra ted  the  process 

tha t  we fo l lowed to  award  the  bus iness as  I  say  to  you the  

conf ident ia l  conf inement  rou te ,  was probab ly  a  mood  

process to  have fo l lowed.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And the  las t  quest ion  you conf i rm 

tha t  you remained invo lved in  the  process,  because you  

were  the  one who  proposed a  conf ident ia l  conf inement?  

MR SINGH:    No,  s i r  i t  was because o f  the  fac t  tha t  I  was  20 

requ i red  to  s ign  the  memo in  te rms  o f  the  PPA.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  you jus t  sa id ,  i f  we can go to  

th is  memo.   Your  award  memos I  ca l led  i t .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    When I  asked you why are  you there ,  
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why do you s ign  as  the  compi le r?   You sa id  to  

me…[ in te rvene]  

MR SINGH:    No,  no .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  S ingh,  jus t  le t  me re t race my  

s teps and then you can then argue w i th  me i f  you want .   

You sa id  to  me  i t  was because  you were  the  one who 

proposed th is  to  Mr  Mole fe .  

MR SINGH:    No ,  where  I  was growing to  w i th  th is  -  you  

conc luded tha t  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   10 

MR SINGH:    Where  I  was go ing  w i th  tha t  was to  say,  I  am 

par t  o f  tha t  memo,  jus t  l i ke  Mr  Peter  i s  par t  o f  tha t  memo,  

jus t  l i ke  –  I  am not  too  sure  who e lse  had s ign  them,  i s  tha t  

the  PPM requ i res  us  to  s ign  i t  and there fore  we s igned i t ,  

un l i ke  the  conf ident ia l  memo where  the  PPM says  on  the  

bas is  o f ,  i f  i t  i s  a  conf ident ia l  conf inement ,  you do not  

need to  s ign  those th ings.   So in  t h is  case,  our  s ignatures  

were  there  because the  PPM requ i red  i t  to  be .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  so  le t  us  go  to  -  I  th ink  when 

we f in ished i f  my memory  says -  we had s tar ted  ta lk ing  20 

about  the  100 locomot ives  and we had got  

th rough…[ in tervene]  

MR SINGH:    Le t  me jus t  do  some housekeep ing .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yeah,  you can put  some f i les  as ide ,  

thanks.   We had  dea l t  w i th  the  conf inement  to  Mi tsu i  and  
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then the  reversa l  and  then the  conf inement  to  CSR.   We 

had dea l t  w i th  a l l  o f  tha t  and we  ac tua l l y  begun to  dea l  

w i th  the  increase  in  the  ETC,  f rom the  3 .8b i l l i on  to  4 .8  and 

I  th ink  I  m ight  even have taken you to  the  memorandum to  

the  Board  o f  D i rec tors .   

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Le t  me take you to  tha t  document  

because I  th ink  I  ment ioned i t  to  you i t  appears  in  many  

p laces,  bu t  i t  i s  perhaps most  conven ien t  to  dea l  w i th  the  

vers ion  tha t  i s  a t tached to  Chab i  because we w i l l  dea l  w i th  10 

h is  a f f idav i t  and  then we are  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  your  

response to  tha t .   

So Chab i  -  what  I  need you to  look  fo r  and tu rn  to  

p lease is  Exh ib i t  BB8 [B28] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    P lease,  repeat  tha t  Mr  Myburgh,  bund le?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Exh ib i t  BB,  so  i t  i s  be fore  we  s tar ted  

w i th  the  bund les  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  i s  Exh ib i t  BB8[B ]  and then Mr  

S ingh,  what  you w i l l  see  is  tha t  hopefu l l y  tha t  f i l e  shou ld  20 

be d iv ided in to  two par ts  you need to  go  to  the  second 

par t ,  the  s l immer  a f f idav i t .  

MR SINGH LAWYER:    Cha i rpe rson,  you r  m icrophone is  

tu rned away f rom you,  so  we bat t l ing  to  hear  you a  b i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   
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MR SINGH LAWYER:    Thank you.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I  am sor ry.   P lease repeat  Mr  

Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  BB8[B ]  and i t  shou ld  be  

marked A l i s te r  Chab i  on  the  sp ine .   

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  the  page number?   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  have on ly  go t  red  numbers,  so  I  

wou ld  l i ke  to  go  to  page 23 p lease.   So i t  i s  d iv ided in to  

two pa r ts  and I  have got  the  second par ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  have got  i t .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  S ingh a re  you there?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  I  th ink  we had s ta r ted  to  go 

th rough th is .   I  want  to  fas t  fo rward  a  b i t  because I  want  to  

ge t  to  what  Mr  Chab i  says and then g ive  you an 

oppor tun i ty  to  dea l  w i th  i t .  Th is  memo,  we know mot iva tes  

fo r  an  increase jus t  shor t  o f  a  b i l l i on  rand.   There  is  an  

execut ive  summary a t  page 23,  what  you see there  is  the 

scope change accounts  fo r  R347mi l l ion ,  36%,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you see they had dea l t  w i th  the  

parag raph fo r  36% of  the  ETC increase re la tes  to  the  

scope change,  we are  ta lk ing  about  in  re la t ion  to  the 

locomot ives .  Cons ide r ing  the  d iscount  negot ia ted ,  the  cost  

o f  the  scope change is  reasonab le  and then i f  I  can  take  
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you  to  14 ,  a t  page 24.    

“A cont rac t  to  acqu i re  100 e lec t r i c  locomot ives  was  

conc luded w i th  CSR on 17 March,  a t  a  cost  o f  

4 .4b i l l i on ,  inc lud ing  the  cost  o f  fu tu re  esca la t ion  

and fo re ign  exchange costs ,  thus resu l t ing  in  an  

increase o f  ETC o f  the  969. ”  

And then i f  I  cou ld  take  you to  the  tab le ,  p lease a t  page 

26.  I  have jus t  t r ied  to  p lace  what  Mr  Chab i  has to  say in  

contex t .  What  you see the re  is  tab le  one,  p r ice  pe r  

locomot ive  as  to  Board  submiss ion  21  January  2014,  the  10 

pr ice  pe r  locomot ive  was 34.34 s ta ted  there ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then i f  you go one,  two – four  

l ines  be low tha t :  

“Add i t iona l  cos t  fo r  var ia t ions  fo r  h igher  locomot ive  

specs. ”  

So tha t  i s  the  scope change and add i t iona l  du t ies  as  I  have 

i t ,  i t  i s  347mi l l ion  per  locomot ive ,  cor rec t?   

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I s  tha t  r igh t?  20 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And there  were  100 locomot ives ,  so  

tha t  ge ts  us  c lose  to  the  347mi l l ion ,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then tab le  two re fers  to  the  rand 
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to  yen and under  tha t  l i t t le  A ,  i t  records ,  fo re ign  exchange 

ra tes :  

“The rand as  apprec ia ted  by  10 .74%,  aga ins t  the  

Japanese yen.   Th i s  has impac ted the  expected  

pr ice  o f  the  locomot ives  as  per  t he  bus iness case 

and u l t imate ly  the  es t imated ETC as approved by  

the  Board  by  approx imate ly  10 .74%.”  

Cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then u l t imate ly,  I  th ink  we went  10 

th rough th is  las t  t ime,  there  is  the i r  recommenda t ion  a t  

page 36.  Essent ia l l y  a  recommendat ion  fo r  the  inc rease in  

the  ETC o f  a  b i l l ion  recommended by  you,  recommended by  

Mr  Gama and then recommended  by  Mr  Mole fe  and as  I  

unders tand i t ,  then tab led  and approved by  the  Board  o f  

D i rec tors ,  co r rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now,  I  want  to  take  you -  and Mr  

S ingh,  le t  me say th is  in  the  in te res t  o f  t ime,  when i t  

comes to  the  increase in  the  ETC,  I  am go ing  to  go  -  I  am 20 

not  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  every th ing ,  I  am go ing  to  go  to  what  

I  th ink  are  the  impor tan t  par t s ,  and then ask you  to  dea l  

w i th  i t .  O f  course ,  i f  you  want  to  add someth ing ,  you are  

more  than we lcome,  bu t  I  am not  go ing  to  go  l ine  fo r  l ine  

on  every  s ing le  i ssue.  
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Can I  take  you then to  Mr  Chab i ’s  conc lus ion ,  and 

then we can work  backwards.   Mr  Chab i ’s  conc lus ion  you  

f ind  a t  page 100.   

MR SINGH:    100 ,  in  the  f i rs t  par t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  in  the  second pa r t ,  we were  jus t  

a  few pages befo re  th is  memo one ,  page 20.   Sor ry  I  m ight  

have sa id  a  100 but  they are  a l l  100.   So are  you a t  page  

20?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  so  I  jus t  want  to  read to  you  10 

those two paragraphs…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  i s  i t  page 20 or  a  100? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  i t  is  page 100-20,  so  i t  is  

ac tua l l y  page 20,  DCJ and they on ly  red  numbers  on  what  I  

have.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So i t  i s  a  few pages before  the 

memo,  tha t  we have jus t  been go ing  th rough.  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  the  same bund le?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    In  the  same bund le  and the  same 20 

d iv ider,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  I  th ink  -  yes ,  okay I  found i t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So ,  what  Mr  Chab i  conc ludes a t  

5 .33 :  

“ In  conc lud ing  hav ing  bu i l t  up  the  pr ice  o f  a  20E  
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dua l  vo l tage e lec t r i c  locomot ive  prov ided by  CSR as  

a t  20  Apr i l  2012 to  March 2014 a l lowed fo r  des ign  

mod i f i ca t ion  cos ts  as  a t  March  2014 to  meet  

Transnet ’s  19E dua l  vo l tage locomot ive  

requ i rements  and  mi t iga ted  fo r  r i sk  such as  fo re ign  

cur rency and in f la t ion ,  a  reasonab le /acceptab le  

pr ice ,  ETC for  the  t ransact ion  wou ld  be  4 .1b i l l i on .  

The excess o f  739mi l l ion  cou ld  no t  be  jus t i f ied  on  

the  bas is  exp la ined above. ”  

Then a t  5 .34 :  10 

“The submiss ions f rom CSR were  in  do l la rs ,  

whereas the  100 locomot ive  bus iness case and the  

memorandum,  jus t i f y ing  the  increase in  ETC used a  

rand/yen bas is .   I t  i s  impor tan t  to  no te  tha t  there  

are  d i f fe rences in  economic  cond i t ions  be tween 

Japan and the  Un i ted  S ta tes .   The ana lys is  on  a  

rand/do l la r  bas is  p roduces a  rev i sed ETC o f  

4 .478b i l l i on  assuming tha t  the  ETC are  3 .871b i l l i on  

i s  co r rec t ,  th is  amounts  to  an  increase o f  

R362mi l l ion  tha t  cannot  be  jus t i f ied . ”  20 

So i t  i s  the  f i rs t  parag raph the  739 tha t  he  says cannot  be  

jus t i f ied  us ing  a  d i f fe ren t  ra te ,  he  ge ts  i t  to  362.   Now,  I  

want  to  go  –  perhaps you can leave th is  f i l e  open you may 

want  to  look  a t  the  memo.   You dea l  w i th  th is  in  one  o f  your  

a f f idav i t s  a t  Bund le  5C.   Can I  take  you p lease to  page  
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1467.  

MR SINGH:    14?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    1467,  we use.  

MR SINGH:    Oh sor ry,  we us ing  b lack  numbers .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A re  you in  5C? 

MR SINGH:    Yeah,  I  go t  b lack  numbers .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yeah,  i t  i s  b lack  numbers  now.  

MR SINGH:    1467,  I  am there .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay.   So you have a  head ing  a t  

1467 inc reas ing  ETC f rom 3 .8b i l l i on  to  4 .8b i l l i on  and i f  I  10 

can p ick  up  a t  162:  

“One o f  the  la rgest  d i f fe rences in  the  compara t ive  

tab le  on  page 15  o f  the  repor t  i s  the  base pr i ce  per  

locomot ive . ”  

You say a t  163:  

“MNS and Chab i  used the  CSR 95  locomot ive  pr ice  

o f  28 .86mi l l ion  per  locomot ive  as  the i r  base pr i ce  

ad jus ted  fo r  fo rex  and esca la t ions.   The use o f  the  

95  locomot ive  pr i ce  as  the  base p r ice  i s  un tenab le  

fo r  commerc ia l  techn ica l  o r  log ica l  reasons due to  20 

the  fo l low ing. ”  

You want  to  take  us  th rough tha t?  

MR SINGH:    The  paragraphs tha t  fo l low? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    Okay,  Mr  Cha i r  in  te rms o f  the  base pr ice ,  so ,  
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what  Mr  Chab i  does is  he  uses the  base pr ice  o f  

28 .86mi l l ion  fo r  locomot ives  and ad jus t  i t  fo r  cer ta in  

fac tors .  Now,  the  95  loco ’s  Mr  Cha i r  i s  a  20E locomot ive  

tha t  i s  used fo r  the  genera l  f re igh t  bus iness,  i t  is  no t  a  

heavy hau l  locomot ive  tha t  i s  what  was requ i red  fo r  the  

coa l  l ine  and tha t  i s  what  the  conf inement  sought  to  

rece ive  f rom CSR was a  19E equ iva len t  locomot i ve  wh ich  

was the  Mi tsu i  locomot ives  tha t  were  dep loyed on the  coa l  

l ine .   

So,  Mr  Cha i r,  f rom a  perspect ive  o f  the  compar ison,  10 

you are  no t  compar ing  app les  w i th  app les  because my 

34mi l l ion  s ta r ts  w i th  a  Mi tsu i  quote  and a  Mi t su i  quote  i s  

bas ica l l y  a  34mi l l ion  -  i s  a  19E  equ iva len t  26  ax le  ton  

locomot ive .   The 20E,  Mr  Cha i r  i s  a  22  ax le  ton  locomot ive .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  jus t  –  I  am so r ry  to  in te r rup t  you  

I  jus t  want  to  make sure  I  am c lea r,  what  Chab i  d id  –  

cor rec t  me i f  I  am wrong,  as  you say a t  163,  remember  we 

now dea l ing  w i th  100 locomot ives  be fore  tha t  we had the  

95 .   

MR SINGH:    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Which  were  awarded to  CSR.   He 

took the  base pr i ce  o f  tha t  locomot ive .   

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    As  h is  po in t  o f  depar tu re .   

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  



31 MAY 2021 – DAY 406 
 

Page 136 of 217 
 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You say,  and I  do  no t  want  to  

in te r rup t  you,  bu t  what  you say a t  paragraph 165,  is  you 

used the  base pr i ce  o f  34 .34mi l l ion  and as  I  unders tand i t ,  

tha t  was the  pr i ce  tha t  Mi tsu i  had quoted.   

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    For  the  heavy hau l  locomot ive  as  Mr  

Gama ca l l s  i t ,  the  beast .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  -  and we know tha t  CSR then  

rep laces Mi tsu i ,  so  tha t  i s  how you get  your  f igure .   10 

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  so  car ry  on .   So tha t  i s  what  

you say a t  165,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then you dea l  a t  166:  

“The exchange ra te  used by  MNS and Chab i  to  

ad jus t  the  base pr ice  i s  a lso  fundamenta l l y  f lawed,  

in  tha t  they used the  Japanese yen to  ad jus t  the  

CSR pr ice  tha t  was based in  US do l la rs ,  where  

there  is  no  log i ca l  o r  commerc ia l  reason to  do  so . ”  20 

Is  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  I  mean  there  is  a  –  I  wou ld  no t  

ca l l  i t  a  f igh t  bu t  there  is  a  c r isp  d i f fe rence o f  op in ion  

be tween you and  Chab i .   One,  what  is  the  base p r ice  and  
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two,  a re  we ta lk ing  rand/yen or  rand/do l la r.   

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  so  can I  then take  you to  what  

Mr  Chab i  says in  response to  these pa ragraphs,  you f ind  

tha t  a t  1788,  tha t  i s  where  h is  a f f idav i t  s ta r ts  1788 b lack  

numbers .   

MR SINGH:    Sor ry  one second s i r,  you are  a t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Same bund le .  

MR SINGH:    Same bund le ,  17?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    1788 and can you go to  page 1790 10 

and I  wou ld  l i ke  t o  take  you th rough paragraphs 14 to  25 .  

MR SINGH:    1790?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    1790,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh I  do  no t  want  to  fo rge t  th is ,  

cou ld  somebody in  your  team maybe tomor row look  a t  th is  

bund le ,  i t  has  go t  some documents  such as  Mr  S ingh 's  

a f f idav i t s ,  one o f  h is  a f f idav i t s  wh ich  do  no t  have  

pag ina t ion ,  o f f i c i a l  pag ina t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  they were  s lo t ted  in  a f te r  the  20 

pag ina t ion  had been done.   So there  is  no th ing  to  say 

where  they be long.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cer ta in ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  S ingh can I  ask  you wh i l s t  we go 
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th rough these pa ragraphs cou ld  you have open the  memo 

tha t  we went  to  a t tach  to  Chab i ’s  a f f idav i t  r igh t  a t  the  end,  

i f  you  cou ld  have them s ide  by  s ide .    

MR SINGH:    So  tha t  i s  23 ,  I  th ink .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  tha t  i s  BB8[B1]  –  yes and I  m ight  

take  you to  the  tab le  o f  26 ,  perhaps i f  you  cou ld  have tha t  

open,  I  hope i t  w i l l  ass is t  us .   A re  you there?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  so…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  the  memo is  in  wh ich  bund le?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  i s  in  the  Chab i  Bund le  BB8[B ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  she must  jus t  f ind  i t  fo r  me,  I  th ink  

we took i t  back,  8B? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  i t  i s  the  second  d iv ider  

Cha i rperson,  Page 26.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Second d iv ider  o f  wh ich  bund le  or  

exh ib i t s?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  I  th ink  you have got  BB8[B1]  

and Exh ib i t  BB8[B2] ,  so  i t  i s  two.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  go t  i t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Perhaps,  i f  you  cou ld  jus t  keep tha t  

tab le  open,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  tha t  i s  the  tab le ,  tab le  1 ,  page 26  

and then tab le  2…[ in tervene]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    26 .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    286?  I  th ink she must  approach you Mr  

Myburgh to  estab l ish exact ly  where th is  memo is .   No the 

page number he is  ment ion ing is  not  that  page number.   No.   

This is  the one I  was ment ion ing.   Go to Mr Myburgh.   Okay 

i t  turns out  I  was on the r ight  page.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Cer ta in ly.  So we want  to  read that  

then together  Cha i r  wi th  Mr Choubey’s aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR GIGABA:   A t  page 1790 of  Bundle 5(c) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.    10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight  Mr S ingh paragraph 14.   

Table 1 of  the 100 memo and the 100 memo is  what  we have 

in  f ront  o f  us make a l lowance for  modi f icat ion costs of  

R3.47 mi l l ion to  locomot ives.   You have seen that .   These 

same modi f i cat ion costs of  R3.47 mi l l ion per  locomot ive 

broken down per  the tab le below of  ver i f iab le in  CSR’s 20  

February 2014 proposal  t i t le  supply of  addi t ional  100 set  o f  

20E dual  vo l tage e lect r i c  locomot ives for  Transnet  Fre ight  

Rai l  and then you wi l l  see that  there i s  a  cost  for  o ther  

changes.   Cost  of  s tee l  and duty and that  takes us to  the –  20 

to  R3.47 mi l l ion.   Is  that  correct?  

MR SINGH:   Correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then at  15  the CSR proposal  in  i ts  

bu i ld  up to  the pr ice per  locomot ive star ts  off  wi th  a base 

pr ice of  R28.86 mi l l ion.   16 – paragraph 14 of  the 100 memo 
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notes as fo l lows:  

“The cont ract  to  acqui re 100 e lect r i c  

locomot ives was concluded wi th  CSR eloco 

supply dated 17 March 2014 at  a  cost  o f  

R4.4 b i l l i on. ”  

I f  we go to  18.  

“ I t  is  therefore incorrect  fo r  Mr S ingh in  the 100 

memo and in  h is  aff idavi t  to   

1 .  Substant ia te a cont ract  p r ice of  R4.4 b i l l ion  

wi th  CSR using a  base pr ice f rom Mi tsu i  o f  10 

30.  –  34.34 mi l l ion per  locomot ive  when 

CSR quoted a base pr ice of  28.86mi l l ion  

per  locomot ive and 

2.  A l low for  modi f icat ion costs on a base pr ice  

of  34.34 mi l l ion where the Mi tsu i  locomot ive 

requi red no modi f icat ions.   The correct  

approach in  evaluat ing or  comput ing a 

reasonable ETC was to sta r t  wi th  the 20E 

base pr ice of  28.86 mi l l ion per  locomot ive 

and reta in the modi f icat ion costs of  3 .47 20 

mi l l ion  per  locomot ive instead of  34.34 

mi l l ion per  locomot ive whi le  s t i l l  a l lowing – I  

presume that  is  4  modi f i cat ions to  the tune 

of  34.47 mi l l ion per  locomot ive.   The la t ter  

is  the approach held in  100 memo.”  
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So i t  seems to be  qui te  a c r isp point .   Do you want  to  

comment  on that?  

MR SINGH:   The cr ispness a l ludes me but  le t  us rather  take  

i t  th is  way.   The – the crux of  th is  issue Mr Chai r  l ies in  the  

fact  that  we are –  Mr Choubey and the memo that  has been 

prepared seeks to  achieve d i f ferent  ob ject i ves and 

outcomes.  

 In  terms of  the memo that  we had prepared Mr Chai r  

i t  is  tak ing us f rom an approved ETC of  3 .3 – 3.3 b i l l ion le t  

us  ca l l  i t  that  –  o r  3  – ja  3.4 b i l l i on le t  us ca l l  i t  that  based 10 

on a Mi tsu i  quote that  had been received in  May 2013.  

 I t  then says Mr  Chai r  that  Mi tsu i  quote that  we 

received in  2013 which the board had approved in  May 2013 

has resul ted in  us acqui r ing locomot ives at  4 .4 b i l l ion on  

the 14 March.  

 The memo seeks to  reconci le  the  d i f ference between 

the 3.4 and the 4.4 which is  the 969.   Mr Choubey on the  

other  hand at tempts to  ar r ive at  what  he ca l l s  a  fa i r  va lue  

for  what  he  bel ieves the locomot ive acquis i t ion should have 

been wi th  no reference to  the issue of  the fact  that  a  3.8 20 

b i l l ion number was approved by the  board in  May 2013.  

 So Mr Chai r  there  is  two fundamenta l  d i f fe rent  basis  

that  Mr Choubey and I  are t ry ing to  achieve.   My object i ve  

is  to  say to  the board you approved 3.4 b i l l i on – we 

concluded a cont ract  for  4 .4  and these are the reasons why 
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we have concluded the – th is  i s  the reasons why we moved 

f rom 3.4 to  4.  

 Mr Chai r  one of  the fundamenta l  reasons that  we 

have that  are d i f ferent  i s  as… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry.   You have just  sa id what  your  

approach is .  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You say your  s tar t ing point  is  the board  

approved a cer ta in  amount .  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   A t  a  cer ta in  t ime.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are now coming wi th  a  cer ta in  

amount .  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you seek to  just i f y  the d i f fe rence.  

MR SINGH:   Exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  that  r ight .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   That  is  correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Then go to  Mr  Choubey what  is  h is  20 

approach then? 

MR SINGH:   So Choubey is  at tempt ing to  ar r ive at  a  fa i r  

va lue of  what  he  bel ieves the 100 locos should have cost  

f rom CSR okay.   So i t  is  a  fundamenta l ly  d i f fe rent  approach.   

 One approach is  to  g ive you a reconci l ia t ion of  what 
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has happened wh ich  is  what  the memo at tempts  to  do.   The 

other  approach is  basica l l y  saying i f  I  have to  do th is  – i f  I  

have to  buy these locos I  would basica l l y  come up w i th  th is  

number as a fa i r  va lue re la t ing to  these locomot ive 

00:07:12.  

 So one has got  noth ing to  do wi th  the other.   They 

are two para l le l  processes and now when we compare the  

two we are t ry ing to  machinate the two in to one outcome 

okay.   And I  wi l l  t ry  and – to  the best  o f  my abi l i ty  t ry  and 

reconci le  the two approaches for  you Mr Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  before you do so just  pure ly  f rom a 

lay person’s approach is  i t  not  the bet te r  approach that  says 

here is  the product  that  you want  as we speak now or  that  

we are recommending.   Here is  the  pr ice that  is  reasonable  

or  fa i r  fo r  th is  product .   I r respect ive of  what  you may have 

approved at  some stage here is  – here is  th is  pr ice is  

reasonable one or  fa i r  one when you have regard to  ABCD – 

i r respect ive of  whether  at  some stage you had approved 

someth ing because what  i f  you wrongly approved what  you 

approved?  Here is  a fa i r  or  reasonable pr ice  having regard  20 

to  a l l  the leg i t imate factors that  you should be tak ing in to 

account  in  answer ing the quest ion – is  th is  a reasonable or  

fa i r  p r ice? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  as I  was about  to  conclude I  was 

going to  say to  you that  to  the best  o f  my abi l i t y  I  wi l l  t ry  
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and expla in to  you how the two actual l y  corre late.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR SINGH:   Okay.   Because I  understand that  they are two 

d i f ferent  basis.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

MR SINGH:   And one as I  sa id t r ies to  expla in the o ther  one 

t r ies to  just i fy.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR SINGH:   Okay.   And I  wi l l  t ry  and – to  the best  o f  my 

abi l i t y  t ry  and br ing the two together.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR SINGH:   Okay.   Now as – before we get  to  the  point  o f  

br ing ing them together  Mr Chai r  you must  understand the 

issues that  take  them apart  okay.   And as  Mr  Myburgh 

correct ly  says the base pr ice i s  one th ing that  takes them 

apart .  

 The other  th ing that  takes them apart  Mr Chai r  is  the  

use of  the exchange rate as to  whether  we use a Yen 

exchange rate or  whether  we use a  dol lar  exchange rate.  

 And then the th i rd  th ing Mr Chai r  that  takes them 20 

apar t  in  te rms of  the le t  us say content ious 00:08:46 is  the  

issue of  whether  modi f icat ion pr ice should be inc luded or  

excluded.  

 So le t  us deal  wi th  them al l  in  turn Mr Chai r.   I f  we – 

i f  we t ry  and understand how we br ing the two together  in  
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s imple te rms Mr Chai r.   I f  we had to just  go back to  Mr  

Choubey’s concluding paragraphs and I  would take you to  –  

what  bundle is  th is?  BB8(b)1.   BB8(b)1.    

CHAIRPERSON:   BB8.  

MR SINGH:   Exhib i t  BB8(b)1.   I t  is  the previous f i le  Mr 

Chai r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  have four  pages before the tab le that  

you have open.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.    

MR SINGH:   So i t  is  page 20 Mr Chai r.    10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes is  that  the page that  has got  

cont ingencies? 

MR SINGH:   That  is  (speaking over  one another ) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And conclus ions yes.  

MR SINGH:   Yes Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

MR SINGH:   So Mr Chai r  the other  po int  that  I  would l ike to  

a lso h igh l ight  and we – and we need to  I  th ink appreciate 

th is  pr inc ip le  as  wel l  is  whether  you deal ing wi th  100 or  

whether  you deal ing wi th  the b igger  1064 Mr Chai r  the – 20 

you wi l l  a lways be level  wi th  the fact  that  you wi l l  f ind that  

you wi l l  –  the numbers are subject i ve – they are not  

absolute because they a lways inc lude est imat ions and they 

a lways inc lude assumpt ions and the l i ke.   So you wi l l  

a lways get  them –  the numbers to  be subject ive.  
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 As you can see Mr Chai r  i f  you look at  Mr Choubey 

in  terms of  the paragraph headed Conclus ion and he has 

two paragraphs that  deal  wi th  that  5 .33 and 5.34.    

 Now i f  you look a t  5 .33 he concludes that  739 could 

not  be just i f ied.   I f  you look at  the last  l ine Mr Chai r.   So the  

last  sentence in  the paragraph.    

“Latest  o f  739 could not  be just i f ied on the  

basis expla ined above. ”  

A l r ight  and then on the next  paragraph which is  5 .34  

Mr Chai r  he says that  in  the last  l ine there he says:  10 

“Assuming that  the ETC of  3 .71  b i l l ion is  

correct  th is  amounts to  an increase of  362 

mi l l ion that  cannot  be just i f ied. ”  

And then I  have a  number of  969.   So again Mr Chai r  

the – l ies between some of  these ranges and that  is  the  

point  I  am t ry ing  to  make is  that  whatever  we look at  we 

a lways looking at  subject i v i ty  and i t  is  not  go ing to  be an 

absolute number.    

F i rs t  –  that  is  just  a  mat te r  o f  pr inc ip le .   Now coming 

back to  t ry  to  reconci le  the two basis.   Mr Chai r  i f  you  look 20 

at  –  and again  i f  you look at  –  so in  ar r iv ing at  the 

conclus ion at  739 Mr – of  739 being in  excess that  cannot  

be just i f ied in  terms of  paragraph 5.33 Mr Cha i r.   Mr  

Choubey as I  have ref lected in  my aff idavi t  has considered 

the US Dol lar  to  be more appropr ia te to  be used rather  than 
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the Japanese Yen.    

 But  a t  5 .34 Mr Chai r  he says:  

“The submission  f rom CSR was in  Dol lars 

whereas the 100 locomot ive business case 

and the memorandum just i fy ing the  

increases used a  Yen basis.   I t  i s  important  

to  note that  –  that  there are d i f fe rences in  

economic condi t ions between Japan and the  

Uni ted States.    The analys is  on a  

Rand/Dol lar  basis  produces a rev ised ETC 10 

of  4 .47 b i l l i on. ”  

Okay which resul ts  in  a smal ler  d i f ference of  362 Mr 

Chai r.   Now what  we have to  ask ourselves Mr Cha i r  is  in  

ar r iv ing at  the –  and th is  i s  the  at tempt  to  actual ly  br ing 

these two th ings together  – the two basis.   Right .  So Mr  

Choubey says i f  we used the Yen he gets the R739 mi l l ion  

d i f ference.   I f  he uses the Dol lar  he gets a 369 d i f fe rence.  

Now in  our  case Mr Chai r  we used both Yen and 

Dol la r.   Okay.   Remember reason why we used Yen and 

Dol la r  is  because we are tak ing  a Yen quote that  we 20 

received Mi tsu i  a t  some point  in  t ime adjust ing for  economic 

factors to  a point  where we then have a Rand value then we 

have to adjust  for  the fact  that  we enter ing in to a US Dol la r  

cont ract  wi th  CSR and then move that  forward unt i l  we get  

to  a R4.4 b i l l ion number.    
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 So the reason why we in  our  memo consider  both  

Yen and Dol la r  is  because of  the fact  that  we star t  wi th  the  

Mi tsu i  quote which was a lways quoted in  Yen or  the b iggest  

por t ion thereof  was in  Yen.   And that  was in  May 2013.   

 So you have to  br ing that  number forward to  cont rac t  

00:15:22 and you do that  by adjust ing i t  us ing economic  

var iab les as we have sa id Yen economic var iab les f rom that  

date to  cont ract  date.  

 On cont ract  date  we then have a quote that  we 

received f rom CSR that  is  now in  US Dol la r.   Now we have 10 

to  factor  in  the impacts of  US Dol la r  on that  Mi tsu i  quote up  

to  del i very date.   And therefore we consider  the economic  

effects of  the US Dol la r.  

 Now – and that  is  the reason why we use both  

var iab les in  our  memo.   Mr Choubey in  arr i v ing at  h is  le t  us  

ca l l  i t  economic – the fa i r  va lue Mr Chai r  he had he used 

the Yen basis in  determin ing the  -  the ETC he wou ld have 

got ten to   R3.6  b i l l ion – R362mi l l ion debt  on h is  own 

admission which is  a  smal le r  var iance than the 969 –  or  the 

R739mi l l ion  var iance that  he has got  in  5.33 – in  paragraph 20 

5.33.  

 So Mr Chai r  that  is  an at tempt  to  – and again  when 

he gets to  th is  R362 mi l l ion var iance Mr Chai r  we again do  

not  know whether  he is  a l lowing for  modi f icat ion costs or  

not  in  the 3.62 mi l l ion that  he gets to .    
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 So Mr Chai r  in  my v iew the modi f i cat ion  costs in  our  

bu i ld-up because remember we reconci led is  a l low fo r  

because the Har r is  Report  that  we covered and t raversed 

previously requi red cer ta in  amendments to  be made to the  

CSR technica l  proposal  that  requi red the  – these 

modi f icat ions to  be conducted so  that  i t  actual ly  becomes 

in ter -operable wi th  the 19E locomot ives.   And that  is  the  

reason why the 347 is  a l lowed for  in  our  bu i ld -up to  the 

R4.4 b i l l i on.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So Mr S ingh can I  just  make sure that  10 

I  understand i t .   The Mi tsu i  base pr ice of  34 .34 per  

locomot ive.  

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   There was no in tent ion by Mi tsu i  to 

modi fy  to  the tune of  another  10%.  

MR SINGH:   You see Mr Chai r  there – the – i f  we had 

bought  19E locomot ives f rom Mi tsu i  then they would have 

been in te r-operab le wi th  19E locos.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Except  they would have had to modi fy  

them.  20 

MR SINGH:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay.   And then le t  me just  take you 

to  – to  what  Mr Choubey has to  say about  Yen/Dol lar  

exchange rate and I  th ink you have a l ready expla ined your  

– your  posi t ion but  le t  me take you to  paragraph 20 at  page 
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1791 – are you there?  Mr S ingh.  

MR SINGH:     1791.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   1791.  

MR SINGH:   Ja I  am there.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    

“ I  have considered the content  o f  

paragraphs 166 to 159 of  Mr S ingh ’s  

aff idavi t  –  i t  is  d is ingenuous for  Mr S ingh to  

chal lenge the use of  the Yen/Rand exchange 

rate consider ing that  in  100 memo which he 10 

recommended or  board approval  he 

at t r ibutes the change in  the expected pr ice  

of  the locomot ives to  the depreciat ion of  the  

Rand against  the  Yen.   Mr S ingh in  a l l  h is  

remarks he is  s i lent  on fore ign  cur rency 

appl i cable in  the 100 locomot ives  

t ransact ion between CSR and Transnet .   21  

I  quote paragraph 24a of  the 100 memo 

which notes as fo l lows:  

Fore ign  exchange rates.   The Rand has 20 

depreciated by 10 .47% against  the Japanese 

Yen th is  has impacted the expected pr ice of  

the locomot ive as  per  the business case and 

u l t imate ly  the ETC as approved by  the board  

by  approximate ly  10.74%.  Consequent ly  the 
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addi t ion 10.7 per  a.  in  tab le 1 above is  

reasonable. ”  

And then tab le 2 of  the 100 memo he says at  paragraph 2  

“ In  re la t ion to  index movements f rom May to 

March 2014 a lso makes ment ion of  a  

Rand/US Dol la r  exchange rate impact .   Mr  

S ingh’s reference to the Rand/Yen impact  in  

h is  100 memo was concern ing at  the t ime of  

my assessment  of  a  reasonable ETC for  100 

locomot ives t ransact ion because CSR 10 

referred to  Rand/Dol lar  impact  on  i ts  base 

pr ice of  28.86 mi l l ion. ”  

24.  

“ I t  is  for  these reasons that  my aff idavi t  

accounted for  a  reasonable ETC on two 

scenar ios.   A Rand/Yen scenar io  and a  

Rand/Us Dol lar  scenar io .   I  therefore  

d isagree wi th  Mr  S ingh on h is  remarks that  

my chosen currency was the Yen. ”  

 I  th ink you have addressed – po inted out  to  the  20 

Chai rperson that  he has two d i f ferent  scenar ios.   Is  that  

correct .  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  I  have pointed out  that  he has two 

d i f ferent  scenar ios and in  e i ther  –  in  e i ther  one of  the two 

he does come up wi th  two d i f ferent  var iances as  one 
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smal le r  than the other  and i f  we then have to add 

modi f icat ion costs to  a smal ler  var iance h is  var iance 

actual ly  d isappears.   

 In  terms of  Mr Choubey’s comments around the fac t  

that  the memo is  s i lent  on the US Dol la r  Mr Chai r  as I  sa id  

the memo actual l y  – i s  actual l y  qu i te  c lear  i t  says that  the 

f i rs t  par t  o f  the adjustment  re la tes to  Japanese Yen as I  

sa id because the  quote received was based on the Mi tsu i  

quote and we got  to  a point  where we were then cont ract ing  

wi th  CSR and CSR’s was in  US Dol lar  and a l l  forward 10 

looking impacts re la t ing to  CSR would have had to be based 

on US Dol lar  movements and not  Yen movements.   And Mr  

Chai r  I  can f ind that  paragraph for  you in  my memo.  I f  we 

go back to  i t .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Before you do that  I  just  want  to  – do not  

forget  your  – what  is  the point  you wanted to  make for  the  

benef i t  o f  the t ranscr ibers and those who read the t ranscr ip t  

the page 1791 that  Mr Myburgh re ferred to  is  page 1791 in 

Transnet  Bundle 5(c) .   We had just  used the other  bundle  

Mr Myburgh.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  beg your  pardon.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We had just  used the other  bundle.   I  just  

thought  we must  c la r i fy  that  so whoever reads knows we are 

now. .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes thank you DCJ.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   On another  bundle.   Ja.   Okay cont inue Mr 

S ingh.  

MR SINGH:   Okay Mr Chai r.   I  th ink in  te rms of  paragraph 

20 that  Mr Myburgh read where he says Mr S ingh is  so  

s i lent  regard ing the fo re ign exchange currency i t  is  because 

in  the 00:22:50 t ransact ion wi th  CSR I  th ink Mr Chai r  my 

response is  that  both currencies are appl i cable at  d i f ferent  

po ints  in  the t ransact ions.   The Yen por t ion  of  the exchange 

rate is  appl i cable  to  restat ing the – the Mi tsu i  quote f rom 

May 2013 unt i l  cont ract  date and then the US Dol lar  por t ion  10 

Mr Chai r  is  appl i cable f rom cont rac t  date unt i l  de l i very date  

because we are then deal ing  wi th  a US Dol la r  quote f rom – 

f rom CSR.  And remember our  ob ject i ve is  to  reconci le  f rom 

a per iod in  – that  the board approved to the actual  f ina l  

cont ract  pr ice Mr Chai r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight   And you sa id you were going  

to  point  that  out  for  us.  

MR SINGH:   Oh sorry I  am just  looking fo r  my memo.   

Where is  my memo?  At  – Mr Chai r  you have to tu rn to  page 

1797 in  the same – in  the same bundle.    20 

 So Mr Chai r  you would see that  we – we used the 

term backward looking and forward  looking.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   And in  te rms of  backward looking ind icators 

and forward looking ind icators.   Backward looking would be  
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basica l ly  f rom le t  us say cont ract  date backward and then 

forward looking would be f rom cont ract  date in to the  fu ture  

unt i l  de l ivery date or  c losure of  the cont ract .   So that  is  by 

and la rge the – the d i f fe rent ia t ion.  

 Mr Chai r  you wi l l  see that  tab le 1  that  Mr Choubey 

refers to  that  re la tes to  the 10% of  –  the 10.7% depreciat ion 

of  the Yen re lates to  – re la tes to  the sect ion of  the memo 

that  i s  looking at  backward impact  – or  backward looking  

economic impacts .   And th is  – and as I  expla ined Mr Chai r  

the f i rs t  par t  o f  the reconci l ia t ion  is  to  restate the Mi tsu i  10 

quote that  we received in  2013 to cont ract  date.   Hence i t  is  

backward looking.  

 And that  accounts fo r  the 10.7 00:25:45.   Mr Chai r  i f  

you had to then look at  the impact  o f  the Dol lar  you would  

have to  go to  1799 and 1799 Mr Chai r  you wi l l  see the  

heading there of  the – of  th is  por t ion of  the memo looks at  

forward looking economic factors .   And under forward 

looking economic  factors Mr Chai r  you wi l l  see that  tab le 3  

and tab le 4 basica l ly  g ive you what  the US Dol la r  versus the  

South Af r i can Rand had been doing in  the – I  th ink i t  is  20 

re la t ive – I  cannot  see the numbers  but  i t  is  over  a per iod of  

t ime and what  our  predict ion of  what  the exchange rate  

would be in  the del ivery per iod of  the locomot ives.    

 And Mr Chai r  the reason for  us hav ing an – having a 

look at  what  the est imat ion – est imated cur rency would be 
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is  because you would – you would recal l  that  – oh you – we 

actual ly  entered in to a 00:26:55 cont ract  so  Mi tsu i  –  CSR 

actual ly  assumed fore ign exchange r isk associated wi th  th is  

cont ract .  

 So therefore we had to have a v iew of  what  the US 

Dol la r  was going to  be doing over  the cont ract  per iod.   So 

in  our  case Mr Chai r  both the Yen and the US Dol lar  was 

re levant  in  determin ing the movement  f rom the 3.8 b i l l ion 

that  was approved by the board  or ig ina l l y  to  the 4.4  b i l l ion 

cont ract  pr ice tha t  we agreed to wi th  CSR.   10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .  Can I  turn now to f ina l l y  to  

the 1064 locomot ives.   We wi l l  come back to  Choubey so 

you can c lose tha t .  

MR SINGH:   I  can c lose i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   Th is one.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja.   You can c lose Choubey yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry we go to  what  page Mr 

Myburgh? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  would l ike  to  Chai rperson deal  wi th  20 

the in i t ia l  business case and the 1064 locomot ives.   Where I  

would l ike to  s tar t  a t  5(b)  page 422.    

MR SINGH:   422.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   Just  have a look at  the – the  

10.3 – the – your  f i rs t  regulat ion 10.6 not ice – second 10.6  
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not ice  page 422.   You see at  paragraph 1.5.1 and you were  

asked to deal  wi th  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on Mr Myburgh.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Th is i s  5 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   6(b) .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   5(b)  Mr S ingh’s bundle.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Page 422.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  just  want  to  make sure that  I… 

 CHAIRPERSON:   Yes you may cont inue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  understand what  your  – your  answer  10 

is  to  th is ,  a t  paragraph 1 .5  and then 1 .5 .1 ,  you were  asked  

to  address these  issues.   The rep resenta t ion  to  the  board  

tha t  the  bus iness case exc luded  the  po tent ia l  e f fec ts  o f  

fo rex ,  hedg ing  and esca la t ion .   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now,  i f  we go to  your  o ther  f i l e  and 

tha t  i s  5 (c) .   Cou ld  you ask  you,  p lease,  to  go  to  page 

1445?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You w i l l  see  a t  1445,  you dea l  w i th ,  20 

a t  paragraph 1 .5 .2 .   You do not  dea l  w i th  parag raph  1 .5 .1 .  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i f  I  can  the  take  you to  page 

1473?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    You now dea l  w i th ,  in  the  m idd le  o f  

the  page,  you are  now dea l ing  w i th  Chaube,  ac tua l l y.   And 

you have a  head ing :   Bus iness case inc luded hedg ing  and 

fo re ign  fo rex  costs .   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You say a t  187:  

“Chaube conc luded tha t  the  es t imate  o f  the  

above costs  were  inc luded in  the  R 38.6  b i l l i on  

and was an acceptab le  es t imate .  

I  deny tha t  th is  was an acceptab le  es t imate . . . ”  10 

 We wi l l  ge t  to  tha t  bu t  where  is  your  case on  

whethe r  o r  no t  the  in i t ia l  bus iness case,  in  fac t ,  inc luded  

fo rex  hedg ing  and esca la t ion  costs?   That ,  rea l l y,  i s  the 

s imp le  quest ion .  

MR SINGH :    I  must  apo log i se ,  Mr  Cha i r.   I ,  ac tua l l y,  

thought  tha t  we had addressed th is  mat te r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Oh,  no ,  I  may be  wrong.   I  am jus t  

t ry ing  –  I  was jus t  t ry ing  to  f ind  ou t  –  and le t  me ask you,  

c r i spy,  what  i s  your  answer  to  tha t?   And then I  w i l l  take  

you to  the  h is to ry  and we can look a t  some o ther  20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  f rom my perspect ive  fo r  –  and  

obv ious ly,  a t  the  t ime,  my v iew was tha t  the  bus iness case  

d id  inc lude the  e f fec ts  o f  fo rex  hedg ing  and esca la t ions 

and to  tha t  ex ten t ,  fo re ign  exchange in  genera l ,  Mr  Cha i r.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  bu t  you see,  tha t  i s  why  I  was a  

b i t  –  th is  te rm tha t  you quote  “bus iness case inc luded 

hedg ing  and fo rex  costs” .   The rea l  quest ion  is ,  whethe r  

you accept  tha t  i t  inc luded fo rex  hedg ing  and esca la t ion  

costs?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Do you accept  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.   To  an  ex ten t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sor ry?  

MR SINGH :    To  an  ex ten t .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  abso lu te ly.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And I  suppose tha t  i s  an  impor tan t  

po in t  tha t  you make.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Because I  do  no t  want  to  be  heard  to  

say tha t  tha t  i s  cas t  in  s tone and  cou ld  no t  change 

between the  in i t ia l  case in  ETC and the  t ime tha t  i t  came 

fo r  the  recommendat ion  o f  an  inc rease.   So tha t  cu ts  ou t  

qu i te  a  l o t  o f  what  I  needed to  dea l  w i th .   I  want  to  take  20 

you then to  the  reso lu t ion  o f  the  Board  o f  D i rec tors  on  the  

25 t h  o f  Apr i l  and the  ac tua l  bus iness case tha t  served 

before  the  board .   I  wanted –  I  am go ing  to  have to  take  

you to  Mr  Ca l la rd  and then to  Mr  Laher.   So the  bus iness  

case is  found in  Ca l la rd  a t  BB-4(b ) .    
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MR SINGH :    BB-4(b)?   [Speaker ’s  m icrophone not  

sw i tched on –  unc lea r ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    BD(s ic ) -4 (b ) .   Ja ,  one o f  the  in i t ia l  –  

one o f  the  ear ly  f i l es .    

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And cou ld  I  ask  you,  p lease,  to  tu rn  

to  page 402?  So tha t  i s  FQC-402.    

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  Mr  S ingh,  we know tha t  there  

was a  Board  o f  D i rec to rs  meet ing  he ld  on  the  25 t h  o f  Apr i l .   10 

We wi l l  come to  the  reso lu t ion .   Now,  on  the  face  o f  i t ,  th is  

says:   Bus iness case,  da te  o f  submiss ion ,  25  Apr i l  2013  

addressed to  Transnet  Board  o f  D i rec tors .   And  a t  the 

bo t tom,  you w i l l  see  i t  i s  a  115 pages.   Can I  ask  you to  go 

to  the  end o f  the  document  wh ich  you w i l l  f ind  a t  page  

FQC-516?  

MR SINGH :    516? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now,  the  pos i t ion  is  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   That  page  is  f i ve  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    516.   56 .516,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So th is  is  the  las t  page  o f  th is  

bus iness case.   P rov is ion  is  made there  fo r  a  

recommendat ion  by  Mr  Gama,  by  yourse l f  and Mr  Mole fe .   
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Can you reca l l  s i gn ing  th is  document?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.   I  do  no t  reca l l  s ign ing  th is  document .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Do you –  I  mean,  th is  seems to  be  

an impor tan t  doc.   Can you reca l l  ever  s ign ing  the  

bus iness case?  

MR SINGH :    I  wou ld  th ink  tha t  the  bus iness case wou ld  

have to  be  s igned ,  g iven the  fac t  tha t  i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    . . . tha t  i t  served befo re  the  board .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   Fa i r  enough.   So you  do not  10 

reca l l  s ign ing  i t?  

MR SINGH :    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Le t  me take  you –  and I  suppose i t  i s  

d i f f i cu l t  to  remember  every  document  tha t  one s igns bu t  le t  

me take you to  page 405,  i f  I  can?  A t  the  beg inn ing  o f  the  

bus iness case.  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  the  las t  paragraph,  the  second  

sentence:  

“Accord ing ly,  i t  is  recommended tha t  the  1064  20 

locomot ive  bus iness case be approved w i th  

es t imated to ta l  cos ts  o f  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  

R 38.6  b i l l i on  as  per  the  corpo ra te  p lan . . . ”  

 And then,  o f  course ,  as  you know,  what  has  

become content ious is  the  b racketed por t ion .  



31 MAY 2021 – DAY 406 
 

Page 161 of 217 
 

“Exc lud ing  the  po tent ia l  e f fec ts  f rom forex  

hedg ing ,  fo rex  esca la t ion  and o ther  p r ice  

esca la t ion . . . ”  

 Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now do  I  unders tand f rom the 

ev idence tha t  you have g iven a l ready,  tha t  you accepted 

tha t  i s  wrong?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  I  suppose then the  ques t ion  is .   10 

How d id  th is  –  or  le t  me jus t  leave  i t  there  and le t  me take 

you then to  the  reso lu t ion  o f  the  Board  o f  D i rec to rs .   You 

know tha t  i t  m i r ro rs  th i s?   Can I  –  perhaps you can leave  

the  bus iness case open and now go to  the  reso lu t ion  o f  the  

board ,  wh ich  you  w i l l  f ind  in  Mr  Laher ’s  exh ib i t ,  BB-4( f ) .   

BB-4( f ) ,  page 23.    

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  th is  i s  a  cer t i f ied  excerp t ,  a  d ra f t  

m inutes  o f  Spec ia l  Meet ing  o f  the  Board  o f  D i rec tors  on  the  

25 t h  o f  Apr i l  2013.   I t  i s  the  same case as  the  bus iness  20 

case we are  look ing  a t .  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And what  was reso lved tha t  the  

board  approved the  fo l low ing.    

“The bus iness case fo r  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  the  
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1064 locomot ives  fo r  a  TFR,  genera l  f re igh t  

bus iness,  a t  an  es t imated cost  o f  R 38.6  b i l l i on  

as  per  corpora te  p lans. . . ”  

 So you see tha t  i s  exact ly  the  same word ing  as  in  

the  bus iness case in  b rackets .  

“Exc lud ing  po tent ia l  e f fec ts  f rom forex  

hedg ing ,  fo re ign  esca la t ion  and  o ther  p r ice  

esca la t ions. . . ”  

 Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  I  th ink  except  fo r  the  word  “we” ,  

i t  i s  verbat im recorda l  o f  the  las t  par t  o f  the  las t  paragraph  

on page FQC-405 ,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  you a t tended th is  board  meet ing?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you accept  tha t  the  bus iness  

case was presented a t  th is  meet ing?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  how d id  th is  e r ro r  come about?  20 

MR SINGH :    I  am not  comple te ly  sure ,  Mr  Cha i r,  in  te rms 

o f  how th is  came about .   I  am,  th rough the  rev iew o f  the  – I  

th ink  i t  i s  the  Fundudz i  repor t ,  I  go t  to  learn  about  th is  and  

in  the  Fundudz i  repor t ,  Mr  Cha i r,  i t  i s  a l leged tha t  

Mr  Yusuf  Mohamed,  who was a  Genera l  Manager  in  my 
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o f f i ce ,  a f fec ted  these changes to  the  bus iness case and  

wh ich ,  obv ious ly,  then f lowed th rough the  cha in ,  i f  you  

want  to  ca l l  i t .  

 Mr  Cha i r,  the  repor t  fu r the r  goes  to  exp la in  tha t  

Mr  Yusuf  Mohamed made these changes on  verba l  

ins t ruc t ion  o f  myse l f .   Mr  Cha i r,  i f  indeed tha t  was the  

case,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  can  on ly  p resume tha t  the  fo rmula t ion  by  

Mr  Mohamed,  i f  indeed he a f fec t  these changes,  captured 

the  incor rec t  fo rmula t ion  o f  what  the  in ten t ion  was  re la t ing  

to  the  –  le t  us  ca l l  i t  the  qua l i f i ca t ion  to  the  R 38.6  b i l l i on .  10 

 Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  have a l ready h igh l igh ted .   For  a l l  

in tense and purposes,  i f  you  had  to  rev iew the  bus iness  

case,  you look a t  the  assumpt ions o f  the  bus iness case 

and you look a t  o ther  content  w i th in  the  bus iness case.   Mr  

Cha i r,  i t  i s  very  b la tan t ly  c lear  tha t  the  bus iness case  

inc ludes esca la t ions or  a  has a  prov is ion  fo r  esca la t ions 

and has a  prov is ions fo r  hedg ing  and has a  prov is ion  fo r  

fo re ign  exchange  impacts .  

 So fo r  me to  b la tan t ly  say  tha t  i t  exc ludes i t ,  wou ld  

be  –  i t  wou ld  make no sense,  Mr  Cha i r.   The fo rmula t ion  20 

tha t  Mr  Yusuf  Mohamed shou ld  have cons ide red was tha t  

the  bus iness case inc luded these or  exc luded the  e f fec ts  o f  

these var iab les  post  approva l  o f  the  bus iness case wh ich  

mean tha t  the  R 38.6  b i l l i on  tha t  was approved wou ld  

change due to  i ts  economic  var iab les  post  the  bus iness 
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case.  

 And Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  have regard  fo r  fo re ign  

exchange i t se l f .   I  th ink  i t  i s  page 8  or  page 9  o f  the 

bus iness case,  tha t  says tha t  the  bus iness case  or  tha t  

says tha t  the  fo re ign  exchange has a l ready deprec ia ted  or  

tha t  the  USA Dol la r  has deprec ia ted  aga ins t  the  Rand by  

15% in  a  year  s ince  the  RFP’s  were  issued.   So,  bas ica l l y,  

the  bus iness case on the  day tha t  i t  s ta r ted  to  be  p repared 

was a l ready out  o f  da te  in  te rms o f  the  R 38.6  b i l l i on .  

 And as  you wou ld  see,  h is to ry  has proven tha t  the  10 

R 38.6  b i l l i on  wou ld  have changed and has changed fo r  

economic  var iab les  s ince  the  da te  i t  was approved to  the 

t ime tha t  i t  was  cont rac ted  and  to  the  t ime tha t  ac tua l  

de l i very  has occur red .  

 The quantum thereof ,  Mr  Cha i r,  we can debate  

whethe r  i t  i s  38 ,  45 ,  55  or  105 but  the  fac t  remains  is  tha t  

the  economic  var iab les  to  bus iness case and the  

fo rmula t ion  o f  th is  qua l i f i ca t ion ,  Mr  Cha i r,  shou ld  have 

captured tha t  aspect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You sa id  –  I  do  no t  want  us  to  ge t  20 

confused about  what  happened a  year  la te r,  by when you  

recommended increase.   I  can  unders tand ent i re ly  how 

th ings have changed but  I  suppose i t  i s  impor tan t  fo r  the  

Commiss ion  to  unders tand.   What  was th is  suppose to  say  

and how d id  we get  i t  so  wrong?  
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MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r  . . . [ in tervenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So perhaps you cou ld  he lp  us  w i th  

the  fo rmula t ion?  

MR SINGH :    Look,  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    What  shou ld  i t  have sa id?  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  le t  us  unders tand why i t  i s  there  in  the  

f i rs t  p lace .   Okay?  The reason why i t  i s  there  in  t he  f i rs t  

p lace  is  exact ly  to  p revent  the  issues tha t  we have seen on 

pro jec ts  l i ke  NNP,  more  c lose ly,  re la ted  to  Transnet .    

 Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  look a t  a l l  p ro jec ts  i n  Transnet ,  10 

there  is  a  var iance to  the  es t imated to ta l  cos ts  f rom 

bus iness case date  r igh t  th rough  to  comple t ion  da te  and  

those changes occur  because o f  es t imated r i sks  and  

changes in  economic  var iab les .   The de legat ion  o f  

au thor i t y,  Mr  Cha i r,  a l lows fo r  th is  to  happen.   The  

s ign i f i cance and rea l i t y (? )  f ramework  tha t  we have  on the  

shareho lder  recogn ises tha t  th is  happens and what  you t r y  

and do i s  you t ry,  one,  ensure  tha t  the  var ious amount  i s  

neg l ig ib le  o r  no t  s ign i f i can t .    

 Or,  two,  you t ry  and ensure  tha t  you ident i f y  the  20 

var iab les  tha t  may have a  s ign i f i can t  impact  on  those –  on  

tha t  amount  on  the  day tha t  you are  en te r ing  i n to  the  

cont rac t  o r  the  day on  wh ich  the  bus iness case i s  

approved,  so  tha t  peop le  or  users  unders tand tha t  th is  

number  has the  propens i ty  to  change over  a  pe r iod  o f  t ime 
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depend ing  on these var iab les .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  Mr  S ingh,  I  unders tand a l l  o f  that  

bu t  you are  no t  answer ing  my quest ion .   I  rea l l y  need you 

to  te l l  us ,  how shou ld  i t  have been fo rmula ted?  So there  

you have i t .   I t  says  in  b rackets :  

“ . . .exc lud ing  po tent ia l  e f fec ts  f rom forex  

hedg ing ,  fo rex  esca la t ion  and o ther  p r ice  

esca la t ions. . ”    

 Now we know tha t  i s  wrong.   What  shou ld  i t  have  

sa id?  10 

MR SINGH :    “Exc lud ing  the  po tent ia l  e f fec ts  o f  fo rex  

hedg ing ,  fo rex  esca la t ion  and o the r  p r ice  esca la t ions post  

bus iness case approva l . ”  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   D id  you say post?  

MR SINGH :    I  wou ld  add  the  words “post  bus iness case  

approva l ” .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  in  o ther  words,  i f  th ings 

changed?  

MR SINGH :    I f  th ings changed pos t . . .   For  these fac tors .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I f  they  change  20 

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So ,  in  o ther  words,  what  you are  say ing  

is  tha t  as  fa r  as  a t  the  t ime o f  the  prepara t ion  o f  the  

bus iness case,  i f  one looked a t  what  the  bus iness case as  
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a t  tha t  s tage,  say  one cou ld  leave out  a l l  these words in  

b rackets ,  as  long as  the  board  wou ld  unders tand tha t  

anyth ing  tha t  wou ld  come a f te r  approva l  o f  the  bus iness  

case had not  been take in to  account .   Otherwise ,  a l l  o f  

these fac to rs  have been taken in to  account  up  to  t he  da te  

when the  bus iness case memorandum was p repared.  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  when you say taken in to  

account ,  we have to  qua l i f y  tha t  as  we l l  because i t  i s  a  

v iew tha t  was taken a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    So  i f  tha t  v iew,  subsequent ly,  changed due to  

rea l i t y  then tha t  wou ld  have resu l ted  in  the  change in  a  

number.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  what  I  am say ing  is .   As  I  

unders tand you.   What  you a re  say ing  i s .   I f  the  

memorandum set t ing  ou t  the  bus iness case were  to  be  

g iven to  the  pe rson to  make a  dec is ion  w i th in  a  m inute  

a f te r  the  memorandum had been  comple ted ,  then there  20 

wou ld  be  no need to  pu t  these words in  the  brackets ,  that  

a re  in  the  bracke ts  because up to  tha t  po in t ,  a l l  o f  those  

fac tors  wou ld  have been inc luded.    So a l l  tha t  had been –  

had not  been inc luded is  what  wou ld  happen a f te r  

approva l .    
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MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    O f  course ,  the  language cou ld  have  

been d i f fe ren t .   You cou ld  have sa id  i t  inc luded i t  and then 

qua l i f ied  i t .  

MR SINGH :    We cou ld  have sa id  inc lud ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    . . . the  v i r tua l  e f fec ts  o f  fo rex  hedg ing  post  and  

then we cou ld  say there  wou ld  have – there  is  a  poss ib i l i t y  

o f  these th ings . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  cou ld  I  –  maybe I  cou ld  ask  you  

because I  th ink  i t  m igh t  be  on  wh ich  s ide  o f  the  co in  we  

are  because I  th ink  Mr  Gama has saw i t  in  a  same but  

perhaps a  d i f fe ren t  way.   Can I  ask  you to  go  to  Transnet  

Bund le  7 ,  Mr  Gama’s  bund le?  

CHAIRPERSON :    And maybe wh i le  you are  go ing  to  tha t  

bund le  and tha t  page,  Mr  S ingh,  another  way tha t  wou ld  

have been cor rec t ,  i f  one use “ inc ludes” ,  i t  wou ld  be  to  say  

inc lud ing  and say  every th ing  tha t  is  sa id  the re  and say up  

to  the  da te  o f  the  bus iness case memo.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    But  Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  the  po in t  tha t  we are  

m iss ing  he re  is  tha t  the  bus iness case inc luded those  

th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MR SINGH :    R igh t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    By  ac tua l l y  say ing  i t  inc ludes these th ings up  

to  bus iness case date ,  we a re  ac tua l l y  s ta t ing  the  

obv ious ly  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    . . .because they a l ready inc luded i t  there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    The purpose o f  ac tua l l y  inc lud ing  tha t  

sentence was to  –  was not  to  say these th ings are  10 

exc luded.   The purpose o f  tha t  sentence was to  say:   Guys,  

the  bus iness case inc ludes a l l  o f  these th ings up  to  th is  

da te  bu t  jus t  unders tand tha t  these fac tors  a re  sub jec t  –  

these fac tors  a re  economic  fac tors  and they are  sub jec t  to  

change.   Bus iness case approva l  da te ,  th is  R 38.6  b i l l i on  

w i l l  change in  a l l  o f  these fac tors .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  I . . .   Sor ry.   Sor ry,  I  d id  no t  mean  

to  in te r rup t  you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  cannot  –  I  d id  no t  hear  you .   Car ry  20 

on .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  comple te  your  po in t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    So my –  so  the  inc lus ion  o f  th is  was ac tua l l y  

a  fo rewarn ing  to  the  users  to  say:   L is ten ,  the  
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R  38 .6  b i l l i on  i s  t he  best  es t imate  a t  th is  po in t  in  t ime but  

exc lud ing  the  e f f ec ts  o f  these th ings tha t  po ten t ia l l y  cou ld  

change post  your  approva l .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  Mr  S ingh,  I  th ink  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  was the  in ten t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . tha t  was the  in ten t ion .  

MR SINGH :    I  th ink  you accept  tha t  i t  wou ld  have been 

more  accura te  to  tha t  i t  inc ludes them and then qua l i f y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    To  make sure  the re  was no doubt .  

MR SINGH :    Okay,  Mr  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR SINGH :    I  guess so .   But  as  I  sa id ,  o r ig ina l l y  i t  i s  an  

inco r rec t  fo rmula t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    . . . f rom the  get -go .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So le t  us  jus t  have a  look a t  what  

Mr  Gama sa id .   I t  m igh t  be  tha t  you are  say ing  the  same 

th ing  bu t  jus t  in  a  s l igh t ly  d i f fe ren t  way.   He has a  who le  

lo t  o f  pages a f te r  page 250.   So you can t ry  and f ind  the  20 

page 250.171,  Transnet  Bund le  7?  

MR SINGH :    250 .171?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  con t inue,  Mr  Myburgh.   I  th ink  I  

fo l low one page . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cer ta in ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  h ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  Mr  S ingh,  what  you see .   Page 

251 and 71,  i t  i s  qu i te  a  long paragraph.   I f  I  can  ask  you 

to  go  and 1 ,2 ,3 ,4 ,5 ,6 ,7 ,8  l ines  f rom the  bot tom o f  tha t  

parag raph?  

MR SINGH :    From the  bot tom? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja .   So you  w i l l  see  some i ta l i c  tex t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . you  w i l l  recogn ise  them.   Perhaps 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh,  I  am sor ry.   I  wonder  

whethe r  you cou ld  move your  m ic  a  l i t t le . . .   Ja .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    We cannot  hear,  Cha i rperson.   

Thank you ve ry  much.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    We are  s t ra in ing  to  hear.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Sor ry,  sor ry.   Yes?  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  the  capt ion  wh ich  reads,  Mr  

S ingh:  

“ETC for  the  acqu is i t ion  i s  es t imated 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    On what  page?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    A t  page 250 .171.  

CHAIRPERSON :    250.171. . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  i t  quotes  the  we l l -known por t ion ,  

a l r igh t?   He says i t  i s  ambiguous.   He says:  

“ I  have dea l t  w i th  the  u l t imate  increase in  the 

cont rac t  va lue  he re in  above and have made my 

pos i t ion  very  c lear  wh ich  is  tha t  the  cost  

components  were  in  fac t  inc luded. . . ”  

 And then he says :  

“A lbe i t  a t  es t imate  and assumed va lues wh ich  10 

proved inaccura te  and were  thus  

underest imated. . . ”  

 Does tha t  captu re  the  same th ing  tha t  you say?  

MR SINGH :    ?As i t  re la tes  to  the  issue o f  components  

were ,  in  fac t ,  a lbe i t  the  es t imated and assumed va lues 

wh ich  p roved inaccura te  and were  thus underest imated. ”  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  then tha t  acco rds what  you are  

say ing?  

MR SINGH :    Yes bu t  no t  in  te rms o f  the  fac t  tha t  the 

s ta tement  i s  ambiguous.   I  th ink  the  –  a t  the  ou ts ide ,  20 

Mr  Cha i r,  I  have  sa id  tha t  the  s ta tement  i s  an  incor rec t  

fo rmula t ion .   The  in ten t ion  beh ind  the  fo rmula t ion  o f  tha t  

qua l i f i ca t ion ,  i f  you  are  go ing  to  ca l l  i t ,  have the  in ten t ion  

to  s ta te  tha t  these issues –  these fac to rs  a re  very  sens i t i ve  

fac tors  to  the  bus iness case and you are  approv ing  the  
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R  38 .6  b i l l i on  on  the  bas is  tha t  these are  very  sens i t i ve  

fac tors .  The change in  these fac tors  cou ld  s ign i f i can t ly  

a f fec t  the  R 38.6  b i l l i on .   And the  words . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   And fo r  what?  

MR SINGH :    . . . i s  go ing  fo r (? ) .   And the  words,  in  my v iew,  

post  bus iness case approva l  shou ld  have been added to  

tha t  sentence to  remove ambigu i ty  and po r t ray  the  cor rec t  

in te rpre ta t ion  o f  what  I  was t ry ing  to  fo rmula te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then you were  a t  the  meet ing .   Why  10 

d id  you not  p i ck  th is  up?  

MR SINGH :    H ’m . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  mean,  i t  seems,  however  you put  i t ,  

i t  i s  a  ser ious er ror.  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  in  te rms o f  my  

unders tand ing  and what  I  was t ry ing  to  convey,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  

th ink  the  board  unders tood what  was meant  by  tha t  

because when I  went  to  the  board  aga in  in  May or  when  

Mr  Mole fe  and I  had gone back to  the  board  in  May,  i t  was 

unders tood tha t  these fac tors  cont r ibu ted  to  the  increase in  20 

the  bus iness case f rom 38 to  54 .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  I  am not  sure  –  I  now have jus t  

asked you –  I  mean,  you are  –  th is  i s  a  very  impor tan t  

dec is ion  tha t  the  board  takes and the  fo rmula t ion  is  

impor tan t .   Th i s  bus iness case is  the  product  o f  years  o f  



31 MAY 2021 – DAY 406 
 

Page 174 of 217 
 

work ,  rea l l y.   There  shou ld  have  been no doubt .   There  

shou ld  be  no amb igu i ty.    

MR SINGH :    We l l ,  as  I  sa id ,  Mr  Cha i r.   In  my mind the re  

was no ambigu i ty  in  te rms o f  what  was be ing  conveyed. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  do  no t  know whethe r  you in tend  

to ,  Mr  Myburgh,  bu t  I  do  no t  seem to  remember  tha t  when  

Mr  Mole fe  gave ev idence he gave the  same unders tand ing .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Mole fe ,  i t  was c lea r,  i t  is  s imp le  

to  h im tha t  these costs  were  s imp ly  inc luded.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And I  read Mr  Gama’s  ev idence.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  want  to  take  you to  –  you  

ment ioned the  Fundudz i  Repor t  and re ference to . . .   Can we 

go to  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  tha t  i s  in  Transnet  Bund le  6 .   I  do 

no t  th ink  we have  re fer red  to  i t  ye t  today.   I t  i s  the  one w i th  

a l l  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . repor ts  in .    

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  Mr  Myburgh.   What  page are  you?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  want  to  take  you to  Fundudz i ,  the  

f i rs t  Fundudz i  repor t  on  tha t  1064 locomot ives .   A t  page  

177,  p lease.    
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  have got  i t .  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  you have re fer red  to  Mr  Yusuf  

Mohamed.   A t  177,  r igh t  a t  the  foo t  o f  the  page,  paragraph 

5 .9 .9 .5 :  

“We fu r ther  de termined tha t  the  changes to  the  

bus iness case  were  a f fec ted  by  Yusuf  

Mohamed who t racked the  changes  he made to  

the  bus iness case.  

We dete rmined tha t  Mr  Mohamed de le ted  the  10 

words “bor rowing costs”  and inser ted  the  

words “ the  po tent ia l  e f fec ts  f rom forex  

hedg ing ,  fo rex  esca la t ion  and o ther  p r ice  

esca la t ions a f te r  the  ETC o f  R 38.6  b i l l i on” .  

Be low are  the  changes a f fec ted  by 

Mr  Mohamed. . . ”  

 Then we have them.   The next  subparagraph:  

“We fu r ther  de termined tha t  the  in i t ia l  

bus iness case ind ica ted  tha t  the  ETC was  

R 38.6  b i l l i on  exc lud ing  bor rowing costs .  20 

The de le t ion  o f  the  capt ion  “exc lud ing  

bor rowing costs”  i s  a  c lear  i nd i ca t ion  tha t  the  

ETC o f  R 38.6  b i l l i on  was amended to  c rea te  

an  impress ion  tha t  the  ETC exc luded the  

po tent ia l  e f fec ts  f rom forex  hedg ing ,  fo rex  
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esca la t ion  and o ther  p r ice  esca la t ions.  

Dur ing  ou r  consu l ta t ion  w i th  Mr  Mohamed 

admi t ted  tha t  he  changed the  bus iness case  

f igures  to  ind i ca te  tha t  the  amount  o f  

R 38.6  b i l l i on  exc luded the  po tent ia l  e f fec ts  o f  

po ten t ia l  e f fec ts  f rom forex  hedg ing ,  fo rex  

esca la t ion  and o ther  p r ice  esca la t ions.  

Mohamed fu r ther  ind ica ted  tha t  p r io r  to  h im 

chang ing  the  bus iness case f igures ,  the  

bus iness case ind ica ted  tha t  R 38 .6  b i l l i on  was  10 

inc lus ive  o f  po ten t ia l  e f fec ts  on  fo rex  hedg ing ,  

fo rex  esca la t ion  and o the r  p r ice  esca la t ions  

exc luded bor rowing costs .  

Mr  Mohamed ind ica ted  tha t  S ingh verba l l y  

ins t ruc ted  h im to  chance the  bus iness case to  

re f lec t  tha t  the  38 .6  b i l l i on  d id  no t  inc lude 

potent ia l  e f fec ts  f rom Forex hedg ing ,  fo rex  

esca la t ion  and o ther  p r ice  esca la t ion . ”  

Any comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  have a l ready ind ica ted  tha t  th is  20 

is  where  I  ac tua l l y  p icked th is  up  f rom and,  Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  

a l ready ind ica ted  tha t  th is  i s  the  f i rs t  –  when I  read th is ,  

th is  i s  the  f i rs t  t ime tha t  I  ac tua l l y  unders tood tha t  th is  was  

an issue and I  unders tood tha t  Mr  Mohamed had e f fec ted  

the  changes as  desc r ibed in  the  repor t  and,  as  I  sa id ,  
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o r ig ina l l y,  in  my v iew Mr  Mohamed actua l l y  incor rec t l y  

fo rmula ted  the  sentence.   Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  look  a t  the  

parag raph tha t  was or ig ina l l y  inc luded – ac tua l l y,  Mr  Cha i r,  

i f  you  look a t  paragraph 599.8  on  page 178 i t  s ta r t s  o f f  by  

say ing :  

“The r i sks  tha t  a re  inherent  in  a  p rocurement  event  

o f  th is  na ture  have been ident i f ied  and mi t iga t ing  

s t ra teg ies  are  in  p lace . ”  

So,  Mr  Cha i r,  th is  aga in  accords to  the  fac t  tha t  the  

changes tha t  were  proposed was to  h igh l igh t  the  fac t  tha t  10 

these issues tha t  we are  h igh l igh t ing  are  very  sens i t i ve  

and cou ld  mater ia l l y  change the  bus iness ba r r ing  the  fac t  

tha t  we d id  no t  inc lude the  words post -bus iness case 

approva l .   That  was the  in ten t ion .   That  was the  on ly  

in ten t ion .  

 Mr  Cha i r,  i f  we had to  have the  –  i f  we had to  

be l ieve  the  fo rmula t ion  as  i t  was,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  board  

wou ld  have cer ta in ly  quest ioned  how are  we ac tua l l y  

buy ing  locomot ives  wh ich  everyone be l ieves tha t  we were  

go ing  to  buy  them f rom –  there  were  no  loca l  20 

manufac ture rs  o f  locomot ives ,  how wou ld  i t  be  tha t  a  

bus iness case be prepared w i thout  the  e f fec t  o f  fo re ign  

exchange because i t  i s  common cause tha t  everyone 

unders tands tha t  i t  i s  coming in  US do l la rs ,  because there  

is  no  loca l  manufac tu rers  o f  locomot ives .   Every  s ing le  
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po ten t ia l  OEM was go ing  to  be  an  overseas supp l ie r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t ,  le t  me then move to  another  

top ic  and tha t  i s  the  increase in  the  ETC but  le t  us  go  

th rough the  –  how i t  came about  be fore  we get  in to  the  

increase i t se l f .   I f  I  can  ask  you p lease –  have you s t i l l  got  

Mr  Ca l la rd ’ s  bund le  there?  BB4(b) .  

MR SINGH:    Jus t  g ive  me a  m inute  to  do  some 

housekeep ing  here?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cha i rperson,  I  do  no t  know i f  i t  i s  

your  in ten t ion  to  take  a  shor t  even ing  break?  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe we shou ld  take  i t  a t  e igh t  o r  

immedia te ly.  

MR SINGH:    E igh t  i s  f ine .   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  le t  us  take  i t  a t  e igh t ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t ,  so  BB4(b ) ,  Ca l la rd ’s  second 

f i le  and i f  I  cou ld  ask  you to  go  to  page FQC714.  

MR SINGH:    714? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    714,  FQC.  

MR SINGH:    So th is  i s  to  the  board  –  to  the  BADC f rom Mr  

Mole fe  and pe rhaps we can jus t  conf i rm the  da te ,  Mr  20 

S ingh?  I f  you  go to  the  end o f  the  document  a t  731 you  

w i l l  see  tha t ,  as  I  have i t ,  Mr  Gama s igned on the  21 s t ,  you  

s igned on the  22n d  and Mr  Mole fe  s igned on 23 r d .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now th is  memo tha t  we have  here  is  
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to  the  BADC.   Cou ld  I  jus t  ask  you to  conf i rm tha t  on  the  

same day you made same recommendat ion  to  the  board  o f  

d i rec tors .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  memo,  fo r  what  i t  i s  wor th ,  i s  in  

Mr  Choubey ’s  papers  bu t  the  two  –  you wou ld  accept  the 

two memos are  exact ly  the  same? 

MR SINGH:    For  a l l  in ten ts  and pu rposes …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Save fo r  the  word ing  o f  the  

recommendat ion .  10 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    R igh t .   We know tha t  Mr  Laher 

ass is ted  you in  the  fo rmula t ion  or  the  dra f t ing  rea l l y  o f  th is  

memorandum.   I  th ink  we have gone th rough tha t  be fore ,  i s  

tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And jus t  to  t rack  the  chrono logy and  

tha t  i s  tha t  on  the  26  May you and Mr  Mole fe  then  a t tend 

the  BADC meet ing  where  the  increase is  approved and 

then on the  28  May you and Mo le fe  a t tend the  board  o f  20 

d i rec tors  meet ing  where  the  inc rease i s  approved,  does 

tha t  accord  w i th  your  reco l lec t ion?  

MR SINGH:    BADC wou ld  recommend,  S i r,  no t  approve.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   So BADC wou ld  recommend 

to  the  board .  
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MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   So we have th is  memo then  

we have a  memo to  the  board  o f  d i rec tors ,  we have the  

BADC meet ing  on  the  26  May,  we have got  the  board  o f  

d i rec tors  meet ing  on  the  28  May.   Fundudz i  says tha t  Mr  

Gama was not  p resent  a t  the  BADC meet ing  and nor  was 

he present  a t  the  board  o f  d i rec to r  meet ing .   Have you got  

any reason to  d ispute  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    I  do  no t  have any reco l lec t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.  10 

MR SINGH:    Bu t  I  guess the  m inutes  o f  those meet ings 

w i l l  re f lec t  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja .   Now what  I  jus t  want  to  take  you  

to  connected what  we had d iscussed jus t  now is  to  page 

715,  paragraph 14,  says:  

“The acqu is i t ion  o f  the  1064 locomot ives  was  

approved by  the  board  o f  d i rec tors  in  Apr i l  2013. ”  

So jus t  inc identa l l y ,  we a re  now a  year  fo rward ,  cor rec t?   

So we had the  or ig ina l  bus iness case.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And the  or ig ina l  ETC.   That  was in  

Apr i l  2013 and we are  now in  the  next  yea r ,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A t  a  cost  o f  38 .6  b i l l i on  and then i t  

says :  
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“Th is  exc luded the  fo l low ing costs .   The costs  o f  

hedg ing ,  fo r  fo re ign  exchange movement ,  the  costs  

o f  fu tu re  in f la t ionary  esca la t ion . ”  

So I  take  i t  you  wou ld  accept  tha t  inso far  as  the  bus iness  

case fo rmula t ion  and the  reso lu t ion  o f  the  board  o f  

d i rec tors  in  Apr i l  2013 was inco r rec t ,  th is  too  is  incor rec t .  

MR SINGH:    We l l ,  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  we do say i t  tha t  the  

cost  o f  changes in  economic  cond i t ions ,  fo rex  and in f la t ion  

be tween approva l  o f  the  bus iness  case and award  o f  the 

cont rac ts ,  tha t  i s  e f fec t i ve l y  what  I  t r ied  to  capture  in  the  10 

essence o f  the  incor rec t ly  fo rmula ted  qua l i f i ca t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   But  what  i s  wrong is  tha t  th is  

exc luded the  fo l low ing costs .   Go to :  

“ (b )   The costs  o f  hedg ing .  

(c )   The cost  o f  fu tu re  in f la t ionary  esca la t ions. ”  

That  i s  wrong.  

MR SINGH:    To  the  ex ten t  tha t  they were  under-prov ided  

fo r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  you accept  tha t  tha t  i s  wrong? 

MR SINGH:    Okay,  yes ,  to  the  ex ten t ,  as  I  sa id ,  tha t  were  

under -prov ided fo r  in  the  bus iness case.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Now I  want  to  dea l  w i th  

someth ing  we have exp lored br ie f l y  bu t  I  want  to  dea l  w i th  
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i t  in  a  b i t  more  de ta i l  and tha t  i s  the  ro le  o f  Reg iments  in  

re la t ion  to  th is  recommended inc rease in  the  ETC.   So 

what  we have seen is  t ha t  –  I  th ink  i t  i s  on  the  4  or  the  5  

February  2014,  McK insey w i thdrew as your  t ransact ion  

adv isers ,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry ,  g ive  me tha t  da te  aga in?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    5  February  2014.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And tha t  was dur ing  the  f ina l  s tages  

o f  the  1064 procurement ,  cor rec t?  10 

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then,  I  th ink  we have gone  

th rough th i s ,  accord ing  to  Dr  F ine ,  Reg iments  then s tepped 

in  and we know tha t  on  the  17  March the  locomot ive  supp ly  

agreements  were  conc luded,  co r rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you have accepted tha t  

Reg iments  ass is ted  you in  fo rmula t ing  the  i nc rease in  the  

ETC.  

MR SINGH:    Reg iments  ass i s ted  Transnet  in  assess ing  the  20 

economic  impacts  re la t i ve  to  the  submiss ions f rom the  

OEMs.   The economic  impacts  were  a l so  ver i f ied  by  

Transnet  i t se l f  and to  the  ex ten t  tha t  i t  was  fo re ign  

exchange and esca la t ions.   Transnet  t reasury  depar tment  

was invo lved,  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  i t  needed inputs  f rom the 
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Transnet  eng ineers ,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  Transnet  eng ineers  were  

invo l ved and,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  reason fo r  th is  i s  tha t  i f  you 

look a t  the  esca la t ion  fo rmulas  re la t ing  to  locomot ives ,  

they are  no t  exac t ly  a  s imp le  one p lus  one is  equa l  to  two,  

i t  i s  ac tua l l y  qu i te  a  s ign i f i can t ,  f rom what  I  reca l l ,  i t  i s  

ac tua l l y  qu i te  a  s ign i f i can t ly  compl ica ted  process tha t  the 

eng ineers  wou ld  f i rs t  have to  agree tha t  the  fo rmulas  are  

re levant  and app l i cab le  because remember,  the  fo rmulas ,  

the  esca la t ion  fo rmulas  wou ld  be  p roposed by  the  OEMs.    

 The OEMs proposed the  fo rmulas  because they  10 

need to  be  sure  tha t  the  pr ice  e f fec ts  tha t  impact  the  pr ice  

o f  the  locomot ives  go ing  fo rward  wou ld  be  taken in to  

account ,  so  they wou ld  pay pa r t i cu la r  a t ten t ion  to  the  

esca la t ion  fo rmulas  to  ensure  tha t  the i r,  how can  I  say,  

the i r  r igh ts  a re  taken ca re  o f .  

 Once tha t  i s  then proposed by  the  OEMs,  tha t  has 

then to  be  rece ived by  Transnet .   Now Transnet  needs to  

make sense o f  tha t .    Now the  on ly  peop le  tha t  can ac tua l l y  

make sense o f  tha t  i s  aga in  the  eng ineer ing  coun terpa r ts  

on  the  Transnet  s ide .  20 

 Transnet  eng ineers  wou ld  have to  make sense o f  

these fo rmulas  tha t  we rece ived f rom the  OEMs.   Once the 

Transnet  eng ineers  have made sense o f  the  fo rmulas  and i f  

they  are  happy  w i th  the  fo rmulas ,  they wou ld  then 

in te r rogate  the  inputs  in to  the  formulas  and th is  cou ld  be  
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copper,  labour,  s tee l ,  I  do  no t  know,  the re  i s  a  who le  host  

o f  these th ings,  Mr  Cha i r.  

 They wou ld  e l i c i t  he lp  f rom Transnet  t reasury  to  

unders tand what  i s  the  ou t look fo r  these fac tors  ove r  a  

per iod  o f  t ime depend ing  on the  de l i very  schedu le ,  i t  cou ld  

be  th ree  years ,  f ive  years ,  seven years ,  depend ing  on the 

de l i very  schedu le .   In  the  1064 case I  th ink  i t  ended up to  

be  th ree  years  on  average and once tha t  i s  then rev iewed 

they wou ld  then bas ica l l y  e i ther  accept  o r  re jec t  tha t  so  i t  

was a  bas i s  fo r  negot ia t ion ,  Mr  Cha i r.  10 

 Reg iments ’ ro le  was to  then a l so  rece ive  the  same 

and I  unders tand  aga in ,  whether  tha t  made sense  or,  fo r  

bo th  the  esca la t ion  e lements  as  we l l  as  the  fo rex  e lements ,  

bo th  re t rospect ive  as  we l l  as  prospect ive ,  okay,  because i t  

has  used the  same words backward  look ing  and fo rward  

look ing ,  as  we de f ined them p rev ious ly.  

 So,  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  how I  unders tood the  process 

to  ac tua l l y  hav ing  taken p lace  dur ing  the  post - tender  

negot ia t ions .    

And,  Mr  Cha i r,  we have a t tached in  one o f  our  20 

a f f idav i t s  and maybe a t  the  break we can f ind  i t ,  a  no te  

tha t  was a t tached to  Mr  Laher ’s  a f f idav i t  re la t ing  to  a  no te  

tha t  was s igned o f f  by  Mr  Dan ie  Smi t  who i s  a  t reasury  

o f f i c ia l  tha t  bas i ca l l y  sa id  l i s ten ,  the  fo re ign  exchange 

ra tes  as  we l l  as  the  esca la t ions were  rev iewed by  t reasury  
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as  we l l  as  Reg iments  and the re fore  they a re  comfor tab le  to  

accept  the  va lue  tha t  they accepted and th is  was a  

handwr i t ten  no te  tha t  was s igned o f f  by  Mr  Smi t  a t  the  

t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cha i rperson,  I  see i t  i s  e igh t  o ’c lock .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  take  a  ten  m inutes  

ad journment .   We ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  con t inue.    10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry,  s t i ck ing  w i th  Reg iments ’ ro le  

and now mov ing  to  the  memorandum i t se l f  a t  FQC714,  may  

I  take  you p lease  to  parag raph 5?  I t  says  tha t :   

“Regiments Capi tal ,  using an internat ional  

expert ,  benchmarked the capi tal  acquisi t ion 

costs of  the locomot ives at  the best  and f inal  

offer stage of  th is  t ransact ion and the resul ts 

indicated that  the pr ice being offered by the 

bidders is reasonable.”  

Would  you jus t  exp la in  exact ly  what  Reg iments  d id  and 20 

what  in te rna t iona l  exper t  they used?  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry  Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  reca l l  tha t  there  was 

some sor t  o f  benchmark ing  tha t  was done,  I  do  no t  rea l l y  

reca l l  o f fhand exact ly  the  de ta i l  re la t ing  there to .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And what  was benchmarked?  
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MR SINGH:    The  locomot ive  p r ices  a t  the  best ,  as  we say  

a t  the  best  and f ina l  o f fe r  s tage.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  and benchmarked  aga ins t  

what?  

MR SINGH:    I n te rna t iona l  locomot ive  t ransact ions tha t  

wou ld  have been conc luded fo r  s im i la r  locomot ives .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And the i r  conc lus ion  was tha t  the  

pr ice  be ing  o f fe red  by  the  b idders  was reasonab le ,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wou ld  there  have been a  document  tha t  

showed what  the  pr i ces  or  s im i la r  locomot ives  were  

in te rnat iona l l y?  

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  i f  I  reca l l  there  was 

some sor t  o f  recommendat ion  tha t  was made ava i l ab le  to  

us  a t  the  t ime,  bu t  I  do  no t  reca l l  o f fhand,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and do you reca l l  who wou ld  have  

been respons ib le  fo r  compar ing  the  pr ices  in te rnat iona l ly?  

MR SINGH:    A t  Reg iments  themse lves?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

MR SINGH:    E i ther  Mr  Wood or  Mr  P i l lay,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Jus t  go ing  back to  tha t ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  

someth ing  tha t  I  have asked you,  bu t  as  I  unders tand i t  the 

peop le  tha t  worked on th is  ass ignment ,  the  peop le  tha t  
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worked and Rand  ca lcu la t ions and a l i ke ,  those,  tha t  d id  no t  

inc lude Wood and  P i l lay.  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  I  cou ld  no t  hear  you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wood and  P i l lay  were  no t  on  the  

scene adv is ing  you on a  day to  day bas is .  

MR SINGH:    No,  no t  tha t  I  reca l l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    To  what  ex ten t ,  and I  m ight  have  

asked you th is  a l ready,  you must  fo rg ive  me i f  I  have,  to  

what  ex ten t  d id  you dea l  w i th  Mr  Wood and Mr  P i l lay  in  the  

contex t  o f  the  post  tender  negot ia t ions?  10 

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  i f  memory  se rves they had dep loyed I  

th ink  two or  th ree  ind iv idua ls  tha t  worked together  w i th  

Mr  Smi th  and Mr  Laher.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    On a  le t  us  ca l l  i t ,  ma in ly  on  a  da i l y  bas i s ,  i f  

tha t .   My in te rac t ions w i th  e i ther  Mr  P i l lay  or  Mr  Wood on  

these mat te rs  wou ld  p robab ly  have been a  week ly  

in te rac t ions,  I  wou ld  say a t  leas t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   Jus t  go ing  back to  

parag raph 5 ,  so  the  resu l ts  ind ica ted  tha t  the  pr ice  be ing  20 

o f fe red  by  the  b idders  was reasonab le  and he re  i t  says :  

“Given that  the forex escalat ion,  economic 

factors and batch pr ic ing impact  is  subject  to 

market  condi t ions,  i t  can be deduced that  

the f inal  contract  pr ice is also reasonable. ”  
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I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  in  o ther  words you sa id  the  p r ice  

on  o f fe r  i s  reasonab le  and then there  are  these changes,  

they are  a l l  marke t  cond i t ions  and market  re la ted ,  

there fo re  the  f ina l  cont rac t  p r ice  i s  reasonab le .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now the  po in t  o f  depar tu re  was the  

Reg iments  assessment  tha t  the  pr ice  on  o f fe r  was  

reasonab le .  10 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  and I  th ink  the  more  impor tan t  po in t  o f  

depar tu re  was ac tua l l y  the  ad jud ica t ion  process tha t  go t  us  

to  tha t  po in t ,  because tha t  was  re f lec t i ve  o f  what  the  

market  was w i l l i ng  to  o f fe r  a t  the  t ime and tha t  to  me was 

ac tua l l y  more  an  ind ica tor  than,  I  th ink  the  Reg iments  

Cap i ta l  assessment  was,  le t  us  ca l l  i t  a  leve l  o f ,  more  a  

leve l  o f  comfor t  ra ther  than the  process,  because the  

process up  to  tha t  po in t  in  t ime Mr Cha i r,  had been,  was an  

open market  tender.    

I t  was eva lua ted accord ing  to  the  eva lua t ion  cr i te r i a  20 

tha t  was se t  by  TFR,  the  eva lua t ion ,  the  cross- funct ion  

eva lua t ion  teams tha t  eva lua ted them had to  come up w i th  

a  best  and f ina l  o f fe r  p r i ce  a t  tha t  s tage,  wh ich  was 

re f lec t i ve  o f  the  market .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  bu t  th is  i s  parag raph 5  o f  your  
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memo.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And i t  i s  an  impor tan t  s tep .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  mean you cannot ,  you are  no t  

suggest ing  o therwise .  

MR SINGH:    No,  no .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   Then i f  I  cou ld  take  you to  

page 722,  there  is  another  re fe rence to  Reg iments ,  

h is to r i ca l  regress ion  ana lys is  conducted by  Reg iments  10 

Cap i ta l  ind ica tes  tha t  the  ZAR cur rency i s  on  a  t rend o f  

deva lua t ion ,  as  ind ica ted  in  tab le  5  above.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then i f  you go over  the  page to  

parag raph 43,  the  cost  to  hedge th is  exposure  was  

obta ined f rom banks by  the  supp l ie rs ,  th is  was ve t ted  by  

Transnet  Treasury  and Reg iments  Cap i ta l  fo r  reasonab i l i t y.   

I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  tha t  s  the  hedg ing  costs .  20 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then we dea l  w i th  esca la t ion ,  

over  the  page,  and you w i l l  see  a t  59  i n  re fe rence to  

Reg iments :  

“Escalat ions of  input  costs have been 
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ver i f ied by Transnet by us ing publ ica l ly 

avai lab le data and by Regiments Capi tal  

using the intel lectual  property  methodology 

and techniques. ”  

I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then i f  you  go to  page 730 under,  o r  

a t  paragraph 107 i t  says :  

“Data quoted in th is memo above has been 

sourced f rom.. . ”  10 

And then one,  two,  th ree ,  the  four th ,  f i f th  bu l le t  po in t :  

“Regiments Capi tal  Transact ion Advisory 

Services.”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now I  wou ld  l i ke  to  go  back  p lease,  

to  paragraph 18 a t  page 727.   I t  says  tha t :  

“The updated NVP resul ts in a posi t ive NPV 

of  R11, 68 bi l l ion at  the new hurdle rate of  

15.2% and 22,  71 bi l l ion at  the TRF WACC 20 

of  12.6.   The NPV would become a negat ive 

1,  67 bi l l ion at  the or ig inal  hurdle rate of  

18.56%.”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Perhaps Mr  S ingh,  fo r  us  i f  you  can 

decode what  th is  means in  s imp le  te rms.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Be fore  he  does  tha t ,  fo r  the  t ranscr ip t ,  

in  parag raph 18 i t  i s  NPV,  NPV,  NPV,  w i th  regard  to  the  

f i rs t  one i t  came across as  i f  you  were  say ing  NVP,  

Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  NPV.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  I  am jus t  cor rec t ing  tha t .   NPV,  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  thank you.    

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  NPV s tands fo r  Net  Present  Va lue  10 

and the  acronym WACC stands fo r  Weighted Average Cost  

o f  Cap i ta l .   So Mr  Cha i r,  what  wou ld  happen is ,  so  you  

have locomot ives  tha t  you are  procur ing  and  these  

locomot ives  obv ious ly  you a re  procur ing  w i th  the  v iew tha t  

they w i l l  add to  t he  p ro f i tab i l i t y  o f  the  bus iness and w i l l  be  

se l f -sus ta in ing  and wou ld  bas ica l l y  genera te  cash  to  be 

ab le  to  pay fo r  themse lves.  

So what ,  Mr  Cha i r,  th is  paragraph seeks to  do  is  to  

say ove r  the  l i fe  o f  these locomot ives ,  remember  they a re  

now go ing  to  las t  fo r  the  next  30  years  and i f  we do 20 

mod i f i ca t ions they cou ld  las t  50  years ,  now but  you are 

obv ious ly  s i t t ing  here  today,  so  what  you are  t ry ing  to  do  

th rough th i s  Net  Present  Va lue  Mr  Cha i r,  i s  to  p red ic t  the  

cash f lows o f  these locomot ives  over  the  l i fe ,  bu t  then you 

are  say ing  bu t  these are  [ ind is t inc t ]  va lues,  so  they,  you  
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know they inc lude esca la t ions,  in f la t ion  and a l l  o f  these  

th ings,  bu t  what  i s  tha t  va lue  today?   

So you need the  present  va lue  then back to  today  

and tha t  i s  tha t  11 ,  68  b i l l i on  says bas ica l l y  in  s imp le  te rms 

i f  you take  a l l  o f  the  cash f lows tha t  these th ings w i l l  

genera te  less  a l l  o f  a  sudden the  costs ,  less  a l l  o f  the  

cap i ta l  cos ts  assoc ia ted  w i th  the  acqu is i t ion ,  you w i l l  end  

up w i th  R11,  68  b i l l i on  wor th  o f  p ro f i t  in  today ’s  te rms,  

r igh t ,  bu t  you w i l l  app rec ia te  Cha i r,  tha t  in  o rder  fo r  you to  

b r ing  someth ing  f rom the  fu tu re  to  today tha t  fu tu re  number  10 

w i l l  be  b igger  than the  number  today,  so  today ’s  number  

w i l l  be  smal le r.  

So in  o rder  fo r  you to  b r ing  i t  back to  today you  

have to  d i scount  i t ,  so  you pro jec t  i t  f i rs t  and you d iscount  

i t  back to  p resen t .   Now tha t  d iscount ing  fac tor,  Mr  Cha i r,  

i s  e i ther  the  hurd le  ra te  or  the  Weighted Average Cost  o f  

Cap i ta l ,  so  i t  i s  a  fac tor  tha t  bas i ca l l y  says when you  

pro jec t  someth ing  in to  the  fu tu re  use a  d i scount  ra te  to  

d iscount  i t  back to  today ’s  p resent  day.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  so  jus t  to  b reak i t  down,  the  20 

updated NPV resu l ts  in  a  pos i t i ve  NPV o f  11 ,  68  b i l l i on ,  as  

you say,  a t  the  new hurd le  ra te  o f  15 .2  and then the  las t  

sentence says  the  NPV wou ld  become negat ive  

1 ,  67  b i l l i on  a t  the  or ig ina l  hurd le  ra te ,  okay.  

So when we ta lk  about  the  or ig ina l  and updated,  o r  
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sor ry,  the  o r ig ina l  and the  new hurd le  ra te ,  was the  or ig ina l  

hurd le  ra te  in  the  in i t ia l  bus iness case?  

MR SINGH:    I  wou ld  assume so  s i r,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  on tha t  hurd le  ra te  you wou ld  no t  

make a  pro f i t ,  you  wou ld  make a  loss .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  the  NPVs wi l l  become negat ive ,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja ,  so  a  negat ive ,  as  I  unders tood i t  

you were  say ing  tha t  on  the  one you wou ld  make a  pro f i t ,  

on  the  o ther  you wou ld  make a  loss .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  i t  wou ld  be  a  pos i t i ve  

11 ,  68  b i l l i on  ve rsus a  negat ive  11 ,  67  b i l l i on .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   Now th is  updated or  new 

hurd le  ra te  o f  15 .2 ,  where  d id  tha t  come f rom? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  as  we see  in  paragraph 81 i t  says  

the  WACC and  hurd le  ra tes  a re  updated annua l ly  fo r  

changes in  economic  cond i t ions  and are  approved by  the  

Transnet ,  rev iewed by  ex terna l  aud i t  dur ing  yearend aud i t  

p rocesses,  so  Mr  Cha i r,  these ra tes  are ,  ge t  rev iewed and  20 

looked a t  annua l ly,  bu t  I  th ink  they are  ac tua l l y  approved  

b iannua l ly  by  the  Transnet  ExCo,  so  they ge t  rev iewed 

annua l l y  and the  changes occur  and they then get  rev iewed 

a t  a  rev iew o f  the  ExCo every  two years .   So Mr  Cha i r,  th is  

15  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    15 .2 ,  Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  the  15 .2% tha t  was used  in  the 

compi la t ion  o f  th is  memo Mr Cha i r,  wou ld  have come 

th rough some sor t  o f  rev iew process tha t  was happened in  

Transnet  a t  the  t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  so  jus t  to  da te  th is ,  th is  i s  

someth ing  tha t  you s ta ted  when you s igned i t  on  the  21st of 

May,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now cou ld  I  take  you p lease to  some 10 

new documents  tha t  you f ind  a t ,  commencing  a t  page,  th is  

i s  Transnet  bund le  5(C) ,  commencing  a t  page 2023.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  in  the  same bund le?    

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Transnet  bund le  5 (C) ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR SINGH:    The  page,  s i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you,  le t  us  s ta r t  

a t  page 2023,  2023.   A re  you the re?   

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  on 2023 we have a  document  20 

Weighted Average Cost  o f  Cap i ta l  and Hurd le  Rates  Po l i cy,  

do  you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And the  e f fec t i ve  da te  o f  tha t ,  on  the 

face  o f  i t ,  was 1  August  2012,  cor rec t?  
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MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cou ld  I  ask  you p lease then to  tu rn  

to  page 1032?  

MR SINGH:    1?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  beg your  pardon,  2032.  

MR SINGH:    20?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    2032,  Sor ry.   We were  on  2023,  we 

now need to  move to  2032.  

MR SINGH:    2032,  Ja  okay,  I  am there .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And what  you see there  is  a  ser ies  10 

o f  two schedu les  a t  the  foo t  o f  the  page,  you w i l l  see  there  

is  a  head ing  fo r  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do not  lower  your  vo ice ,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You w i l l  see  there  is  a  head ing  

before  the  f i rs t  schedu le  tha t  reads Greenf ie lds ,  do  you 

see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then you go to  TFR and  you see  

the  hurd le  ra te  i s  18 .56 .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  tha t  i s  what  i s  re fe r red  to  as  the  

or ig ina l  hurd le  ra te  in  your  ETC memo.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  pe rhaps  i f  you  cou ld  jus t  exp la in  

the  concept  to  us  a t  Greenf ie lds .  
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MR SINGH:    So  a  Greenf ie lds  pro jec t  Mr  Cha i r,  i s  

bas ica l l y  a ,  i t  is  a  p ro jec t  tha t  i s  re la t i ve l y  new and 

probab ly  has no t  been under taken befo re .   I t  i s  

character i sed by  a  pro jec t  tha t  has s ign i f i can t ,  cou ld  a lso  

be  character i sed by  a  p ro jec t  tha t  has a  s ign i f i can t  amount  

o f  r i sk  a t tached to  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  and then i f  I  cou ld  ask  you 

p lease to  go  to  page 268.   What  you see there  is  a  s im i la r  

document ,  Weigh ted Average Cos t  o f  Cap i ta l  and  Hurd le  

Rates  Po l i cy,  WACC Po l icy,  do  you  see tha t?  10 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And here  i t  records  the  e f fec t i ve  

da te  as  31  March  2014,  do  you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And i t  says  s ignatu re ,  and  tha t  i s  

your  s ignatu re ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Under  Group Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off i ce r.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And jus t  he lp  us  w i th  tha t  da te ,  20 

Mr  S ingh.  

MR SINGH:    I t  seems l i ke  i t  i s  the  20 t h  o f  May 2014 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    20  May 2014?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  tha t  i s  the  day be fore  you s igned  
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the  ETC increase  memo.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then i f  you go over  the  page to  

2070 you w i l l  see  tha t  i t  i s  s igned by  the  Group F inanc ia l  

P lann ing  Genera l  Manager  and then i t  i s  s igned by  you 

aga in .   What  i s  tha t  da te ,  the  same? 

MR SINGH:    The  same date .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    20  May?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  we see tha t  there  i s  no  s ignature  10 

re f lec t ing  the  f ina l  approva l .   Do  you see tha t?   In  o ther  

words,  name o f  commi t tee ,  g roup  ch ie f ,  Group Execut ive  

Commi t tee ,  there  is  no  s ignature  there .  

MR SINGH:    Ne i ther  was the  one in  2012 e i the r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay.   So tha t  takes us  to  20  May  

2014,  now le t  us  go  then to  page,  i f  I  cou ld  ask  you to  go  

to  page 2079.  

MR SINGH:    2071?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    2079.    

MR SINGH:    2079,  Yes?  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  what  you see s im i la r  to  the  2013  

po l i cy  i s  you have got  a  head ing  Greenf ie lds ,  do  you see 

tha t  towards the  foo t  o f  tha t  page? 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And aga in  i f  we t rack  to  TFR we get  
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the  Greenf ie lds  hurd le  ra te  o f  16 .24%,  do  you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    We know in  the  ETC memo you used 

a  new hurd le  ra te  o f  15 .2 .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Where  does one f ind  re fe rence to 

15 .2  in  th is  document?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  have  ind ica ted  tha t  the  15 .2  

wou ld  have been the  WACC ra te  tha t  was p reva len t  a t  

some po in t  in  t ime dur ing  the  per iod  dur ing  wh ich  th is  10 

process was be ing  under taken.   Mr  Cha i r,  the  reason why 

we s ta te  tha t  i s  tha t  th is  document  i s  a  document  tha t  

evo lves,  le t  us  ca l l  i t  f rom,  we l l  ac tua l l y  the  aud i to r ’s  

rev iew,  the  WACC ra tes ,  somet ime in  September,  October  

o f  each year  because o f  the  aud i t  tha t  they,  no t  the  aud i t ,  

bu t  the  rev iew tha t  they conduct  fo r  Transnet  resu l ts  and  

they wou ld  have  had to  rev iew the  WACC to  unders tand  

whethe r  i t  was s t i l l  app l i cab le  or  no t ,  g iven the  changes in  

economic  cond i t ions ,  bu t  i t  i s  no t  a  very  in -depth  exerc i se ,  

bu t  when they do  then come fo r  the  yearend aud i t ,  wh ich  20 

s ta r ts  somet ime  a t  the  end o f  March,  there  i s  qu i te  a  

s ign i f i can t  in -dep th  exe rc i se  tha t  i s  done by  Externa l  Aud i t  

in  ac tua l l y  aud i t ing  the  WACC and in  o rder  f o r  them to  

aud i t  the  WACC,  Mr  Cha i r,  we need to  p ropose someth ing  

fo r  them to  aud i t .  
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So  tha t  p rocess,  Mr  Cha i r,  s ta r ts  in  and around I  

wou ld  say March ,  Apr i l  and i t  wou ld  probab ly  conc lude in  

somet ime,  p robab ly  somet ime thereaf te r.   They  wou ld ,  

Mr  Cha i r,  no t  accept  a  WACC tha t  i s  no t  approved by  

Transnet ,  because they have to  have an o f f i c ia l  v iew o f  

what  the  Transnet  WACC is  fo r  them to  then aud i t  and 

Mr  Cha i r,  th is  12 ,  what  was the  number,  15 .2  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja ,  tha t  i s  what  you sa id .  

MR SINGH:    The 15.2  number  Mr  Cha i r,  wou ld  have been 

a  number  tha t  was be ing  cons idered by  Transnet  a t  a  po in t  10 

in  t ime dur ing  th i s  rev iew process ,  wh ich  u l t imate l y  led  to  

the  f ina l  approved document  ac tua l l y  coming  out  a t  

16 .24%,  wh ich  was the  ac tua l  document  tha t  was then 

s igned o f f .  

Where  Mr  Laher  ob ta ined the  15 .2% f rom Mr Cha i r,  

he  a l leges tha t  he  ob ta ined i t  f rom me.   Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  

reca l l  hav ing  g iven h im a  15 .2  number,  tha t  number  seems 

ra the r  exact ,  so  a t  tha t  s tage  Mr Cha i r,  each  o f  the  

opera t ing  d i v is ions wou ld  be  engag ing  w i th  Transnet  

F inanc ia l  P lann ing ,  o r  Group P lann ing  as  they were  ca l led ,  20 

to  unders tand what  the  ind iv idua l  WACC numbers  wou ld  

be ,  because the  ind iv idua l  WACC numbers  wou ld  then  

obv ious ly  impact  the  aud i t  a t  the i r  spec i f i c  opera t ing  

d iv is ions.  

So we d id  no t  a l low fo r  each opera t ing  d iv is ion  to  



31 MAY 2021 – DAY 406 
 

Page 200 of 217 
 

come up w i th  the i r  own WACC,  i t  was ac tua l l y  ca lcu la ted  

cent ra l l y,  aud i ted  cent ra l l y  and tha t  in fo rmat ion  was then  

passed onto  the  opera t ing  d iv i s ion  and Mr  Cha i r,  jus t  a lso  

to  g ive  contex t  Mr  Cha i r,  the  memo had been prepared in  

Apr i l ,  bu t  i t  e f fec t i ve ly  captured a l l  the  economic  e f fec ts  up  

to  cont rac t  s ign ing  da te .  

So as  we have seen,  the  memo,  the  WACC 

document  was ac tua l l y  approved on the  14 t h  o f ,  no  20 t h  o f  

May 2014 w i th  the  16 .24% re f lec ted  but  Mr  Cha i r,  the  

15 .2% wou ld  have been the  equ iva len t  o f  the  16 .24% 10 

dur ing  a  per iod  o f  t ime dur ing  the  evo lu t ion  o f  th is  

document .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.   Wel l ,  a l l  o f  tha t  may be  

cor rec t ,  bu t  the  po in t  i s  tha t  as  a t  the  21st of May when you  

s igned th is  document  the  hu rd le  ra te ,  the  new hurd le  ra te  

was not  15 .2%,  i t  was 16.24%,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja ,  and we  know tha t  th is  document  

was then put  fo rward  to  the  BADC on the  26 t h  o f  May and i t  

was put  fo rward  to  the  Board  o f  D i rec tors  on  the  29 t h  o f  20 

May.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    On both  o f  those days the  new 

hurd le  ra te  was not  15 .2 ,  bu t  16 .24 .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    So tha t  i s  qu i te  a  la rge  d i f fe rence,  i s  

i t  no t ,  more  than a  percent?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  i s  1 .4%.   Now what  wou ld  the  

e f fec t  o f  tha t  have been on the  pro f i tab i l i t y  o f  th is  venture?  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  as  I  say  i f  you  look a t  the  memo,  i f  you 

w i l l  reca l l  the  memo d id  say i f  we had the  o r ig ina l  hurd le  

ra te  o f  18% i t  wou ld  resu l t  in  a  negat ive  NPV o f  

1 ,  68  b i l l i on  i f  I  reca l l ,  g iven the  fac t  tha t  th is  i s  16% I  

wou ld  hazard  to  say tha t  h t  NPV wou ld  no t  be  negat ive ,  10 

no tw i ths tand ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry,  you wou ld  no t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH:    Wou ld  no t  be  negat ive .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You wou ld  venture  to  say?  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  I  have not  rea l l y  ca lcu la ted  i t ,  so  I  can 

on ly  assume tha t  i t  wou ld  no t  be .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You can on ly  assume i t  wou ld  no t  

be .  

MR SINGH:    Okay,  then I  wou ld  say i t  wou ld  no t  be .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  Mr  S ingh,  you unders tand th is  i s  20 

a  ve ry  impor tan t  i ssue.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  and I  am respond ing  by  say ing  tha t  the 

16 .24% versus the  15 .2% wou ld  no t  resu l t  in  a  negat ive  

NPV.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And is  i t  a  s imp le  mathemat ica l  
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ca l cu la t ion  tha t  can be under taken? 

MR SINGH:    No,  I  do  no t  th ink  i t  i s .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Because we asked Mr  Chouby i f  he 

cou ld  do  th i s  fo r  us ,  he  sa id  i t  wou ld  take  th ree  weeks.  

MR SINGH:    I t  i s  no t  . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  you are  rea l l y  guess ing .  

MR SINGH:    We l l ,  you  are  ask ing  me and I  am say ing  to  

you i t  wou ld  no t ,  i t  wou ld  no t .   I t  wou ld  no t  take  th ree  

weeks,  no t  th ree  weeks,  tha t  i s  an  exaggera t ion .   Mr  Cha i r,  

the  o ther  reason why . . . [ in te rvenes ]  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  S ingh,  sor ry,  I  cannot  hear  you 

and I  need to  unders tand prec i se ly  what  you are  say ing  

here ,  because what  i s  represented to  the  BADC and what  

i s  represented to  the  Board  is  tha t  th is  i s  a  p ro f i tab le  

venture  a t  the  wrong hu rd le  ra te .   Now i f  i t  was 16 .24,  a re  

you say ing  i t  cou ld  be  one way o r  the  o the r,  i t  i s  marg ina l ,  

o r  what  a re  we ta lk ing  here?  

MR SINGH:    Wel l  Mr  Cha i r,  ta lk ing  on  the  po in t  o f  

m isrepresenta t ion ,  i f  I  wanted to  m isrepresent  to  the  Board  

I  wou ld  have no t  inc luded the  fac t  tha t  a t  18 .24% the  20 

bus iness venture  wou ld  have been negat ive .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  a re  you . . .   I  know i t  i s  la te  in  the  

even ing  now,  a re  you ab le  to ,  th is  i s  go ing  to  be  another  

s i t t ing ,  a re  you ab le  to  run  th is  f igure  fo r  us  by  the  next  

s i t t ing?  



31 MAY 2021 – DAY 406 
 

Page 203 of 217 
 

MR SINGH:    Wel l  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  we are  go ing  to  the  po in t  o f  

say ing  le t  us  unders tand what  the  NPV o f  th is  p ro jec t  i s ,  

then we need to  go  back to ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  page 9  or  11  o f  the  

bus iness case and tha t  a l so  says tha t  a l l  the  po tent ia l  

impacts  o f  opera t iona l  e f f i c ienc ies  o f  the  new locomot ives  

have not  been inc luded in  the  bus iness case and the  

reason fo r  tha t  was to  ensure  tha t  we had a  conserva t ive  

bus iness case tha t  we put  fo rward ,  so  i f  we want  to  

reca lcu la te  the  NPV o f  th is  bus iness case then we shou ld  

go  and assess what  the  opera t ion  e f f i c ienc ies  o f  these  10 

locomot ives  wou ld  be ,  inc lude i t  in  the  bus iness case and 

then app ly  the  new WACC and then you w i l l  ge t  an  answer.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  my quest ion  is ;  cou ld  you do 

tha t  by  the  next  s i t t ing? 

MR SINGH:    No  Mr  Cha i r,  we cannot  do  tha t  by  the  next  

s i t t ing ,  as  TFR can on ly  do  th is ,  they can on ly  assess the  

opera t ion  e f f i c iency o f  those new locomot ives .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  so  what  I  need to  do  then is  

to  go  and search  where  you got  th is  15 .2% f rom.   Now as I  

unders tand . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

MR SINGH:    No Mr  Cha i r,  I  d id  no t  ge t  the  15 .2 ,  I  d id  no t  

g ive  Mr  Laher  15 .2 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Oh,  so  th is  i s  a  Laher  m is take.  

MR SINGH:    We have g i ven an a f f idav i t  to  tha t  ex ten t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  bu t  jus t ,  I  do  no t  want  to  
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qua r re l  w i th  you,  I  jus t  need to  unders tand what  happened.   

So do I  unders tand you to  say th i s  i s  no t  your  f igu re ,  you 

d id  no t  g ive  Laher  15 .2%? 

MR SINGH:    I  d id  no t  g ive  15 .2%.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Do you know where  th i s  15 .2  comes  

f rom? 

MR SINGH:    No,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  do I  unders tand you to  be  say ing ,  

and co r rec t  me i f  I  am wrong,  tha t  i t  i s  Mr  Laher  t ha t  pu t  

th is  in  here?  10 

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   So le t  us  car ry  on  w i th  

these hu rd le  ra te  documents .   Now i f  you go to  page 2110 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH:    2110?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja .   So you  w i l l  see  tha t  th is  i s  an  e-

mai l  f rom Yusuf  Laher  to  Mr  Gama.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And i t  says :  

“Hi ,  Siya.   In a nutshel l ,  the NPV became 20 

negat ive. . . ”  

Sor ry,  le t  us  jus t ,  and i t  i s  a lso  impor tan t ly  on  the  25th of 

March 2014.  

“Hi ,  Siya.   In a nutshel l ,  the NPV became 

negat ive because the assumpt ions have 
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changed since,  i .e.  the pr ice per  loco,  

et  cetera.   Fur ther to Francis ’ e-mai l  

below.. . ”  

That  we know is  Franc i s  Ca l la rd .  

“ I f  a hurdle rate is adjusted to the latest  

Transnet issued hurdle rate,  then the NPV 

wi l l  become posi t ive again.   Francis wi l l  

rerun the numbers based on the latest  hurdle 

rate. ”  

Next  parag raph:  10 

“The Transnet hurdle rate changed very 

recent ly f rom 18% to about  15% ( i t  changed 

last  week,  I  th ink) . ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now we are  go ing  to  come to  

Mr  Laher ’s  ev idence.   Mr  Laher ’s  ev idence is  tha t  you to ld  

h im tha t .  

MR SINGH:    So  then why d id  he  no t  say  tha t ,  tha t  

acco rd ing  to  our  no tes  th is  had change?  He does not  say  20 

tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  he  does not  say  tha t .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  tha t  i s  h is  ev idence.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  why I  am say ing  I  d isagree w i th  h im.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Now jus t  so  tha t  we 

unders tand i t ,  i s  th is  a  po l i cy,  th is  Hurd le  Rate  Po l icy,  i t  i s  

someth ing  tha t  fa l l s  very  much w i th in  your  domain .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  mean,  we  see tha t  you approve i t ,  

th is  i s  your  baby rea l l y.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Le t  me take you then,  i f  I  may,  to  the 

m inute  o f  a  Cap i ta l  Investment  Commi t tee  meet ing  on  the 

18th of March 2014 and tha t  you w i l l  f ind  a t  page 2122.   You 10 

w i l l  see  i t  says  ‘d ra f t  m inutes  o f  Transnet  Cap i ta l  

Investment  Commi t tee  meet ing  14 /3  he ld  on  Tuesday,  

18  March a t  09 :00 ’ and there  present ,  Mr  S ingh,  you were  

the  ac t ing  Cha i rperson o f  the  Cap i ta l  Investment  

Commi t tee .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Based on the  m inutes ,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now can I  take  you p lease to  

page 2132,  the  WACC Po l icy  and hurd le  ra tes ,  because we 

know there  was  an amendment  in  the  p ipe l ine .   I t  was 

d iscussed a t  th is  meet ing .  20 

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You see tha t  a t  paragraph 7 .5 ,  

cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A t  752 i t  was noted tha t :  
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“The recommendat ion was not  a pol icy 

change, but  changes to the hurdle rates.   I t  

was agreed that  the submission be revised 

accordingly.   I t  was further requested that  

consul tat ions be held wi th OD Execut ive 

Commit tees to  discuss the suggested 

rev ised rates as wel l  as the regulatory 

matters.”  

Now what  does OD s tand fo r?  

MR SINGH:    Opera t ing  D iv is ion .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  was reso lved,  you w i l l  see ,  tha t  

the  Commi t tee  recommends the  proposed rev ised  hurd le  

ra te  as  conta ined in  the  tab le  WACC Po l icy,  sub jec t  to  

consu l ta t ions  w i th  OD Execut ive  Commi t tees,  as  we l l  as  

the  regu la tory  mat te rs  be fo re  tab l ing  a t  Group Execut ive  

Commi t tee ,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  then le t  us  go  to  page 2135.   

These are  now the  minutes  o f  the  Group Execut ive  

Commi t tee  he ld  on  the  25 t h  o f  March 2014,  you w i l l  see i t  20 

re f lec t s  Mole fe  be ing  p resent ,  under  tha t  Mr  Gama be ing  

present  and then  you as  we l l .   I  see  tha t  i s  in  a lphabet ica l  

o rde r.   Do you see S ingh?  Do you  conf i rm you were  there?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then i f  I  cou ld  take  you  p lease  
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to  paragraph 5 .9  a t  page 2140,  aga in  Hurd le  Ra te  and 

Weighted Average Cost  o f  Cap i ta l  Po l i cy  i s  d i scussed,  do  

you conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH:    2140?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    2140.  

MR SINGH:    Oh yes,  5 .9  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Paragraph 5 .9 ,  ja .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I f  I  cou ld  take  you over  the  page to 

2141 and d i rec t  you r  a t ten t ion  to  paragraph 5 .9 .4 ,  the 10 

Commi t tee  was requested to  approve the  nomina l  post  tax  

WACC of  12 .7%,  there  w i l l  be  a  be t te r  unders tand ing  o f  

WACC post  the  de l ta  p rocess.   The Cha i rpe rson,  now tha t  

Cha i rperson is  Mr  Mole fe ,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

“The Chairperson stated that  there has 

always been a disagreement over the WACC 

issue since he assumed off ice.   He 

requested that  a memorandum be submit ted 20 

to this off ice that  c lear ly art iculates the 

proposed amendments.”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  
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“Mr  Va l iu  s ta ted  tha t  based on the  WACC 

computa t ion ,  TE prov ided the  least  r i sk  in  

the  company.   Mr  Gardener  s ta ted  tha t  

WACC becomes a  sens i t i ve  d iscuss ion  i tem 

dur ing  cont rac t  negot ia t ions .   He sought  

c la r i t y  on  the  most  su i tab le  WACC to  u t i l i se  

and requested gu idance on the  company ’s  

reasonab le  cost  o f  equ i ty.   Mr  S ingh s ta ted  

tha t  the  cha l lenges in  cont rac t  negot ia t ions  

were  rea l  WACC and hurd le  ra te . ”  10 

Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then a t  5 .9 .6 :  

“Mr Singh indicated that  the submission wi l l  

be presented to the OD/SU for  

considerat ion. ”  

What  does SU s tand fo r?  

MR SINGH:    [ Ind is t inc t ] .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then jus t  above paragraph 5 .10  

you see:  20 

“The Commit tee noted the Hurdle Rate and 

Weighted Average Cost  of  Capi tal  of  Pol icy.”  

So no acceptance  there ,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then i f  I  can  take  you p lease to  



31 MAY 2021 – DAY 406 
 

Page 210 of 217 
 

page 2159.   So what  you f ind  here  is  an  e-mai l  f rom Yusuf  

Mohamed to  va r ious persons,  cop ied  to  you and i t  is  March  

ExCo feedback,  we are  dea l ing  w i th  the  March ExCo now 

and i t  records  these notes  fo l low ing:  

“The Hurdle Rate and WACC Pol icy was not  

approved.   Redo the memo to explain the 

changes del ta view.  Please get  a slot  in 

each OD ExCo in Apr i l  to explain the OD 

speci f ic WACCs and the changes year on 

year to the. . . ”  10 

Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then what  we have found i s  a t  

page 2161,  now th is  i s  on  the  12 t h  o f  May and th is  seems 

to  be  a f te r  an  approva l  f rom Thabo Abe l lo  to  Yusuf  

Mohamed,  i t  says :  

“The tab le and explanat ion below depicts 

TRF WACC and hurdle rate. ”  

And then you w i l l  see  there  is  2012/13 approved ra te ,  there  

you see the  1856  and then a t  the  bo t tom you see 2014/15  20 

approved ra te  and there  you see 16.24,  do  you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then tha t  accords w i th  the  po l i cy  

tha t  you s igned on the  20 t h  o f  May,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now cou ld  I  p lease take  you to ,  

make re fe rence to  your  a f f idav i t?  

MR SINGH:    Jus t  be fore  we move  o f f  th is  page,  can I  jus t  

make a  comment  on  2161?  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  have re ference  

to  2161 you w i l l  see  tha t  on  Monday 12 May 2014 

Mr  Mabe l lo  sends to  Mr  Mohamed the  WACC ra tes  as  

Mr  Myburgh has out l ined,  bu t  Mr  Mohamed then a l so  sends 

i t  to  Mr  Laher  on  the  12 t h  o f  May 2014 a t  12 :31 ,  as  you can 

see a t  the  top  o f  the  page.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry,  I  have jus t ,  I  am jus t  m iss ing  

you.   What  page are  you on?  

MR SINGH:    I  am say ing  2161,  we have jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The las t  e -mai l?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    2161.   So your  po in t  i s?   I  am so r ry,  

a t  the  top  i t  says  Yusuf  Mohamed,  okay.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Mohamed send ing  to  Mr  Laher  t he  TFR 

WACC and hu rd le  ra tes  on  the  12 t h  o f  May 2014,  so  

Mr  Laher  was in  possess ion  o f  the  WACC ra tes ,  the  f ina l  20 

WACC ra tes  f rom Mr  Mohamed.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .  

MR SINGH:    And as  you prev ious ly  po in ted  ou t  in  the 

prev ious e -mai l ,  ou t  to  Mr  Gama,  he  was a lso  in  

possess ion  o f  the  15% f rom somebody a t  Transne t  Group,  
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so  he  was obv ious l y  in  communica t ion  w i th  unders tand ing  

the  evo lu t ion  o f  th is  WACC ra te  du r ing  th is  per iod  o f  t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  S ingh,  I  am not  go ing  to  debate  

tha t  w i th  you,  the  evo lu t ion .   Le t  us  have a  look a t  you r  

a f f idav i t .   Can you go p lease to  1486? 

MR SINGH:    I  am sor ry,  in  wh ich  bund le  are  you,  the  same 

one?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  th ink  i t  migh t  be  the  same,  i t  may 

be the  same f i le .   1486.    

MR SINGH:    Yes,  I  am there ,  s i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  so  I  jus t  want  to  take  you 

th rough th is .   You dea l  w i th  unpro f i tab le  p ro jec ts  and  

hurd le  ra te  reduc t ion .   You say:  

“ I  was open and t ransparent  to the Board of  

Di rectors regard ing the impact  of  the 

increase ETC on the or ig inal  NPV and WACC 

rate in that  i t  resul ted in  a negat ive NPV for  

the project . ”  

Cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

“ I  deny the fact  that  the project  was loss 

making,  as al leged by Chabu.  I  deny that  

the hurdle rate had to be changed to make 

the project  prof i table again.   I  deny that  
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there was no approved pol icy to support  the 

change in the hurdle rate as c laimed.”  

And then you say  a t  245:  

“The reasons for each of  the above 

conclusions is contained in my response to 

Yusuf  Laher ’s supplementary aff idavi t  which 

deals wi th the subject  of  the WACC and 

Hurdle Rate Pol icy.”  

Now where  do  you respond to  Mr  Laher ’s  supp lementa ry  

a f f idav i t?  10 

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  in  one o f  our  a f f idav i t s ,  I  am not  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now I  see,  I  am jus t ,  I  see  a t  1518  

you do respond to  a  s ta tement  by  Yusuf  Laher.  

MR SINGH:    1518?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    1518.   I s  tha t  what  you a re  re fer r ing  

to?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  I  th ink  so .   I  th ink  th is  i s  the  one .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  f in ish  o f f ,  I  see  

i t  i s  a lmost  21 :00 ,  by  ask ing  you  someth ing  tha t  I  cou ld  20 

then th ink  about  be fore  we reconvene.   A t  246 you say:  

“The table below summarises the status of  

the NPV and var ious hurd le and WACC 

rates,  and as can be seen,  even when the 

approved WACC and hurd le rate are used 
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that  would not  resul t  in the project  being 

unprof i tab le. ”  

Now you re fer  to  31  May 2014 and there  whatever  go t  the  

16 .24,  then you have got  a  co lumn in  the  m idd le ,  31  March  

2014 and there  is  the  15 .2 .   Where  d id  you get  tha t  f rom? 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  Mr  Myburgh,  I  went  to  1518,  

bu t  I  th ink  you have moved beyond  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    1487.   Sor ry,  I  am go ing ,  I  went ,  I  

am go ing  back there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    1487.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    1487.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  there  is  a  schedu le  in  the  m idd le ,  

so  March 13 i s  1856 tha t  we have seen.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  I  can see tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    31  May 2014 and 16.24,  tha t  we 

have seen.   Where  do  you get  the  31  March 2014,  15 .2 

f rom?  I  unders tood your  ev idence  to be  we l l ,  Mr  Laher  pu t  

i t  in  there ,  you do  not  know where  i t  came f rom.  

MR SINGH:    I  w i l l  have to  go  back and check where  I  d id  20 

ge t  tha t  number  f rom.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  pe rhaps Cha i rperson,  th is  

may be a  conven ien t  t ime to  take  the  ad jou rnment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    Oh,  so  th is ,  I  reca l l ,  so  th is  i s  bas i ca l l y  taken 
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f rom the  Board  memo.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The what?  

MR SINGH:    From the  Board  memo.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The Board  memo? 

MR SINGH:    Yes .   I f  you  w i l l  reca l l ,  bas i ca l l y  we sa id  tha t  

the  rev ised hurd le  ra te  you had a  16 .02 NPV and a t  the  

12 .6  WACC you  had the  22 .71  NPV.   I  jus t ,  I  jus t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I s  tha t  f rom the  memo? 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  I  jus t  re ferenced i t  back to  the 10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  the  ETC inc rease memo? 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.  

MR SINGH:    The date  31  March  was re ferenced  by  and  

la rge  to  the  per iod  o f  t ime when  we ac tua l l y  s igned the  

Locomot ive  Supp ly  Agreement  on  17  March.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Unfor tunate l y  we are  no t  ab le  to  f in ish .   

I  w i l l  have to  t ry  and f ind  t ime tha t  we do not  have  20 

somewhere .   What  i s  your  es t ima te  o f  how much t ime we  

might  need?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    We are  ce r ta in ly  dur ing  the  end a t  

leas t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  th ink  probab ly  ha l f  a  day.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ha l f  a  day,  okay a l r igh t .   I  th ink  in  

p robab ly  tomor row or  in  the  next  few days we w i l l  t ry  and  

sor t  tha t  ou t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ha l f  a  day or  an  even ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  an  even ing ,  ja ,  ja .   For  what  i t  i s  

wor th ,  counse l  fo r  Mr  S ingh,  a re  you ab le  to  ind ica te  tha t  

maybe f rom now up to  when your  even ings are  reasonab ly  

f lex ib le ,  w i thout  be ing  spec i f i c?  

ADVOCATE:    Cha i rperson,  we are  no t  ava i lab le  a t  a l l  th is  10 

week o r  next  week,  no t  in  the  day,  nor  in  the  even ings,  

bo th  my a t to rney and myse l f  we have got  p rev ious 

commi tments  and  tha t  we cannot ,  we a l ready had to  dea l  

w i th  ton igh t  to  make ourse lves ava i lab le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   I  w i l l  have a  l ook and 

then f i x  the  da te  and t ime.   Okay,  thank you to  everybody.   

Thank you,  Mr  S ingh and your  lega l  team.   Thank you,  

Mr  Myburgh and  your  team and  the  techn ic ians  and the  

s ta f f ,  thank you to  everybody.  

For  the  benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c ,  tomorrow the  20 

Commiss ion  w i l l  no t  s i t  in  the  morn ing ,  bu t  we w i l l  s ta r t  a t  

15 :00  to  hear  some ev idence re la t ing  to  PRASA in i t ia l l y  

and then la te r  we w i l l  hear  the  ev idence,  o ther  ev idence  

re la t ing  to  Transnet ,  Mr  Gary  P i ta .   I  w i l l  a lso  hear  

ev idence f rom one o f  the  invest iga tors  o f  the  Commiss ion .   



31 MAY 2021 – DAY 406 
 

Page 217 of 217 
 

We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 1 JUNE 2021  


